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VISION The Leader in Construction, Property and

= Related Services.
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MISSION We are committed to:
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e creating value for our customers and delivering
quality services at world-class standard; and
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e delivering value to our shareholders through
maximising market share and returns.
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VALUES Heart and Harmony
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e We strive for perfection through service from the heart and
work harmoniously together by complementing and
supplementing each other.
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Can-do attitude and Commitment to quality

KLEER BEXE

e We uphold a can-do attitude with integrity and are committed
to delivering quality that will earn the respect and loyalty of
our stakeholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
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As the Non-executive Chairman of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.) (the “Company” or “Hsin
Chong”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am deeply honoured and
privileged to present for the first time the annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to our shareholders.

Business review

2015 was a memorable year for Hsin Chong full of accomplishments, new
horizons and challenges. While maintaining our competitive edge in our core
construction business and continuing to expand our property portfolio in the
Mainland of China, we have tapped into new business opportunities to expand
our business to new jurisdictions.

Construction business

During the year, our core construction business continued to grow with new
order intake for the year ended 31 December 2015 hitting a record high in our
Company'’s history. The total contract sum of the Group’s equity share in new
orders awarded amounted to approximately HK$14.9 billion, an increase of
239% as compared with the same period last year. With strong replenishment
of new orders, the Group's outstanding workload as of 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$18.3 billion.

The most noteworthy project that | would like to share with you is the main
construction work of M+ Museum awarded by the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority for Hong Kong's new museum for visual culture in the West Kowloon
Cultural District. This is the single largest Hong Kong construction contract
ever awarded to the Group in terms of our equity share in the contract sum. It
surpasses our last record contract by some 62 %.

As a flagship project, the construction of M+ Museum underscores once again
the vital role of Hsin Chong in supporting the growth of our multi-faceted city.
We are greatly honoured by the opportunity to contribute to the development
of Hong Kong's artistic landscape through participating in the construction of
this landmark architectural building. With completion scheduled in late 2018, the
project will form an important new chapter in Hsin Chong's journey of growth,
strengthening its close ties with the vibrant city of Hong Kong.

*  for identification purposes only
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Non-executive Chairman, Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
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Elsewhere, our professionalism and quality workmanship continue to win us the
trust of clients. Among the notable contracts we won last year, two are worth
special mention. The first is the main contract works for a residential development
at the juncture of Sheung Lok Street and Sheung Shing Street in Homantin, Hong
Kong. This is the single largest Hong Kong residential development project ever
awarded to the Group. The second is an office complex on Lam Lee Street in
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

Property development

In 2015, we continued to expand our property portfolio with the acquisition of a
completed investment property in Guangzhou and three property projects (which
are still under development) in Foshan, Shandong and Tianjin. Together with La
Viva in Shenyang and New Times Plaza in Beijing, we have a total GFA exceeding
5.6 million sgm as at the end of 2015.

During the year, the property development business segment has contributed
EBITDA of HK$2,592 million of which HK$2,321 million was the gains on bargain
purchase of the property acquisition in Foshan, Guangzhou, Shandong and Tianjin
in the Mainland of China, resulting in a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$2,446 million for the year ended 2015, a year-on-year growth of 530%.

It is expected that our flagship La Viva projects in Tieling, Liaoning and Foshan,
Guangdong will roll out, and will begin contributing revenue to the Group in
2016.

Fund raising activities

Over the course of 2015 and early this year, the investment community also
showed its confidence in us through the different fund raising activities that we
conducted.

We successfully priced a USD300 million 3-year senior bond due May 2018
with a coupon of 8.75% p.a., marking the Company’s maiden foray into the
international debt capital markets. The offer was well-received and represented
the first-ever US Dollar-denominated unrated bond offering by an Asian
construction company, opening up the international debt capital markets for a
brand new industry segment.

In March 2016, Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited announced it had selected
the shares of the Company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
to be a constituent stock in the Hang Seng Composite Index. This became
effective on 14 March 2016. Constituent stocks are selected based on market
value and turnover volume. This development is recognition of Hsin Chong's
continued solid performance.
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New strategic business opportunities

In 2015, we set down on a course to realise new strategic business opportunities
to create greater value for our shareholders. We signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with Sapphire Holdings Group (“Sapphire”), a renowned
healthcare provider from Australia, to forge a strategic alliance for our two
enterprises to expand into the aged care market in the Mainland of China. We
plan to allocate a portion of our large-scale integrated property development
projects to build national-grade aged care residential areas under the international
health management concepts of Sapphire. The opportunity in this market is
immense because of the ageing population in China.

We also signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Richfield Property
Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Richfield Group Holdings Limited, as part of a
strategic alliance to expand into the property development and aged care markets
in Hong Kong and Southeast Asia. We will provide construction and other
auxiliary services while Richfield will be responsible for identifying suitable projects,
operations and sales and marketing for the new projects.

In the long run, we hope that other than diversifying our businesses, these new
undertakings would bring new streams of revenue and profit to enrich our
shareholders’ investment in us.

Belt and Road Initiative

As a participant in the construction of major infrastructure projects and witnessing
the benefits that they bring to communities, we have identified and are pursuing
opportunities arising from Beijing’s “Belt and Road” initiative. Last year, Hsin
Chong was featured at international conferences in Paris, Madrid and Morocco
which were organised to explore “Belt and Road” engineering projects. Earlier
this year, | led a delegation to Brazil where the Chinese Embassy had arranged for
us to meet with top policy makers and large businesses to see how we can help
take forward their aspiration to build a transcontinental freight railway running
the breadth of South America which would significantly enhance the convenience
and efficiency of the continent’s trade with Asia and China.

In March 2016, we were pleased to be appointed as construction manager for
a landmark project: the Thai Boon Roong Twin Tower World Trade Center in
Cambodia. Located on the bank of the Mekong River in the capital city Phnom
Penh, the Twin Tower will reach 500 metres (133 storeys) into the sky when
completed, making it Cambodia’s tallest building as well as one of the world’s
tallest buildings. Cambodia is a new market for Hsin Chong and marks yet
another important milestone for our Company.

Therefore, on top of our current significant projects in Hong Kong and Macau,
our construction management business is continuing to expand its geographical
reach to cover Macau, the Mainland of China, Cambodia and Saipan. We will
be applying the strengths and experience we have in constructing large-scale
integrated projects in Hong Kong and Macau to provide the best solutions and
deliver high-quality products for our clients outside Hong Kong.
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Dividend and proposed bonus issue of shares

An interim dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share (2014: 1.0 HK cent per share) was
paid during the year. To preserve funds for the expansion and development of the
Company, the board of Director (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 2.2 HK cents per
share). Accordingly, total dividends for the financial year amounted to 1.0 HK cent
per share (2014: 3.2 HK cents per share).

Separately, the Board proposed to make a bonus issue of shares to its
shareholders, on the basis of one bonus ordinary share for every ten ordinary
shares held and one non-voting convertible preference share for every ten non-
voting convertible preference shares held, in each case on a record date to be
determined and announced by the Board in due course. The Company will make
a further announcement in respect of the proposed bonus issue, which will
require the Company’s shareholders’ approval.

Outlook

In March 2016, our shareholders gave approval for Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. to be renamed “Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited”. The change
reflects the Group's long-term strategy to diversify and expand our businesses
in Hong Kong, the Mainland of China and internationally. The new description
“Group Holdings” denotes our growth from a traditional construction company
to an integrated property and construction group that is embarking on a longer
term vision to diversify into developing integrated living environments, healthcare
and hospitality, in Hong Kong and other parts of the world.

We will continue to seek and take advantage of the opportunities afforded
under the “Belt and Road” initiative, the growing middle class of the Mainland
of China which seeks a better living environment, and the ageing population in
the Mainland of China to further broaden the frontiers of our businesses and to
increase value for our shareholders.

However, for our Hong Kong construction business, we remain concerned over
prolonged debates on infrastructure projects in the city’s Legislative Council
which has delayed the schedule for new works. If the problem is not resolved,
the end result will be fewer new public works projects from the Government. To
mitigate, we endeavour to maintain our existing clientele, while exploring new
business opportunities. Nevertheless, we are cognisant of the risks which may
come with new opportunities. We will be vigilant about any possible changes in
the economic climate of the Mainland of China and around the world, and will be
cautious in conducting businesses in new markets.

* for identification purposes only
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In order to prepare ourselves for the new challenges and opportunities ahead
of us, we have been strengthening our senior management team, especially in
the property development and commercial sectors in our PRC operations. The
new members come with rich experience and are experts in their respective
fields, having been recruited after careful and considered search. They will enrich
our expertise and ensure the Company is in good position to capture future
opportunities as they arise.

With our business strategies and new management in place, and riding on
our 77 years of solid foundation and determination to charge ahead with new
opportunities, | look forward to achieving even more value for our shareholders in
the years ahead.

Appreciation

Our results are a reflection of the quality and commitment of our people across
the entire Hsin Chong family. On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank each
and every one of my colleagues for their enthusiasm and loyalty, their valuable
contributions to the Group and their unwavering commitment to our clients, our
consumers and our values.

During the period under review, Dr. Wilfred Wong resigned from his position as
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group to pursue other
opportunities. | would like to express my tremendous thanks for his valuable
advice and contribution to the Company during his tenure and wish him every
success in his future endeavours. At the same time, | welcome Ir. Joseph CHOI
Kin Hung who took on the role as our new Chief Executive Officer in November
2015. Ir. Choi has steered our core construction business to new heights as
Managing Director of our construction arm and | have every confidence that the
Group's businesses will continue to grow under his able leadership.

Last but not least, | would like to extend my utmost gratitude to my fellow board
members, our past directors, other stakeholders, including shareholders, business
partners, clients and suppliers for their continued support and confidence in us.
They have made Hsin Chong what it is today and they will continue to be the
pillars of our success.

LIN Zhuo Yan
Non-executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Review of Business and Prospects

Financial Overview

In 2015, Hsin Chong has delivered shareholder value through sustainable growth
and performance. Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$2,446 million,
representing growth of 5.3 times over the last year.

EEES®mR DN

OB RAR

ML

M2015F FEB B ERRENHERBAKRERAIER
18 o B 3R B %8 I8R5 76 5 2,446,000,0007T - 8 F— &
18 R5.3(F

Performance highlights (in HK$ million) 2015 2014 Cha*nge
ERmE(B®EETL) 20155 20144 )
Revenue 2 15,019 14,010 +7%
Revenue - excl. NSC* & —F|BENSC 12,057 9,038 +33%
Gross profit EF 621 633 2%
Gross margin (excl. NSC¥) EFE (FEIENSC) 5.2% 7.0% -1.8ppE 2
Fair value gain on investment properties I EMEZ AR BERE 191 404 -53%
Gains on bargain purchase BMEKERS 2,321 - N/AZ 3 A
EBITDA EBITDA 2,790 672 +315%
Net finance costs MEREBE (119) (42) -183%
Profit attributable to shareholders BRELET 2,446 388 +530%
Net margin (excl. NSC*) B AE (RBIENSC) 20.3% 43% +16.0ppE 7 2h
(in HK cents) (BEEAL)
Basic earnings per share SEREXET 46.4 13.6
Interim dividend R R 1.0 1.0
Final dividend KBRS - 2.2

# Nominated subcontractors’ works of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project (“NSC") # RPIERIATIR GE RAT S —HATE B 946 E 9 #I78 T2 (INSC 1)

o Revenue increased by 7%, the growth was driven by the strong
performance of Construction business.

e With the keen competition in Property and Facility Management business,
our Group Gross profit recorded slightly decreased by 2%.

o Following the acquisition of property projects in the Mainland of China, the
Group recorded gains on bargain purchase of HK$2,321 million.

o Finance cost increased by 183% mainly due to additional working capital for
substantial new orders awarded during 2015.

e Profit attributable to shareholders recorded HK$2,446 million, a year-on-year
growth of 530%.

Hsin Chong had a challenging year in 2015. Even though we faced a critical
year of transformation, we still delivered a satisfactory result to our shareholders,
made significant progress and built momentum during the year. Our EBITDA
was HK$2,790 million of which HK$2,321 million and HK$191 million were
from gains on bargain purchase and fair value gain on investment properties. If
we excluded these items, our EBITDA from core businesses was HK$278 million
(2014: HK$268 million), representing a growth of 4% comparing to the last year.

o WEIENT% RIERRBEXBRALEHES-

o XYERRBEREBHRIINNTE AEEK
ENFRGEMR 2% -

o RIWEFBEARNEZMHEEBEBE AEESSRER
B8 Ui 25 78 #2,321,000,0007T °

o ENERAIEINIGS3%  EBRMRHM015FEENEKR
MBANEEBINEEES -

o BRISARIRE(R % N B ¥52,446,000,0000T I FE K
530% ©

2015 FEMB EENE BELE TR ABENE
RAZFE DRENABRBAETEE S TEREER
TRk T 3 R 258 - & PV EBITDA A 7 #52,790,000,0007T *
H /B #7 %52,321,000,0007T K 78 #191,000,0007T 7 Bl 5K
AnBUREREREEDEZ AR BN - MlikRZE
T8 B - 95k B %00 E S HEBITDAA /B #5278,000,0007T
(20144F : & 1268,000,0007T ) B EFIERAY% o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEBNRRDIT
Group Turnover (excl. NSC) Turnover by business
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HK$billion
B BT
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0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B8 }E = —j o & *ﬁ'
Business Overview EHLFE
Change
(in HK$ million) 2015 2014 Amount %
(CBE¥EET) 2015%F 20144 Ll
Turnover - § 4]
Construction — excl. NSC EiE— B FENSC 11,234 8,068 +3,166 +39%
Property & Facility Management L EYNE g AR 752 848 -96 1%
Property Development & Investment ~ #) %2R NI E 71 122 —51 —42%
12,057 9,038 +3,019 +33%
Construction — NSC $21E—NSC 2,962 4,972 -2,010 -40%
15,019 14,010 +1,009 +7%
Gross Profit EH
Construction BiE 512 509 +3 +1%
Property & Facility Management Y3 K e E B 93 101 -8 8%
Property Development & Investment — #)¥ % E MR E 16 23 =7 -30%
621 633 =12 2%
EBITDA EBITDA
Construction B 334 352 -18 -5%
Property & Facility Management YRR BET 25 30 -5 -17%
Property Development & Investment  #)¥ 3% & &&ﬁ 2,592 375 +2,217 +591%
Corporate 1T (161) (85) -76 -89%
2,790 672 +2,118 +315%
GP Margin (excl. NSC) EFE (FEENSC)
Construction =47 4.6% 6.3%
Property & Facility Management YEREEEL 12.4% 11.9%
Property Development & Investment  #33% & &?xﬁ 22.5% 18.9%
(i) Construction (i) BE

“The Construction business is one of the most dynamic, challenging
and fiercely competitive industries in the region.”

Hsin Chong has pursued a model of good transformation from a building
contractor to a company providing a full range of contracting businesses
including civil engineering, interiors & fitting-out, electrical & mechanical
and construction management services. In the context of the market
conditions facing our industry in Hong Kong, our Construction business
has demonstrated a strong performance in replenishing its order book,
increasing revenue and generating profit. In spite of the increasing
competition due to the lower number of available project opportunities
in 2014, our gross profit grew 1% to HK$512 million, to which Building
division was the major contributor. The good performance resulted from the
division continuing to uphold its principles of quality, safety, reliability and

integrity.

[BiEXFEEARREH I ELRPREERING
fr#Z—-/

T8 —HIBKER JRIE TR ERER BESR
ELARTRE EREMLEE KEREEEERS
ZIRREEANBREES AR ERMITENE BTG
MR T BN EEERHEENETEGOE
REWEREET  RE+OEE - BE20145E

AHEZEEHE RV ERMEHEABRR B
B EFMIIER1%ZE B %512,000,0007T * HAH1E
FHIAZEEELTEZE/M -ZBIRBRER
TR E— B E M RAEE L2 AR LEHN
FRAN-
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SEERE il
(i) Property Development & Investment

(iii)

“Hsin Chong is experiencing strategic transformation, driven by a
number of dynamic forces.”

During the year, Hsin Chong expanded the property portfolio with the
acquisitions of under development property projects in Foshan, Shandong
and Tianjin with GFA of over 2.5 million sgm and a completed property held
for investment with GFA of 26,306 sqm in the first tier city — Guangzhou.
The acquisitions remarked a significant step forward for the Group in its
endeavour to become a prestigious brand in the real estate market in the
Mainland of China. After the acquisitions, the Group now have 2 properties
for investment and/or sale and 4 property projects under development with
GFA of over 5.6 million sgm. The projects, which now form a significant
part of Hsin Chong’s balance sheet, would contribute to the strong growth
under the Group's strategic mandate.

Property and Facility Management
“During the year, the business has undergone a challenging year due
to keen competition and unfavourable environment.”

The property and facility management business of Synergis Holdings
Limited, with its stable market position, still generated satisfactory revenue
and contribution to the Group. It delivered revenue of HK$752 million and
gross profit of HK$93 million in 2015. The division now managed 304
property and facility management service contracts with GFA over 12 million
sqm in Hong Kong and the Mainland of China.
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“The new orders intake of the Construction business for the year ended
31 December 2015 hit a record high in the history of Hsin Chong.”

The total contract sum of the Group’s equity share in the new orders awarded
amounted to approximately HK$14.9 billion (2014: HK$4.4 billion).

Major new contracts awarded in Hong Kong:

- M+ Museum Main Works Contract at West Kowloon Cultural District (“M+
project”)

—  Main Contract Works of a private residential development project at
Homantin, Kowloon (“Homantin project”)

—  Main Contract Works of Proposed Office Complex at Lam Lee Street

—  a Residential Development contract at Discovery Bay, North Phase 16, Hong
Kong

— a building construction contract of Fortune Pharmacal New Factory
Development at 50-68 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Yuen
Long

—  Proposed Residential Development at No.28-32 Aberdeen Street

—  Site Formation, ELS, Foundation, Pile Cap and Basement Slab Works
Contract for Proposed Residential Development at New Kowloon Island Lot
No. 6532 Lung Cheung Road

—  Site Formation and Infrastructural Works near Tong Hang Road and Tsz Tin
Road in Area 54, Tuen Mun

—  ELS and Foundation Package Contract for Proposed Office Development at
704-730 King's Road

- afoundation contract for the Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel
- arenovation works contract for Kee Wah Industrial Building

— an Infrastructure Main Contract for Commercial Development at 113-115
Argyle Street, Kowloon

Among all new contracts awarded, the contract sum of the M+ project is the
single largest Hong Kong construction contract in Hsin Chong's history. The award
of this landmark contract underscores the vital role of Hsin Chong in supporting
the growth of Hong Kong as a multifaceted city. Following the successful
completion of constructing a large scale residential development at Kau To Shan
awarded in 2013, we were awarded the Homantin project, another mega-sized
residential development project from Kerry Properties, of which the contract sum
was the single largest Hong Kong residential development project ever awarded
to the Group.
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Our civil division also secured a significant contract for the foundations of the new
Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel. Posed to be a world class resort facility
for the amusement park, the project involves road works and drainage works and
started in February 2015.

Our Electrical and Mechanical division, Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited
("HC Aster”), was awarded a new project of commercial development owned by
Hang Seng Bank located at 113-115 Argyle Street in Mong Kok. HC Aster was
named as the project’s infrastructure main contractor, and will also be responsible
for the interior renovation of the entire building. As the contract involved both
building services works and architectural works, it, again, remarked our Group's
ability to provide full range of contracting business.

In Macau, Hsin Chong has been a long term partner with Venetian Group to
provide Construction Management services since Sands Macao in 2004, Venetian
Macao in 2007, Sands Cotai Central in 2012 to the Parisian Macao (targeted to
open in second half of 2016). In 2015, we were awarded a Reinforced Concrete
Works and General Builder's Works for Podium for Lisboa Palace, Macau.
It signified our commitment and dedication to deliver distinguished project
execution.

Following the success of our construction business in Hong Kong and Macau, our
Construction Management Services (“CMS") division received 2 CMS contracts
to build the Commercial Complex, Sportland and a Composite office building,
Mega City in Henggin of the Mainland of China, and a CMS contract for Garapan
Integrated Resort Development in Saipan. Subsequent to the year end, another
CMS contract, namely Thai Boon Roong Twin Tower World Trade Center Project in
Cambodia, was awarded. For the Cambodia project, Hsin Chong is appointed as
the Construction Manager for building a twin tower of 500 metres (133 storeys).
Upon completion, the building will be the tallest building in Cambodia as well as
one of the world’s tallest buildings.
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With strong new orders replenishment, Hsin Chong's outstanding order book
exceeded HK$18.3 billion as of 31 December 2015, increased by 25% comparing
to 2014 of HK$14.6 billion. The outstanding order book is very well diversified
with over 150 projects including 4 public housing projects, 6 MTR projects and
a mega-sized private residential development projects. The strong order book is
a direct result of the Group’s cohesive strategies in a strong albeit competitive
market to maintain a significant market share via participation in major market
segment such as public housing, target particular growth areas in accordance with
the Hong Kong SAR Government's initiatives such as MTR lines and developing
professional and technical talents and skills of its people resources to pursue
excellence in higher-value contracts such as hospitals and continues its convincing
track record achieved over many years for execution and delivery of all prior
projects.

() Government & Public Institutions: Water Supplies Department, Tsuen
Wan Adventist Hospital, Macau St. Joseph University and Urban Renewal
Authority;

(i) Hong Kong Housing Authority: 4 public housing projects in Anderson Road,
Hung Shui Kiu, Tung Chung and Au Tau;

(i) MTR: Express Rail Link contracts, namely, Nam Cheong foundation works,
Huanggang to Mai Po Tunnels, West Kowloon Terminus of Express Rail Link;
superstructure works of Wong Chuk Hang depot of South Island Line and
two Shatin Central Link contracts of railway stations and Tunnels of To Kwa
Wan and Sung Wang Toi and Advance Works of North South Line.

About 49% of the outstanding workloads as at 31 December 2015 were from
private clients, most of which are prestigious property developers and Macau
gaming operators like Kerry Properties, Hang Seng Bank, New World and Hysan
Group, Venetian, Galaxy and SIM.

With the average delivery time of these construction contracts of 2 to 3 years,
our current outstanding orders on hand secure our revenue in the coming 2 to 3

years.
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Construction performance highlight (in HK$ million) 2015 2014 Change
BEXBRBBE(EREET) 20155 201445 g
Turnover EEH 14,196 13,040 +9%
Turnover — excl. NSC EERTE-TBIENSC 11,234 8,068 +39%
Gross profit X 512 509 +1%
Gross profit margin — excl. NSC EFFE-FEIENSC 4.6% 63% —1.7pp BN E
General and administrative expenses ~ —#% B fTBI B (189) (179) 6%
Operating profit BEaF 324 338 4%

With the strong order book over the last few years, we delivered gross profit
of HK$512 million for the year (2014: HK$509 million), an increase of about
1% year-on-year of which the Building Construction division was the major
contributor. With the growth of revenue by 9% (39% if excluded NSC), the
growth of gross profit has not aligned with revenue growth, the major reason
was that the contribution from our high-value civil engineering business slowed
in pace due to the delay in the execution cycle and multiple exogenous factors.
Although this was covered by our strong order book in the Building Construction
division with relatively lower margin, our gross profit margin was driven down by
1.7 pp to 4.6% over the last year.
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Among all civil engineering contracts, most of our railway contracts are partnered
with world-class contractors like Samsung C&T Corporation, Laing O'Rourke and
China Railways. For the Shatin Central Link project partnered with Samsung C&T
Corporation, we are handling a vital part of the network’s construction in the
Kowloon City Section. The scope of the Contract work includes the construction
of two new railway stations — To Kwa Wan and Ma Tau Wai — and 1.6 kilometres
of railway tunnels that will connect the two new stations to Ho Man Tin station.
The project has been delayed due to the discovery of a very significant quantity
of antiquities and monuments. After the work conducted by archeologist, the
project took a major step forward as its first Tunnel Boring Machine (TBM),
named Princess Wencheng, began her tunnel journey in April 2015. The first
stage of tunneling work was then started and the major part of tunneling already
successfully completed. As such, we strongly believe that the favourable margin
from civil engineering projects, especially the railway projects, would definitely be
delivered at the later stage of the contract cycle before project completion.

In 2015, as the Group's business has expanded, Hsin Chong has been honoured

to earn widespread recognition and numerous awards for our efforts in Health,

Safety, Quality and Environmental Protection.

Construction Industry Safety Awards:

o Gold Award in Civil Engineering Site Category for Shatin Central Link
Contract No.1129 in the Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme by

Labour Department

o Merit in Safety Teams Category for Public Housing project in Hung Shui Kiu
in the Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme by Labour Department

Occupational Health Awards:

o Bronze Award in the Work Stress Management Best Practices Category

° Merit Award in the Hearing Conservation Best Practices Category

o Merit Award in the Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Best Practices Category
o Merit Award in the Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Category

o Merit Award for Best Safety Enhancement Program for Working at Height
by Occupational Safety and Health Council

o Merit Award for Best Safety Working Cycle Site by Occupational Safety and
Health Council

The 21st Considerate Contractors Site Awards:

o Gold Award for non-public Works (New Works Group A) for Shatin Central
Link Contract No.1109 in 21st Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme
by Development Bureau & Construction Industry Council

o Merit Award for Non-public Works (New Works Group A) for Public Housing
project in Tung Chung in 21st Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme
by Development Bureau & Construction Industry Council
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Merit Award for Public Works Site (New Works) for Sewerage in Kau Lung
Hang, San Wai, Kau Lung Hang Lo Wai and Tai Hang in 21st Considerate
Contractors Site Award Scheme by Development Bureau & Construction
Industry Council

Merit Award for Outstanding Environmental Management and Performance
for Sewerage in Kau Lung Hang, San Wai, Kau Lung Hang Lo Wai and Tai
Hang in 21st Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme by Development
Bureau & Construction Industry Council

Innovation, Quality and Environmental:

Bronze Award in Construction Company for Caring Award in Yan Oi Tong
Plastic Recycling Partnership Scheme by Yan Oi Tong

Gold Award in the Green Management Award (Corporation) — Project
Management for Hong Kong Green Awards 2014 by Green Council

Merit Award for Construction Industry Sector in Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence by Environmental Campaign Committee and the
Environmental Protection Department

Grand Award in Innovative Environmental for Construction Environmental
Awards by HKCA

Silver Award in Safety Management System, Training and Promotion
Category for Innovative Safety Initiative Award 2015 by the Development
Bureau, the Construction Industry Council, and the Hong Kong
Construction Association

Bronze Award in the Health and Welfare category for Innovative Safety
Initiative Award 2015 by the Development Bureau, the Construction
Industry Council, and the Hong Kong Construction Association

Institutional Winner of the FuturArc Green Leadership Award 2015 for the
project of The City University of Hong Kong's Academic 3 (AC3) Building

Gold-rated LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design)
Certification by the US Green Building Council for the project of Galaxy
Macau Phase Two Development

Proactive Safety Contractors Award by the Hong Kong Construction
Association

Bronze Award in the Safe subcontractor Award by Construction Industry
Coundil

“Grand Safety Award”, "Gold Stakeholder Engagement Award”, “Gold

Safety Award”, “Lowest RAFR Award” and “Champion Awards” by the
MTR Corporation
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Property Development & Investment Business Review MEBRBERREEF DO
Performance highlight (in HK$ million) 2015 2014 Change
ERmE(E%asEn) 20154 20144 HE)
Turnover BExa
HK properties BBME 5 21 —76%
PRC properties Y3 66 101 —-35%
71 122 —42%
Gross profit e
HK properties BEYE 2 14 -86%
PRC properties Y3 14 9 +56%
16 23 -30%
Gross profit margin Ef=
HK properties BEYE 40% 67% 27 ppA D
PRC properties R 21% 9%  +12 ppE DB
Fair value gain/(loss) LREKRE (BE)
HK properties et ES - ®) N/AT 38 FB
PRC properties R 191 412 ~54%
191 404 -53%

“Hsin Chong diversified its businesses to become a fully integrated
property company of excellence.”

Hsin Chong has expanded our property portfolio in 2015 with the acquisition of a
completed investment property in Guangzhou and 3 under development property
projects in Foshan, Shandong and Tianjin. In addition to the Group’s two major
properties, La Viva in Shenyang and New Times Plaza in Beijing, total GFA of the
Group's land bank exceed 5.6 million sgm as at the end of 2015.

For the year of 2015, the business segment has contributed EBITDA of HK$2,592
million (2014: HK$375 million) of which HK$2,321 million were the gains on
bargain purchase of the property acquisition in Foshan, Guangzhou, Shandong
and Tianjin of the Mainland of China. The majority part of gain on bargain
was from the acquisition of Foshan project (HK$1,983 million) which was
mainly attributable to the difference between the share price set on the date of
acquisition agreement of 14 May 2014 and the share price on completion date of
8 January 2015.

The major revenue were from the rental of investment properties in Beijing.

[FFESTIREFLURBEEHZEEENHELE ]
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Property Portfolio HMEHE
Serviced Commercial
Apartment Mall & Car Park
Total GFA for sale Car park space
Completed property held for BERBERER £ BERLR
investment and/or sale BHEHME HEREER BEXLE FEHE FEA
sqm sgqm sgqm units
Beijing New Times Plaza LR FERYR L 68,180 12,382 55,798 328
Xiyang Computer City Z5E I 26,306 - 26,306 325
Total #at 94,486 12,382 82,104 653
Property under development BREPYE
Total Commercial
GFA Residential & others
HEEmER £ HmRRHEAf
sgm sqm sgm
TR R TR
Foshan L 1,905,400 780,000 1,125,400
Taian R 274,977 - 274,977
Tianjin RE 328,100 - 328,100
Tieling #aE 3,016,000 1,994,000 1,022,000
Total it 5,524,477 2,774,000 2,750,477

Our completed properties held for investment and/or sale in the Mainland of
China are all located in the first-tier cities — Beijing and Guangzhou. The revenue
was HK$66 million and the Gross Profit was HK$14 million. The serviced
apartments of New Times Plaza are held for sale, however, in the past 2 years,
the Company was very reluctant to sell and intended to wait for the turn of policy
environment. As such, only 2 units were contracted to sell in early 2015. Plus the
2 units contracted in 2014, sales of 4 units were recognised in 2015. The sales
revenue, excluding related taxes, was HK$13 million, decreased by 75% when
comparing to 2014 (2014: 20 units were sold).
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Our land bank, as at 31 December 2015, reached approximately 5.6 million sgm ~ 7201512 A318  H PN Lt EEEZEmMBE LN E
in terms of GFA, of which 2.8 million are for residential use and 2.8 million sgm 5,600,000 5 >k » H #72,800,000F /5 K A EE E R & &
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“Hsin Chong is expanding its property portfolio and striving to become a [#fSIETERFERYEE S - B T 5 b B A 1 55 110 &

brand of quality in the real estate market in the Mainland of China.” A E AR o]

Completed Properties held for investment and/or sale HIERER BHECERGME

() New Times Plaza, Beijing () t=ZFEEHBYHL
The property is a commercial development, comprising 15 storeys above- ZMER—EEEERIER - B E15E R3EME
ground and 3 storeys of basement. The shopping mall and car park occupy B -BYMPOREESEBERXNEDE (AE
nine floors of the property (from 3rd floor of the basement to 6th floor) EIEEH - F6fE) - B EEMIEESS, 798 7oK e
with a total GFA of 55,798 sqm. The SOHO (Small Office, Home Office) SOHO (/MU NZE  RIEWAE) ABRINRZ Y E
apartments are located on the 7th to 15th floor of the property. As at 31 FIBEFI5E - FR2015F12A318 Al ft H & =k
December 2015, approximately 12,382 sqm GFA are available for sale or EREMBENR12,382F 5K
lease.

Facade of the New Times Plaza

FFEBYDPIVINR

Shops in the Mall HB RIS Front Door of the Mall BB 1EFY
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(i)

As of 31 December 2015, the occupancy rate of the shopping mall was
approximately 97%. The contribution has been improving since acquisition.
The mall has generated rental and related income of approximately HK$52
million for the year, increased by 11% when comparing to 2014.

We intend to revamp the trade mix over the coming years to further
strengthen the mall’s retail offering and meet the demands of the large
residential population living nearby. Based on the aforesaid plan, we
envisage the rental income from the mall would offer the Group a stable
source of regular income.

Xiyang Computer City, Commercial Portion of Tian Cheng Ming
Yuan

On 29 April 2015, the Group entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement with the Vendors to acquire 100% of sale shares of Wisdom
Top International Limited, which is the legal and beneficial owner of the
Commercial Portion of Tian Cheng Ming Yuan situated in Guangzhou, for a
total consideration of approximately HK$477.6 million.

The property, which consists of commercial property and car park with
325 carparking spaces with total GFA of 26,306 sqm, is situated at a
strategic location of Shipai Xi Road of Tianhe District, Guangzhou city.
Tianhe commercial circle is Guangzhou's central business circle and Shipai
Xi Road is the traditional distribution centre for the wholesalers and retailers
of selling brand new and used computers. The property is currently under
refurbishment which is scheduled to complete in the third quarter of 2016.
We believe that this property will release its potential value and deliver a
favourable return to the Group after refurbishment.

(i)

Facade of the Xiyang Computer City 2=
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Property under development BREPYE
() La Viva, Foshan (i) HLESER
Development Plan Unit: GFA @ sqm BEE B BEEE (TFAK)
Commercial
Phase P& Total Residential and Others
st £ MERHEM
sgqm sgm sgm
K oK Sk
1 1 343,000 204,400 138,600
2 2 376,600 160,000 216,600
3 3 376,600 160,000 216,600
4 4 553,300 180,000 373,300
5 5 255,900 75,600 180,300
Total Wit 1,905,400 780,000 1,125,400
Commercial Blocks B4
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Facade of the Club BTN &

Courtyard of the Club ZFTRERE

The Group has completed the acquisition of Foshan project on 8 January
2015. The project is located at Sanshui District, Foshan in Guangdong
Province and embodies the Company’s vision of developing residences for
those aspiring for new lifestyles while living in harmony with nature. It is
a mix use development project, consisting of a total GFA of approximately
1.9 million sgm, of which approximately 0.8 million sgm are for residential
use and approximately 1.1 million sgm are for commercial and other use.
The unparalleled natural surroundings and humanistic design create a truly
scenic and sustainable living. The scenic site is surrounded with natural lakes
and an abundance of greenery. We planned to develop the project as the
mixture of lifestyle experience centre and state-of-the art leisure. It is set
to become a trendsetting suburban new town that integrates residential,
leisure, entertainment, and retail elements to benefit from the growing
consumerism trend arising from rapid urbanization.

The retail development will be helmed by a large scale themed retail and
entertainment concept, which seeks to create the most unique leisure and
entertainment destination in Southern China. The offerings in the retail
section include inspiring themed retails, a lifestyle experience centre, state-
of-the art leisure and hospitality facilities, thrilling attractions and more.
Especially, hot springs have been successfully explored in certain areas and
we kept continuing to explore further hot springs in order to meet the usage
demand of the whole project. The residential development adopted the
“new suburban living concept” and offers a quality living proposition.
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(i)

Phase 1 comprised the existing retail outlets of approximately 95,300 sgqm
which has been completed and will be rolled out in the second half of 2016.

A total GFA of approximately 204,400 sgm of low density residential units
and serviced apartments are planned for phase 1, of which about 24,000
sqm of low density residential property have been completed. The residential
sales launch will be tied with the phase opening of the retail outlets in the
second half of 2016.

Commercial development project, Taian
On 31 March 2015, the Group acquired a commercial development project
situated in Taian, Shandong, for a total consideration of HK$1,042 million.

The property, which consists of commercial properties with total GFA of
274,977 sgm, is situated at Taishan District, Taian, Shandong Province. As at
31 December 2015, a total of 34 blocks of two-storey commercial retail outlet
mall with a total GFA of 100,360 sgm is under construction. The operation is
expected to start in the second half of 2016 or the first half of 2017.

V

Realistic Picture of Commercial Blocks SX2#BERSE

(i)
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(iii) Commercial development project, Tianjin (i) REWERREIER
On 14 September 2015, the Group acquired effectively 64.32% stake of a M2015F9R 148 - NEE U EE — B RN REFR
commercial development project situated in Tianjin, for a total consideration EEBRRERBEAHNANYELGEE BREAEE
of HK$900 million. The property, which consists of a parcel of land, for 900,000,0007T ° 5% ¥ ¥ BIE— R E IR B HE A
which development approval has been submitted for commercial and office AREERFARSH L EEEIEL /328,100
use, has a GFA of approximately 328,100 sqm. oK
The property is located at commercial district of Tianjin Binhai New Area ZMEM N REE RN ESEE SR BiE
and along the Haihe River. The property comprised serviced apartment HRFEEEMEIEA8, 600 KA BE RN AR RIEEEIEL
with a total GFA of 48,600 sqm and commercial development of about 279,500 oK B B S B R IE B < B/ IR AL 7 R2
279,500 sgm. Binhai New Area located in the coastal region of the Tianjin HEMALEHE - 1 BB KBTI REIEE AR
municipality, has been explicitly designated by the Chinese National Bl & B o IR IRR B QB R ZOALE
Government as a special financial zone. It occupies a core position in the BEEY=EAAER EEERZEN200FFRE-.

Bohai Economic Rim and the area has abundant natural resources and
boasts 1,200 square kilometres.

Aerial Effect Picture i B R B

Horizontal Effect Picture SZiR N R @

Distant Effect Picture 2 S 2B

Effect Picture of Commercial Blocks B3R ¥ 2B

24/HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



. —

Management Discussion and Analysis

CEESH/RDN
(iv) La Viva, Tieling (iv) BEENREE
La Viva is located in Tieling New Town in Liaoning Province. It covers an area ENERUNEERS SN (A EEEI80R
of 180 hectares and a total GFA of approximately 3 million square metres, B BREE R R3008 F 7K - R £92008F 75
of which about 2 million sqm are for residential use and about 1 million sqm RKEHN00EF AR AHEFEERG R EREMA
are for commercial and other use. o
Development Plan Unit: GFA @ sgqm BREiE B BEEE (FHK)
Commercial
Phase FEER Total Residential and others
#85t == EMERRM
1A 1A 307,000 225,000 82,000
1B 1B 381,000 161,000 220,000
2 2 691,500 269,000 422,500
B B 762,000 543,000 219,000
4 4 874,500 796,000 78,500
Total #st 3,016,000 1,994,000 1,022,000

=
o
=
2]
@
B
=
[
-

Indoor of Residential EBA R
: - e
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Residential development

Phase 1 comprises 16 high-rise residential towers, 22 low-rise residential towers,
and yields a total saleable area of 225,000 sgm. Upon completion, there will be
a total of 2,100 units available for sale, with size ranging from 40 to 213 sgm
per unit, on average, 107 sgm per unit. The residential sales launch will be tied
with the phased opening of the retail outlets and water park in the second half of
2016.

Commercial development

As for the commercial development of La Viva, Aqua Wave Water Park, one of
the key components of the unparalleled La Viva experience, is coming along
smoothly. Created by the world renowned Canadian planning and design firm,
it will be the first round-the-year water recreation facility in China’s booming
northeast region. The first phase of commercial development also consists of retail
outlets with operation scheduled to start in the summer of 2016. The total GFA of
outlets and water park approximates to 185,900 square metres. The Water Park
offers highly innovative rides, China'’s first snorkeling pool and the first man-made
surfing rides, etc. The outlet also provides a wide selection of restaurants, the first
movie-themed hotel in the region, and the first regional shopping destination with
a mix of different intriguing European architectural designs; therefore, La Viva is
not only a spot of weekend retreats, but also a great shopping and entertainment
convenience for residents of La Viva.

26/HSN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

EERREERH

1HEER S EETE R22REEBETE ArEeEE
£225,000F 75 2K e R L& #5H & 2, 10018 287 7] 4 55
& GEBEMEREN F0E213F 5K Y AT EEM
107 F K - (FEWEBH2016FE T L FRADERAE
HEBEIN RK F SRR TSR E-

mEREREH

HRENEFREERBAMS  DMEBEKELLERE
UERERBTREBNER R BRETERIEN - EHin
ERANEREIRRARENIRT] B ARSI P EIRILH
BAEE2F2EK ERERE ZAERRBARNEY
B EIN20165F EFFHENBYN - B Mok L%
BB A2 EE TG 40 /3185,900°F J7 0K < 727K F#EE R i A
BIEK LA BAEEEOL R EEATERRES
BN RHETIFRELNER YHEZMEEREY

REBE AR TR EE S AABRAZERG B ERE
BYBi- R EREETERBRKEMNEER T
RENRARERTREERY MIREEF -



Synergis Property Management Business Review

In 2015, our Property and Facility Management business, operated through
our listed subsidiary group, Synergis Holdings Limited ("Synergis”), continued
to maintain its solid market position. Synergis has successfully secured several
sizeable new contracts, including a two-year management contract of Block
3 and Block 4 of their Headquarters Buildings from the Hong Kong Housing
Authority with, a three-year technical and engineering support services contract
from Cathay Pacific Cargo, a 3-year facility maintenance and logistic support
services contract from AsiaWorld Expo and a property service contract for Vogue
Laundry Services Limited’s new laundry building. Most of its existing contracts
have been renewed with an increase in service fee and expanded scope of work.
Major contracts successfully renewed include the property management contract
for the Lung Mun Qasis, Kwong Ming Court, Link PMSS contract and facility
management contracts for Cathay Pacific Cargo Terminal, Town Campus of HKU
SPACE, Customer Service for the Tseung Kwan O Line and West Rail Line of MTR
Corporation, Asia Airfreight Terminal and the English Schools Foundation. The
high contract retention rate reflects that Synergis’ quality services are well received
by customers.

As at 31 December 2015, Synergis managed 304 property and facility
management service contracts comprising 269 contracts in Hong Kong and
35 contracts in the Mainland of China. Together, the GFA managed was
approximately 12,200,000 sgm (Hong Kong: 9,800,000 sqm; Mainland of
China: 2,400,000 sgm). For the year ended 31 December 2015, amid the fierce
competition in the market, our Property and Facility Management business
contributed revenue of HK$752 million and gross profit of HK$93 million,
representing a decrease of 11% and 8% respectively from that of last year.

Looking forward

Core Construction business

In December 2015, Transport and Housing Bureau of HKSAR announced that the
city's total residential supply, including public housing, home ownership scheme
and private housing, would be 460,000 units in the coming 10 years starting from
2016, of which 280,000 units are from public housing. At the same time, the
continued increase in residential land sales by the Hong Kong government should
also lead to more private residential construction contracts. Moreover, tendering
of the major infrastructure projects of the Hong Kong government is expected to
continue, driving continued increase in infrastructure spending and construction
output. With this foreseeable upward trend of available construction workload to
come, Hsin Chong, as a long established market player with proven track record
in the industry, will further solidify our brand and presence in Hong Kong and
create value for our shareholders and stakeholders. Following the success of the
expansion of our CMS team to Henggin and overseas, like Saipan and Cambodia,
we will continue to look for any overseas opportunities to position our brand in
the international market.

*  for identification purposes only
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Strategic Alliance

On 5 October 2015, Hsin Chong signed a Memorandum of Understanding
("MOU") with Richfield Group as part of strategic alliance that aims to expand
into the property development and aged care markets in Hong Kong and
Southeast Asia. Both companies see great opportunities in Hong Kong's urban
renewal market as well as in the overall positive economic outlook in the region.
Hsin Chong will enter into cooperative arrangement with land owners for the
real estate development. Hsin Chong will provide construction and other auxiliary
services while Richfield will be responsible for identifying suitable projects,
operations and sales and marketing for the new projects.

Belt and Road Initiative Opportunities

Hsin Chong has been expanding our international business and trying to
maximize the vast opportunity brought by “Belt and Road Initiative”. During
2015, the Hsin Chong team was invited as guest speaker in several international
conferences, including the Sino-European Entrepreneurs Summit in Paris and the
Silk Road Forum in Madrid and Morocco. In February 2016, we are honoured
to have been among the companies arranged by the Chinese Embassy in Brazil
to participate in discussion with senior officials and senators in Brazil on the
Twin Ocean transcontinental railroad project that would provide an East-West
connection in South America through Brazil and Peru, improving transcontinental
transport of goods and opening up a more direct route to China and the rest of
Asia. The purpose of the visit was to seek better understanding of the project and
progress to date and to explore possible opportunities for participation.

PRC Property business

Since the transformation from a traditional building contractor to a fully
integrated property company, our shareholders and other stakeholders are always
full of expectation that the Company will be highly profitable and offer good
returns. In the past few years, we are working silently and exploiting aggressively
in the project execution and to establish a team of qualified members. Currently,
the senior management team of the property development and the commercial
team are from prestigious PRC property developers or mall operators like Wanda
Group, Yintai Group, Yansha Outlets and HNA Group etc. With the good and
innovative insights and experience of our current committed team, the property
projects would be timely and properly executed. Upon completion, delivering
satisfactory return will give account of the Group to our shareholders and other
stakeholders.

Our property portfolio are well balanced with the locations in first tier cities
and other developing cities. All completed properties are located in the first
tier cities like Beijing and Guangzhou, it will generate stable rental revenue and
flexible sale revenue in 2016. Among the property projects under development,
the construction of commercial portion like shopping malls and integrated
experienced facilities in Foshan has been completed. We are now recruiting
anchor tenants and other commercial operators, and the commercial portion
is scheduled to commence operation in the second half of 2016. Such a new
experienced facilities would attract traffic for the launch of the property sale. In
addition to the promotion of “Destocking policy” by the National Government
which release the restrictions on housing loan, reduce the transaction levies and
encourage the turnover of provident funds, it is expected that the priority will be
the region of our Foshan project that has a high inventory turnover of housing.
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Aged Care Living Concept

The Chinese government has placed high priority on improving the lives of
its senior citizens. Based on the latest statistics released by National Bureau
of Statistics in China, senior citizens aged above 60 was over 210 million,
representing over 15% of the total population. It is forecast that the global
elderly population will reach 2 billion by 2050 of which 480 million elderly
people are in China, nearly one-fourth of the global elderly population. With
the encouragement of the National Government, Hsin Chong would grasp this
golden opportunity to utilize our expertise and our own resources including
landed properties to develop the aged care living market.

On 24 September 2015, Hsin Chong signed a Memorandum of Understanding
("MOU") with Sapphire Holdings Group ("“Sapphire”). Sapphire is a leading
integrated aged care living management group based in Australia and owned
two renowned aged care living management company brands — “Blue Cross”
and “Sapphire”. The signing of the MOU forges a strategic alliance for both
enterprises to expand into the aged care market in the Mainland of China and
Asia. Under the MOU, Hsin Chong and Sapphire will form a strategic cooperation
to provide superior nursing care services as well as a signified and comfortable
living environment for elderly members of the population. In view of the immense
opportunity and advantages in the aged care living market in China and Asia,
the cooperation is to develop international aged care residential areas and
introduce the world class health management concepts of Sapphire. At the same
time, the cooperation aims to provide superior care and nursing care services
covering medical, leisure and health management services to senior citizens in the
Mainland of China and Asia.

Funding Highlights
The financing activities are discussed below:

Issuance of convertible preference shares (“CPS")

On 8 January 2015 and 8 July 2015, the Company issued a total of
5,654,772,134 CPS as the consideration (excluding the holdback amount) to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Goleman International Limited, which
through its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Goleman Group”) holds 7
parcels of land in Foshan City, Guangdong Province.

Subsequent to the year end and on 15 January 2016, the Company further
issued 259,263,039 CPS to settle the holdback amount which was pending the
determination of the aggregate amount of fee, fine or penalty (if any) charged
under the relevant land grant contract or applicable PRC laws at any time after
completion but on or before 31 December 2015 in respect of any delay in the
development of certain acquired parcels of land.

Placing of new shares and right issues

On 8 January 2015, the Company issued a total of 857,449,996 rights shares
offered under the rights issue and a total of 1,472,960,000 new placing shares
at the placing price of HK$1.00 per new placing share with net proceeds of
HK$2,256 million.

. —
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Issuance of senior notes due 2018

On 18 May 2015, the Company issued a 3-year senior notes with principal
amounts of US$300 million due on 18 May 2018 bearing interest of 8.75% per
annum which is payable semi-annually (the “Senior Notes 2018"). The Company
may at its option, at any time prior to 18 May 2018, redeem the senior notes
in whole but not in part, a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest to
the redemption date. The Senior Notes 2018 are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong.

Issuance of convertible bonds

On 20 November 2015, the Company issued a 2-year convertible bonds with
principal amounts of US$100 million due on 20 November 2017 bearing interest
of 6% per annum which is payable semi-annually (the “Convertible Bonds”) and
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Issuance of senior notes due 2019

Subsequent to the year end and on 22 January 2016, the Company subsequently
issued a 3-year senior notes with principal amounts of US$150 million due on
22 January 2019 bearing interest of 8.5% per annum which is payable semi-
annually (the “Senior Notes 2019"). The Senior Notes 2019 achieved at a lower
coupon than the Senior Notes 2018 reflects certain market interests in our 3-year
USD notes. The Senior Notes 2019 are also listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong.

Net Debts and Gearing
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents of the Group increased by HK$605.5 million
to HK$1,469.5 million (2014: HK$864.0 million).

Net gearing, representing net debt over tangible net assets (net assets less
intangible assets and goodwill), decreased by 6 pp to 54% (2014: 60%) on a
combined effect of increased total equity by HK$9,888.9 million as a result of
enlarged share capital and increased net debt by HK$5,028.4 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERBENRRDMN
Financial Position Bk
Consolidated net assets
FeEERHE
HK$million 15,000 14,547
BERET
CAGR HEFIERESI%
10,000 212%
5,000 4,658
0
2013 2014 2015
2015 2014
Gearing BfRLEE 20154 20144
Net debt to tangible net assets FEBHANEEFELEX 54% 60%
Current ratio A En L & 1.9 1.4

Hsin Chong is a traditional building construction company with thin asset base.  FTERIABEEER EBMNEREFEE LT 12010
At the end of 2010, the total assets and net assets were about HK$2.5 billion 4K - & & 4 E M B EF{E D 5l A7 #2,500,000,000
and HK$0.8 billion respectively. Consolidated total assets and net assets of the 7T & /% #800,000,0007T * 7 & & 742015512 A31 B K47
Group reached HK$37.2 billion and HK$14.5 billion as at 31 December 2015, & B EMAE N E EFED B A8 %37,200,000,0007T & 74
increased by 15 times and 18 times respectively when comparing to 2010. % 14,500,000,0007T * 20104 % Bl 3% A0154F k1865 1
Through the acquisitions of properties in Foshan, Taian, Guangzhou and Tianjin 2015 FEAR BRI A EE L~ T - BN R AR Y 1% -
completed during 2015, the Group successfully strengthened its asset base and ~ AKEKINZETEEEMWIEATEEAER ZEL
expanded its balance sheet, signifying the transformation of the Group from a  SEERAKRERERERELN AL TLGAMESLE - F
pure construction contractor to a diversified integrated property conglomerate. &Y AR EEFEL R RRB L RREFHENRE 3
Both net debt to tangible net assets ratio and current ratio improved comparing ~ BARER/KFEESREENBR T  EERLRE RS ELE
with last year, indicating the overall improvement of leverage and liquidity amid 88 B Fei s -

the higher level of indebtedness than that of last year.
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Property Property &
Development Facility

Summary of Financial Position BEARINE Construction ~ &Investment ~ Management Corporate Total
(in HKS million) (BEEET) BE DEBERRE DERBEEE Tl it
Current Assets mEEE
Properties under development BRAME - 16,808 - - 16,808
Receivable and others FEUCR T S H A 3398 1,001 805 38 5,242
Bank and cash balances BORREER 913 553 130 = 1,5%

4311 18,362 935 38 23,646
Current Liabilities pid Vi=A
Bank loans (including revolving loans)* BOER (BEBRER) (605) (953) (210) (915) (2,683)
Other borrowings HifEE = (2,401) = = (2,401)
Convertible bonds AR ES - - = (544) (544)
Payables and others FERTBR IR E A (3,645) (1,869) (643) (206) (6,363)

(4,250) (5,223) (853) (1,665) (11,991)
Non-current Assets/(Liabilities) kRBHEE/(AR)
Leasehold land and building HETHRET - 506 - - 506
Investment properties REME - 10,718 3 = 10,721
Intangibles EVEE 4 23 91 = 118
Tax indemnification assets HERELE = 1,868 = = 1,868
Bank loans — due after 1 year* RITER——FRIH (83) (948) (84) - (1,115)
Senior notes BEZE - - - (2,276) (2.276)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) EREHBEAETE/ 15 (7,233) (12) 4 (7,226)

(BEFHE)
Others Htt 67 26 3 - 296
3 5,160 1 (2,272) 2,892
Net Assets BERE 64 18,299 83 (3.899) 14,547
# Classified according to repayment schedule. # BIREREREERD
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31 December 31 December

2015 2014 Change
Extract of liabilities (in HK$ million) 20155 20144
AEREBE(E®EERL) 12A31H 12A31H 23)
Bank loans RITER 3,798 3,436 +362
Other borrowings HMEE 2,401 - +2,401
Senior notes BEEE 2,276 = +2,276
Convertible bonds and derivatives AR EERITETF AR 751 = +751
Interest bearing notes £ - 155 -155

9,226 3,591 +5,635

During 2015, about HK$3.2 billion of entrusted loans and HK$370 million
of bank loan were assumed upon the acquisition of Foshan, Shandong and
Guangzhou —-Xiyang Computer city. As the entrusted loans carried high interest
cost, the Company has put in the effort to partially refinance the loans through
the issue of convertible bonds. As of 31 December 2015, the total debts were
HK$9.2 billion, increased by HK$5.6 billion from 2014 of which HK$362 million
were from bank loans, HK$2.4 billion were from entrusted loans, HK$751 million
were from convertible bonds and HK$2.3 billion were from senior notes issued
in May 2015. Total bank borrowings were HK$3.8 billion of which HK$1.9 billion
were revolving loan subject to annual review basis, HK$788 million were term
loan repayable within 1 year and HK$1.1 billion were term loan repayable over 1
year.

The Group continues to practise prudent financial management in an effort
to lengthen maturity profile of debt and to reduce overreliance on any single
financing platform through the expansion of funding sources.

Funding cost

Interest on the Group’s bank borrowings is mainly charged at a spread to HIBOR
or PBOC rate, ranged from 1.6% to 7.1% (2014: from 1.6% to 8.2%). Interest
on the other borrowings which are entrusted loans acquired from acquisition of
PRC property projects is on fixed rate term, ranged from 2.5% to 14.0% (2014:
nil).

With regard to the current portfolio of businesses, the management expects that
the Group's financial requirements will be met by a combination of issuance of
new equity shares and debt financings. Hsin Chong would continue to manage
its financial position and maintain sufficient working capital and liquidity to take
advantage of any business opportunities and prepare for economic or operational
challenges.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group pledged its investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$8,951 million (2014: HK$1,606 million), leasehold land
and building with carrying amount of HK$506 million (2014: HK$506 million),
properties under development with carrying amount of HK$12,245 million (2014:
HK$230 million), stocks of properties with carrying amount of HK$581 million
(2014: HK$631 million) and bank balances of HK$127 million (2014: HK$30
million), and its equity interest in certain subsidiaries, as collaterals to various banks
and financial institutions to secure its borrowings.
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3,200,000,0007T A £ 5T B 5 & %8 #370,000,0007T A9 £R
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BRBTABRESAZEERHERE -EHZ2015F12
A318 & E 820144 18 075 ¥55,600,000,0007T £ 75
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland of China with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in local currencies. Foreign exchange
risk exposure arising from the Group's operation in Macau and the Mainland
of China is monitored by proper synchronisation of receipts and payments in
different operating currencies. As at 31 December 2015, the Group does not use
any derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk
(2014: nil).

The use of derivative financial instruments was strictly monitored and primarily
used for management of the Group’s interest rate and foreign currency
exposures.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of contracted but not provided for capital expenditures on properties under
development amounted to HK$1,805 million (2014: HK$2,362 million).

The above commitments and planned expenditures will be funded by Group's
internal financial resources including its surplus cash of HK$1,469.5 million, cash
flow from operation, as well as bank and other financings.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

Human Capital Investment

Advocating “Social Responsibility, Contribution to the Community”
The Group strives to be an organization that cares about the society and its staff.
In recognition of its achievements in community services and being a caring
employer, the Group wins a variety of awards: the 10 Years Plus Caring Company
Logo in 2015 by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service, the CSR Advocate
Mark by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (2015), the Family Friendly
Employer by the Family Council (2013-2014), the Corporate Citizenship Logo by
the Hong Kong Productivity Council (2015) and the Social Caring Pledge by the
Social Enterprise Research Institute (2015).

To build corporate culture that embraces corporate social responsibility, the Group
encourages staff to join a wide range of company organized charitable activities
and voluntary services actively, including Neighborhood Rice Giving Scheme,
elderly care home visit, Walk for Millions, Blood Donation, MTR Race Walking and
Construction Industry Sports cum Charity Fun Day, Dress Casual Day and Love
Teeth Day.
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Human Resources

Staff Training and Organization Development

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 8,169 full time
staff, which included staff in construction, property development, property
management and related services. They are employed in Hong Kong, Macau and
Chinese Mainland.

The Group regards its staff as one of its key assets and invests significant effort
and attention to the selection, training and personal development of its staff. The
Group has been awarded as “Manpower Developer” in the “ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme” launched by the Employees Retraining Board since
2013 recognizing its continued efforts and outstanding performance in the
development of its workforce.

The Group is committed to developing its staff through the provision of training
and development opportunities, which aims to enhance staff productivity and
facilitate them to build their career path. Since the establishment of “Hsin
Chong Training Centre” in 2014, it provides comprehensive training programmes
including various talks and workshops delivered by senior management staff
and professors from different universities. Over 30 types of training courses were
conducted providing over 5,000 attendance hours of training for more than
400 staff during the year ended 31 December 2015. Moreover, the Group's
training programmes are designed and tailor-made to increase the knowledge of
its staff and fill skill gaps identified during performance appraisals. Furthermore,
the enhancement of Learning Management System (LMS) facilitates staff a
user-friendly approach for online enrollment and course revision. Its overall
training objectives are to enhance the personal productivity of its staff and to
identify their individual interests in order to prepare their future roles and enable
them to make greater contributions to the success of the Group business. Besides
formal training programmes, the Group also provides comprehensive and relevant
training and self-learning opportunities to staff such as on-the-job training and
educational sponsorships.

Regular in-house seminars and site visits have been organized, for all levels of
staff, to increase their technical and corporate knowledge. These trainees acquired
essential business knowledge and management skills through well planned job
rotations within the Group's core business units and corporate offices.
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For the building and construction business, developing young engineers and
supervisory staff is an essential requirement. Trainings have been provided to both
university and non-university graduated young engineers. In addition, the Group
also recruits secondary school graduates who are interested in the construction
field as apprentice by providing them on-the-job training and releasing them from
work to take designated courses for completing their apprenticeship. Besides,
the Group has joined the Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme since March
2014 for recruiting and providing training to levelling staff in the industry. A
graduate trainee club was formed few years ago to encourage fellowship among
all our trainees. Social and training programmes were organized regularly to
improve staff commitment and sense of belonging within the Group. Senior
management staff and seasoned construction managerial staff were also trained
to take up the role of mentorship to further help the development programmes
of the young engineers and site supervisory staff respectively. A number of
in-house staff development programmes for various staff disciplines have also
been established. The Group has been making effort and having contribution to
train the youngsters to become technically competent and professionally qualified
in the construction industry.

Every year, a number of recruitment talks for fresh graduated engineers are held
in various universities in Hong Kong for implanting new blood to the construction
field. Promotion and salary reviews will be conducted every year to ensure
alignment with industry norms and retain good performers. These are important
tools to retain talent in Hong Kong's expanding construction business with
limitations in the talent pool of suitable, experienced and qualified people.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages that are determined with
reference to prevailing salary levels in the market and individual performance.
Discretionary bonuses are granted to staff based on their individual performance
as well as the Group's business performance. The Group has a wide range
of insurance coverage, including medical insurance, life insurance and travel
insurance, to staff.

Besides offering competitive remuneration packages, the Group is committed
to promoting family-friendly employment policies and practices, including the
implementation of Five Day Work Week and a series of family-friendly activities,
such as Autumn BBQ cum Family Fun Day, to create a pro-family culture and
environment. From June 2014, the Group was awarded the “Family-Friendly
Employers Award” by the Family Council, recognizing the Group's efforts
in promoting and supporting a culture of loving families in the community.
Moreover, the "HCCG Social Club” led by the management was established in
2014 to enhance team spirits and encourage staff from different departments to
join company events together. It provides staff the opportunities to “play hard”
and pursue the hobbies after work which advocates the proper attitude of healthy
lifestyles.
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Profiles of Directors

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung

BS¢, RPE, CEng, FHKIE, FHKIHT, MICE

(aged 68)

Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (“Ir. Choi”) is an Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is a
member of each of the Executive Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ir. Choi is also an Executive Director and the Chairman of
Synergis Holdings Limited (”Synergis”). Synergis is a subsidiary
of the Company, whose shares are listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Ir. Choi is a fellow and the senior vice president of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers (“HKIE”). He is the chairman
of the Administration Board, and an ex-officio member
of the Planning Committee of HKIE, the vice chairman of
Council of China’s Foreign Trade of the China Council for the
Promotion of International Trade, a member of the Engineers
Registration Board, and a fellow and a council member of the
Hong Kong Institution of Highways and Transportation. He
is also a member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
since 1 April 2016.

Ir. Choi is @ member of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
UK, a chartered engineer of the UK, a registered professional
engineer of Hong Kong, a director of Engineering Forum
Limited, a member of the Departmental Advisory Committee
for the Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and a director of the
Joint Professional Centre Limited to represent HKIE.

Ir. Choi joined the Group in August 2009 as Assistant
Managing Director and has been subsequently promoted to
his current positions. He has over 45 years of multi-dimensional
and multi-functional experience in construction industry across
contracting and client organisations in Hong Kong, Chinese
Mainland, Taiwan, Macau and overseas. Before joining the
Group, he was the general manager of the Kowloon-Canton
Railway Corporation and MTR Corporation Limited, responsible
for the design and construction of various new railway lines.

Ir. Choi graduated from the University of Aston in Birmingham,
United Kingdom with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Civil

Engineering.

* for identification purposes only
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Profiles of Directors

BEEZEN

Mr. LUI Chun Pong
BIRBEE

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. LUI Chun Pong

BA, MAcc, LLM, MBA (Executive), FCRA, FCCA, ATIHK, CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS
(aged 47)

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (“Mr. Lui”) is an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also a member of
the Executive Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lui joined the Group in 2010 as Group
Financial Controller. He was promoted to Finance Director of
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited in 2014, to Acting
Chief Financial Officer of the Group in July 2015, and has been
further promoted to his current positions in September 2015.

Mr. Lui is also an Executive Director of Synergis. Synergis is a
subsidiary of the Company, whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lui is responsible for overseeing the finance and accounting
operations, budgetary control, group financial control and
cashflow management. He has over 24 years of experience
in corporate accounting, financing and tax administration in
the real estate business like property development, property
investment and property management, in addition to company
secretarial practices of Hong Kong listed companies. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Lui held senior positions of a number of
Hong Kong companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Lui obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts from the University
of Hong Kong, a Master degree of Laws in the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of Accountancy
from Charles Sturt University in Australia and an Executive
Master degree of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant
and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong, and a Chartered
Certified Accountant and a Chartered Secretary in the United
Kingdom.

Mr. Lui also serves the community through participation of
promoting sports, and youth and students’ affairs in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lui was a baseball coach and was appointed as a
team secretary and a deputy delegate leader of Hong Kong
Women's Baseball Team to join the Women's Baseball World
Cup in 2006 and in 2014 respectively. For the public services
in youth and students’ affairs, Mr. Lui is a leader of various
leadership mentoring programmes in Hong Kong United Youth
Association, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Lui was a director of Hong Kong United
Youth Association in 2014/2015 and is currently a member of
Hong Kong Student Affairs Sub-committee of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Executive Director and Director of Mergers and
Acquisitions

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun

MBA, MA, FCPA (aged 46)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (“Mr. Wu") is an Executive Director
and the Director of Mergers and Acquisitions of the Company.
He is also a member of the Executive Committee and a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wu joined
the Group in July 2014 as the Associate Director of Corporate
Finance, and has been promoted to his current position in June
2015, responsible for all merger and acquisition projects from
due diligence, negotiation of purchase agreement, handling
regulatory approvals and financial sourcing to the smooth
operation after merger or acquisition of the projects.

Mr. Wu has more than 20 years of experience in financial
reporting, investment proposal appraisal, financial due
diligence, insolvency, litigation support and forensic accounting
with major corporations and consultancy firms.

Mr. Wu was conferred a Bachelor of Business Administration
and Master of Arts in Comparative and Public History from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Wu also serves as a council
member of the Construction Industry Council and an appeal
board panel member of the Urban Renewal Authority.
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Mr. ZHOU Wei
AREE

Executive Director
Mr. ZHOU Wei
(aged 62)

Mr. ZHOU Wei (“Mr. Zhou") is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is also a member of the Executive Committee
and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Zhou obtained a degree from the School of Public Finance
of Liaoning Institute of Finance & Economics (currently known
as "Dongbei University of Finance & Economics”) in 1978.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhou served as a Senior
Accountant in the Government Offices Administration of the
State Council (EIFSBT# B EEEIRD) . Mr. Zhou previously
occupied senior management positions in various private
companies and was responsible for overseeing financial and
overall management of those companies.

Mr. Zhou possesses extensive experience in finance and
corporate management in Hong Kong and China with
prominent business relationships.

He was one of the vendors in the sale of the New Times Plaza
to the Company as disclosed in the circular of the Company of
30 May 2013.
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Non-executive Chairman
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
(aged 47)

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan (“Mr. Lin"), was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from 23 May 2015, and has been
further appointed as the Non-executive Chairman since 19
June 2015.

Mr. Lin is the Honorary Chairman of World Association of Small
and Medium Enterprises (5 A/ NEZEHE ), Permanent
Standing Vice President of China Foreign Trade Council (R
¥HNEHIBEE), and President of Outlets Branch of China
General Chamber of Commerce (N IR 284 © BIFK
Hr5 &) . Mr. Lin has over 20 years of experience in large
enterprise operation and management as well as investment
and operation of mega-sized projects.

He received the Commandery of Sant'Agata Honour and was
awarded the “Prize of Most Innovative Real Estate Figures in
China for the Year”(FEIFE & AR NbEAMALE),
“Prize for Business Leaders in China for the Year"” ( & Bl 4F 2 7
2 4BHAEE) and “Prize for Qutstanding Brand Innovators in
China” (H Bl fn k2 IR A K 58

In 2013 and 2015 respectively, the Company completed two
very substantial acquisitions in respect of: (a) the commercial
property of New Times Plaza in Beijing, China whereby Mr. Lin
was the sole beneficial owner of one of the vendors; and (b)
the property located in Foshan, China whereby the vendor was
a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lin. He was
also the warrantor in this transaction.

FHITER
HEEERE
(HBEA75%)

MBS A ([MR%AE]) - B2015%F5AH
23HMBEZEAIENITES - WH2015
F6AOBBER T AIFMITER -

MELREHRPPEEHERET
& HEEINE IR R KA EERIE
ERMTEREBRACRBRNNE
R - MALREBE0FALELS
EIERBAIIARRE RBFER-

B TN THD ) SR BIA K
[hEFERARIHEAYAKLE] -
[hEFERHERMALRE ] AR [HE R
TR R GEH AIREE ] FIRER -

H2013FF12015%F  NA R DRI T
LATR{ESES EAUBEETE : (U iENL
RPEERZERAMENFTERY S
N MEEREEXGHEP—REHTZ
W—EREAA ROUWEELLAR G
WMz SERSH2EH AMEE
2EEREB AR - MELENAEE
RBPZIREBE A

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
HEESE

BEEZEN

FEERERERAT zmsﬁy 41



.3

Profiles of Directors

BEEZEN

Mr. YAN lJie
RfRELE

Non-executive Director
Mr. YAN lJie
(aged 52)

Mr. YAN Jie (“Mr. Yan") has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director since 30 May 2014.

Mr. Yan, joined Tewoo Group Co., Ltd.* (K:Z¥EEE
BBRAF) (“Tewoo Group”) (formerly known as Tianjin
Administration Bureau of Materials and Tianjin Material &
Equipment Group Corporation, being a substantial shareholder
of the Company) in October 1983, and held positions in the
finance department, audit department and assets department,
and served as the head of corporate development department
of Tewoo Group.

Mr. Yan has extensive management experience in finance,
audit, investment and strategic planning and has presided
over or participated in a number of domestic and overseas
substantial merger & acquisition and reorganization projects.

Mr. Yan is currently the board chairman of Tianjin Property
Development Co., Ltd. (being a subsidiary of Tewoo Group),
an executive director of Tewoo Investment Co., Limited and
a director of various subsidiaries of Tewoo Group. He is also
a director of Palabora Mining Company Limited (listed in
Johannesburg Stock Exchange, South Africa, and delisted in
2014).

Mr. Yan graduated from Party School of the Central Committee
of CPC with a post-graduate degree majoring in economic
management, and holds professional qualifications of
accountant, senior economist and senior occupation manager.

* for identification purposes only
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Non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Lei
(aged 32)

Mr. CHEN Lei (“Mr. Chen”) has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director since 23 May 2015.

Mr. Chen joined Tewoo Import and Export Trade Co., Ltd.* (X
EYEEHOZEHER A, a subsidiary of Tewoo Group,
in January 2015 as the deputy general manager. Mr. Chen
served as an officer of the Beijing court system and held various
positions such as the deputy department head of the legal
affair department of Tianjin Er-shang Group Co., Ltd.* (K& =
EEBARQA) .

He has extensive experience in the fields of corporate legal
affair, risk prevention and control. Mr. Chen has been
redesignated as the deputy department head of corporate
development department of Tewoo Group in July 2015.

Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in management from the
Beijing University of Chemical Technology (1t 51k T A£2)
and a master degree in law from the Tsinghua University (&
#KE)  He has obtained various professional qualifications
such as legal qualification (Mainland China) and corporate legal
counsel.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau
EXREE

-

Non-executive Director
Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau
(aged 49)

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”) has been appointed as
a Non-executive Director since 23 May 2015. He is also a
member of Audit Committee.

Mr. Chui is an executive director of China Energy Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 228), and a non-executive
director of Ngai Shun Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246) and
DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559) respectively,
the shares of which are all listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also an executive director of Hong Kong
Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock code:
8085) and was an independent non-executive director of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), the
shares of which are all listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.

He has over 15 years’ experiences in accounting and auditing
fields.
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Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
MBA, BEc, CPA (aged 72)

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (“Mr. Cheng”) has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director since 1 January 2014.
He is also the chairmen of both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Cheng has extensive experiences in banking, finance and
investment fields. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Cheng was a director of Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, a company listed in the Stock Exchange,
from August 2006 to June 2014 and a director of Chi Cheung
Investment Company, Limited (now known as LT Holdings
Limited), a company listed in the Stock Exchange, from 1997 to
2000.

He has held senior management positions in companies in
Hong Kong and overseas, as well as several companies listed
in the Stock Exchange. He has also been involved in private
consulting working in the PRC and Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a Master's degree in
Business Administration.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. GAO Jingyuan
BRERE

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. GAO Jingyuan
(aged 63)

Mr. GAO Jingyuan (“Mr. Gao”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director since 9 May 2014. He is
also a member of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Gao obtained a bachelor degree in History from Beijing
Normal University in 1985. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Gao held various positions in the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, namely secretary of the committee,
director of the administration department, officer of the
services centre (at the rank of deputy director-general) as well
as an inspector of the education department.

Mr. Gao served as deputy secretary of All-China Federation
of Returned Overseas Chinese (1% 2 B iF B = B4
&) and as director of its Economics Department since 1994.
During which, he also served as the chairman of China Hualian
International Service Company ( H B 2= B B8 B AR 75 56 & 2
7)), the chairman and general manager of China Business
Consulting Company (Bl {24 & 552 ), the vice
president of Beijing Huagiao Building Co., Ltd. (It REBAE
AR 7]), and the vice president of Hong Kong Federation of
Returned Overseas Chinese Company ( R BIfBEtE B N a]) .

Since 1995, Mr. Gao has been responsible for overseeing
the overall management and financial operation of those
companies, and has possessed extensive practical experience
in operation and governance in both public and joint-stock
companies in China.

46/HSN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BUFEHTEE
ERERE
(B F635%)

EmEELE ([&h4E])B2014F589
AREZTABIERNTESZ -HINBE
HSMEEGZKE-

= E 985 F B S 4L AT &5 K 2
SEEEBLEBMPINARARR
S R B E B SN RIBRAL 2
BEHBEEZER THRAER #ER
BRLOETE(RAER RBELIHE
AR R AR B -

1994518 - HELE BN ERFFRE
EEME SRETEETFHESE kT
B (5 Bt B A = B B PR AT B ZE B
B REHA AREER PELEL
BRALREERFLLE ILRER
AREERAREESR  URHEEH
BRNFRIEER

R1995F LR mtE—HEEBEBES
BANeREEE T IERYEEE TR
BEAERAIERBRNDERAFNEER
R FEYENERER-



Profiles of Directors

BEEZEN

Independent Non-executive Director
Ms. LEE Jai Ying
(aged 59)

Ms. LEE Jai Ying (“"Ms. Lee”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director since 9 May 2014. She is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. Lee obtained a master's degree of Medicine from lJilin
University. She has over 30 years' experience in corporate
management. She is the chairman of Han Sheng Tang
Herbal Technologies Co., Limited, specialising in research,
manufacturing and modernisation of traditional Chinese
medicine.

She is a Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and a member of
the 9th to 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.
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Independent Non-executive Director BLUFBTEF
Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest BEEE
(aged 80) (H4805%)

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (“Mr. Kwok”) has been B384 ([25E4|) B2015%F11 A8
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director since 18 18 HHREZ T AB I IEMITEE BN
November 2015. He is also a member of the Audit Committee. AEZZEE/KE -

Mr. Kwok studied engineering in Hong Kong and law in the ZSALEEHREBRELARTREL R
United Kingdom. He practised engineering construction in BN EAREER - 1A 1980F Al A& S
Hong Kong before 1980. Thereafter he practiced construction Ti2RRENEAE -HEAEE B
law in the United Kingdom, Australia and Hong Kong. Mr. JMREBEZELEZNEAE -BEAS
Kwok is a retired chartered civil engineer, lawyer and arbitrator.  RARAGFFF LR TA2EM ~ A0S PES -

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest
BLHREE
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Profiles of the Group’s Key Personnel

Construction Business

Ir. Paul LEE Kai Hung (“Ir. Lee"”), BEng, MASc, PEng, MCSCE, RPE, CEng, FHKIE, MICE,
aged 59, is the Managing Director of each of Hsin Chong Construction Company
Limited (“HCC"), Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited (“HCA") and HCCG
Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ir. Lee was appointed as the Deputy Managing
Director of HCC in July 2015 and has been promoted to his current position in
HCC in October 2015.

Ir. Lee is responsible for the management of the construction and related
businesses within the Group. Ir. Lee joined the Group in 2010 and has more than
36 years of experience in civil engineering and building construction.

Ir. Lee is a registered professional engineer. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior executive with
a leading Hong Kong contractor.

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY (“Mr. Buckley”), BSc (Civil) CEng, MICE, MHKIE, aged 67, is
a director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Buckley is the Executive Project Director of the construction management
business of the Group in Macau. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 46
years of experience in the field of building construction and civil engineering.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi Keung (“Mr. Chin"), BSc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, RPE, aged 57, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chin is responsible for the overall management of the Building Division in
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 32 years of experience
in the field of structural design and project management. Mr. Chin is a member
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Industry Schemes Committee and has stepped
down from the post of vice president of the Hong Kong Construction Association.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE (“Mr. Clarke”), MRICS, aged 56, is the commercial
director of Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited, Hsin Chong Engineering
(Macau) Limited and Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Company Limited, the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Macau. Mr. Clarke joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 34 years of experience in providing commercial and technical support in the
construction field.

Mr. Alan Clive EVANS (“"Mr. Evans”), MA, FRICS, ACIAb, RPS(QS), aged 54, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Evans is responsible for overseeing all commercial, legal, insurance and
procurement matters for the whole construction business. He joined the Group in
2011 as Group Commercial Manager and has more than 30 years of property and
construction management experience with major corporations and international
consultants in the UK, Qatar, Macau and Hong Kong.
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Profiles of the Group’s Key Personnel

SBRECEN

Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho Ning (“Mr. Fung”), BSc (Eng), CEng, RPE, FIMECHE, MCIBSE,
MHKIE, aged 63, is the managing director of Hsin Chong Aster Building Services
Limited ("HC Aster”), the electrical and mechanical engineering specialists of
the Group, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Fung has
the primary responsibility in managing the business of HC Aster. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 39 years of experience in the engineering field as
consultant, client’s representative and contractor in Hong Kong, United Kingdom
and Australia. Prior to joining the Group, for over 17 years, Mr. Fung was engaged
in the general management of companies in Australia and Hong Kong before
acting as the general manager of Jardine and Cathay Pacific group of companies.

Mr. James LEE Kok Foo (“Mr. Lee"”), BEng, MHKIE, aged 64, is a director of
HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee
is responsible for the business development for the Building Division, including
managing the business development and operation of Design and Build Projects.
He joined the Group in 1981 and has over 41 years of experience in the field of
electrical and mechanical engineering and building construction management.

Mr. Richard Anthony MYRANS (“Mr. Myrans”), Beng, CEng, FICE, MiStructf, MHKIE,
aged 59, is a director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Myrans is a director (Civil Engineering) and is responsible for the
civil engineering business of the Group within Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
2008 and has 36 years experience in the field of civil engineering.

Mr. Desmond SZE Man Sang ("Mr. Sze"), MHKIE, RPE (CVL), aged 55, is a
director of HCC. Mr. Sze is responsible for part of the building business of the
Group within Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2015 and has 34 years of
experience in the field of civil and building construction.

Mr. Augustine TANG Man Yee (“Mr. Tang”), MSc, MCIOB, MAIB, MHKICM, aged
58, is a director of HCC, HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited,
Ever Work Construction Limited, HCCG Building & Civil Engineering (Saipan)
Limited and Zhuhai Henggin New Area HCCG Construction Management Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Tang is responsible for the civil engineering and building in Macau. He
joined the Group in 1976 and has over 39 years of experience in the field of
building construction and project management of the mega construction projects
in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shenzhen and Macau.

Property Development and Hospitality (Hong Kong and

International) Business

Mr. Alfred Kwong Fai YEUNG (“Mr. Yeung”), B4, DipArch, DMS, MSc, RIBA, MCM,
MAPM, aged 56, joined the Group in February 2016 as the Managing Director
responsible for developing real estate, hospitality, and aged care business of the
Group in Hong Kong and overseas.

Mr. Yeung has more than 30 years of experience in architecture and planning,
real estate and project management. He has worked on property development
projects in Europe, North America, Asia Pacific and Australasia.

Mr. Yeung has built real estate networks around the globe over the years
and has rich experience in land assembly, project feasibility and incubation,
masterplanning, design, joint-venture partnership formation, project
management, as well as sales, marketing and disposal.
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Mr. Yeung has held directorate appointments in a number of multi-national
companies. He was the Managing Director of Great Eagle Development and
Project Management Limited before joining the Group, looking after over US$2.5
billion hospitality and real estate investments spreading across New York, Los
Angeles, San Francisco, Toronto, London, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Dailin, Sydney,
Melbourne and Auckland.

Mr. Yeung was also the Group Property Development Director for Melco
International and has built award winning hospitality destinations in China
and with investment works in the Philippines, Korea, Kazakhstan and Russia.
Previously, Mr. Yeung was also the General Manager for property development
in Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation where he was responsible for the
Corporation’s US$30 billion development portfolio encompassing 20 projects
along the rail lines in Hong Kong.

Mr. Yeung is a chartered architect by profession, qualified at Liverpool John
Moores University and received a Master's degree in Construction Management
from University of Bath. He has also received executive management training
from Harvard Law School, Franklin Covey Leadership Programme and Richard
Ivey Business School. Mr. Yeung is a chartered member of Royal Institute of British
Architects, a founding member and the Chair of Education Sub-committee of its
Hong Kong Chapter. He is also a member of Urban Lands Institute, Chartered
Management Institute and Association for Project Management in UK. Mr. Yeung
is also appointed by The Chinese University of Hong Kong as Adjunct Associates
Professor.

Mr. Jimmy CHAN Chun Ming (“Mr. Chan”), BASc, MSc, aged 58, is the
Managing Director of Hsin Chong Strategic Investment (International) Limited. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the investment in hospitality and tourism related projects
for the Group. Mr. Chan possesses over 30 years of experiences in the area of
finance, corporate finance, fund management and investment in the real estate
and hospitality sectors.

He held senior positions for various international financial institutions and hotel
groups in the Asia Pacific region, including managing director for Starwood Hotels
& Resorts, responsible for hotel investment and development business. He was
chief financial officer of a Hong Kong listed company, which is a hotel investments
and services company and sat on the board of a hotel investment company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. Currently he sits on the audit committee and
the board as non-executive director of a hotel REIT listed on The Stock Exchange
of Singapore.

Mr. Chan graduated from the University of British Columbia with a Bachelor of
Applied Science, Civil Engineering and from the University of Missouri-Columbia
with a Master of Science in Construction Management.
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Project Directors (Construction Business)

Mr. Chris CHAU Chi Wai (“Mr. Chau”), BSc (Hons), MHKIE, RPE, aged 54, is an
assistant director of Building Division of HCC. He is responsible for construction
projects, including M+ Museum, Dragons Range, redevelopment of Hong Kong
Sports Institute and Shek Mun HSBC Data Centre. Mr. Chau joined the Group in
2007. He has 31 years of experience in the construction industry.

Mr. Benjamin CHOW Tai Wang (“Mr. Chow"), BSc (Civil Engineering), aged 63,
has been promoted as an assistant director of HCC in 2015 and is the head of
civil projects operations. He is responsible for project management, tendering and
business development. Mr. Chow joined the Group in 2002. He has over 37 years
of experience in foundation, site formation, infrastructure, structural steel, road &
drainage, marine works, demolition, building and contracting business.

Mr. CHOI Man Fai ("Mr. Choi"), BSc, FHKIE, FCIOB, FHKICM, MICE, MRICS, RPE, aged
54, is a senior project director of HCC. He is responsible for managing all aspects
of the construction operations in projects under his control including the MTRC
Shatin to Central Link Contract No. SCL1109 — Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa
Wan Stations and Tunnels. Mr. Choi joined the Group in 2009. He has over 27
years of experience in managing and administering both Government-funded
and privately-sponsored infrastructure projects comprising civil, building and
foundation jobs.

Mr. Frankie LAM Kam Keung (“Mr. Lam”), BSc (Eng), MA (Arb & DR), CEng, MICE,
RPE, MHKIE, MCSCEHKB, aged 47, is a senior project director of HCC. He is primarily
responsible for project management as well as tender preparation and business
development. Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1994. He has over 25 years of
experience in both consulting and contracting business on a wide spectrum of
projects including infrastructure, site formation, roads & drainage, foundation,
deep excavation, geotechnical and ground investigation field works. He is also
appointed as the Authorized Signatory under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123) supervising site formation and foundation works.

Mr. Christopher TANG Sik Ming (“Mr. Tang”), BSc (Hons), MCIOB, MHKIE, MASCE,
MHKICM, MCMI, RPE, MASI, aged 61, is a senior project director of HCC. He is
responsible for the construction management of various projects: Sai Wan
Terrace, Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital, Hong Kong Housing Authority’s housing
developments at Anderson Road and Tung Chung, and HKUST, etc. Mr. Tang
joined the Group in 2011. He has over 36 years of experience in building
construction management and administration.

Mr. Simon YIU Chi Kin (“Mr. Yiu"), BSc, MSc, MHKIE, MHKICM, MCIOB, MRICS, aged
47, is a senior project director of HCC. He is responsible for construction project
management and training programme of young engineers in the Hong Kong
Buildings Division. Mr. Yiu joined the Group in August 1991 as Graduate Building
Engineer. He has over 24 years of experience in building project planning and
programming, cost control, contract administration and overall construction
management.

52/HSN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

IHEMEE (EEER)

RAEEEE ([FELL]) 8 (Hons), MHKIE RPE » 33 F545% »
ANELERMETRESNYREES - KA TSREER
BIEMREIEYE R L ESEESREEER
KMOEZRITAPIEIEF O B AER2007F MAREH -
BREBEEBRBINF 2R

BXEFEE ([FAE]) @ BSc (Cvil Engineering) * 38 F635% * 1A
20155 BETT RIS L ERNBRES KR AT
BEREBE EE - HARBATE KREILIEREBER-

S ER2002F IIA R EE A E T IR - s AR H

- WA BRREOKOBETIR OFF & REE
¥BAE HEEB3TF KR

BB ([ESH]) BSc FHKIE FCIOB, FHKICM, MICE,
MRICS, RPE" IREF5ARS - RITEEEMMRRIBEBE -EE
EREEBETENEEREIE HMEENIBE BEAR
DHERRGEESORFIHESCLIN09—REE K+ IVEHE
%k Ko B 3 T A2 o 2250 4 20094 I AR £ [ o (R B
B NFAEY)ERZBEEMNIALR B2EkitETRS
A HHEIFZEERITRER-

PRI E ([ ]) - BSc (Eng), MA (Arb & DR), CEng, MICE,
RPE, MHKIE, MCSCEHKB * B AT 55, BFTE & EMM=RIEER
ME-HFITEEEHEEEE RIZTEREBERE -ME
ER994F MAREE - R RAAEEB A E - %A
BSF 2 BEESBEAMIEE  BIEEE - MEF
BOEREIK WETRE RE SXRITERMEATE
T E IRIVER T REEMEN (1235 (IREEE
AN BEEBMETERETR.

BBSRBASEHE (B854 )  BSc (Hons), MCIOB, MHKIE, MASCE,
MHKICM, MCMI, RPE, MASI 33 F615%, - A3 8 & ERA S A8
BRE-HaEREE ZEELER AEREZES
ZERBMNEBEEERE ULRBARBAZZIHEANE
EEBETE-BER201MFEINAREER - FREFEE
B RITHT EHEAE36F &5 -

BRI ([WkoLE]) » 8BS MSc MHKIE, MHKICM, MCIOB,
MRICS  BREFATRR - RIECSERNSREBLAE -HER
EREFRESMINEEEEEE  URIE LR
IERIR - Bh R E M99 F8 AU B ATIRZBEELENE D
MAREE - FEREFIHE KB RRE KAAZESH &4
EERBEEEEEFEERRMUFEZER -



Mr. Wayne CHAN Wai Kei (“Mr. Chan"), BSc (Arch), MIHEEM, ASHRAE, aged 60,
is a project director of HC Aster. He is responsible for Building Services project
management, tender preparation and business development. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in 2005. He has over 35 years of experience in the managing and
administering of both public and private sector E & M projects.

Business of the Mainland of China

Mr. LIN Hao Jun (“Mr. Lin"), aged 48, senior engineer, obtained a Doctor degree
in Management Science and Engineering and a Master degree in Industrial and
Civil Construction. He joined Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited as President in
2015.

As a leader and expert in the property development sector in China, Mr. Lin held
senior positions in various well-known real estate enterprises including Yintai
Land Group and Wanda Group, and created various excellent records in terms of
development, sales and business openings.

When he acted as regional Assistant to President of northern China in Wanda,
he was in charge of the 35 projects across the region, and realized annual sales
of RMB45 billion and recorded total annual construction area of 30 million sg.m..
When he acted as President of Yintai Land Group, rapid growth in annual sales
was realized: from RMB230 million to RMBE6 billion, and then to RMB8 billion;
meantime, a record in which 10 projects were opened for business within one
year was set up, realizing Yintai's No. 2 ranking nationwide by business.

Mr. Lin has a unique understanding of commercial real estate, and is especially
excellent at overall management of a group. He is also a director of China Institute
of Strategy and Management, as well as Standing Director of the Real Estate
Institute of Tsinghua University Alumni Association.

Ms. WAN Wen Ying (“Ms. Wan"), aged 70, joined Hsin Chong Holdings (China)
Limited as Senior Commercial Vice President in March 2016. She is also Chairman
of Hsin Chong (China) Business Management Company Limited*.

Ms. Wan has engaged in business operation and management for 40 years and
devoted herself to research and development of the business sector in China,
and accumulated rich experience in business management. Honoured as the
"originator of China's outlets”, she was the first to bring the outlets mode into
China, and she was also the planner and leader of the outlets business model
of the new generation. In recent years, as the general business advisor of Beijing
Capital Land, she led and directed in the opening and operation of Capital Land’s
projects in Fangshan, Wanning, Huzhou, and Kunshan, and explored a path for
developing outlets with Chinese characteristics.

Ms. Wan is also standing director of China General Chamber of Commerce, vice
president of China Commerce Association for General Merchandise, a member
of the Expert Committee of China General Chamber of Commerce, and honorary
president of Outlets Branch of China General Chamber of Commerce. Ms. Wan is
also a senior economist and senior corporate operator.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. WU Yonglong (“Mr. Wu"), aged 52, is a Senior Engineer. He obtained a
master’s degree in engineering management from Harbin Institute of Technology,
and a bachelor's degree of science in construction economics and management
from Chongging University. He joined Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited as
Vice President in 2015.

Mr. Wu previously acted as a senior executive at large SOEs including China
Construction First Building (Group) and Wanda Group as well as many well-
known real estate enterprises. Equipped with rich experience in engineering
management, cost management, enterprise administration, and real estate
investment and development, Mr. Wu is a reputable expert in the engineering
and real estate development sector in China. He participated in various large
construction projects such as China World Trade Center, and gained extended
long-term experience in overseas project contracting, and registered excellent
results in development, sales and business openings.

During his 17 years at China State Construction Engineering Corporation, he
accumulated rich experience in international projects management as general
manager of its international department. During his 12 years as a senior executive
at Wanda, he organized the construction of Beijing Wanda Plaza, Ningbo Wanda
Plaza, and Wanda Sanya Conrad Hotel. When Wanda Group’s Quality Conference
was held at its Ningbo company in 2008, Mr. Wu was honoured a special award.
Moreover, it only took 18 months for the opening of Sanya Conrad, which was
honoured the sole excellent project at Wanda's 2010 Annual Party. Mr. Wu
has unique understanding and extraordinary capability in the development and
construction of commercial property.

Mr. WANG Yue (“Mr. Wang”), aged 40, was graduated from Fudan University
in Shanghai, majored in Marketing under Business Administration. He joined Hsin
Chong Holdings (China) Limited as Vice President in 2016.

Mr. Wang is a senior expert in China’s commercial property and marketing. His
previous positions include General Manager for marketing in the northern China
at Wanda Group, vice president at Yintai Land Group, and Vice President at
Yifang Group. He has rich experience in marketing, brand management, capital
operation, and real estate business innovation. He managed tens of cities across
China, and realized sales of over RMB100 billion, with excellent achievements in
the relevant fields.

Mr. DING Mingliang (“Mr. Ding”), aged 48, was graduated from Tsinghua
University with a masters’ degree, majored in heating, ventilation and air
conditioning. He joined Hsin Chong (China) Business Management Company
Limited* as Executive Deputy General Manager in 2015 and is responsible for the
properties and engineering related business.

For many years Mr. Ding engaged in planning, investment attraction, and
operation management with commercial real estate projects. He has nearly 20
years' experience as a senior executive at well-known enterprises and commercial
property companies including GT Land Group, Saite Group, and Beijing Modern
Plaza, thus with comprehensive management capability in large commercial real
estate projects, especially in large commercial complex and other commercial
projects in Guangzhou Area.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. JIA Tongli (“Mr. Jia”), aged 52, graduated from the Party School of the CPC,
majored in economic administration. He joined Hsin Chong (China) Business
Management Company* as Vice General Manager in 2015 and is responsible for
investment attraction.

Mr. Jia has over 20 years' experience in commercial retailing, and had took
positions at more than ten retail enterprises including Beijing Yansha Youyi
Shopping City, Yansha Outlets Shopping Center, Yansha Shopping Center
(Jinyuan), Beijing Henderson Yansha, and Beijing U-town Plaza. He participated
in the planning, investment attraction and operation of various outlets projects
in recent years, and has become an expert with rich practical experience in
commercial retailing business.

Mr. HUANG Zhenda (“Mr. Huang”), aged 43, obtained a Ph.D in Economics
from China Northwestern University and a LLM from China Southwest University
of Political Science & Law. He is a practicing lawyer in the PRC. In 2015, Mr.
Huang joined Hsin Chong Capital (Group) Limited as President, Hsin Chong
Capital Management (China) Limited* as Chairman and CEO, as well as Hsin
Chong Finance Lease (China) Limited* as Chairman.

Mr. Huang had 15 years’ working experience at Hainan Airlines Group, one of
Global 500. He has extensive and full-range experience in enterprise management
and development, especially in fields including corporate human resources
management, legal compliance, and project investment and acquisition. He
also has rich experience in investment and management of high star-level
hotel properties, resort hotel industry, and tourism real estate development
and operation. He received trainings on enterprise management in the US and
Germany.

Mr. ZHOU Hong (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 46, graduated from Civil Aviation University
of China majoring in Planning Finance. He obtained a MBA from Renmin
University of China and an EMBA from China Europe International Business
School. Mr. Zhou is a financial professional and an expert on enterprise strategic
management, investment and financing, and financial management. He is also
a senior business administrator. He joined Hsin Chong Finance Lease (China)
Limited* as CEO and Hsin Chong Capital Management (China) Limited* as
President in 2015.

Mr. Zhou had acted as senior executive at various large enterprise groups and
many financial institutions including finance lease companies, futures companies,
finance companies and insurance companies, which helped him accumulate rich
practical experience in financial and tax management, business development,
corporate operation and management, investment and financing, and capital
market operation. He has built up close cooperative relationship with local
governments, financial institutions, and investment organizations, with great
achievements in corporate strategy research and management. Mr. Zhou is also a
member of the Central Economics Committee under China Democratic League,
and has an in-depth insight into the macro economy and the industrial research.

* for identification purposes only
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Corporate Service

Ms. Victoria TAM Yin Ping (“Ms. Tam"), MSc, MBA, M.L.H.R.M. (HK), MHKIoD, FinstLM,
aged 54, is the Group Human Resources & Administration Director of the Group.
She is responsible for the Group’s human resources strategy to support the
Group's growth opportunities in Hong Kong, Macau, China and overseas, as well
as for superintending the administrative functions at the Group’s headquarters.
Ms. Tam is also a member of the Human Resources Steering Committee of the
executive board of the Group, and is responsible for deploying effective human
resources management policies, plans and practical methods for corporate
sustainable competitive advantages. Ms. Tam possesses over 25 years of human
resources & administration management spanning across construction, property
investment and development and hospitality industries, with expertise including
organizational transformation strategies, leadership and management coaching,
and talent management.

Ms. WONG May Kay (“Ms. Wong"), aged 53, is the Vice President of Business
Relations of the Group. She joined the Group in February 2016 and is responsible
for leading the Business Relations and Corporate Communications team to
develop and drive strategies for enhancing the corporate image of the Group
while building positive relations with different stakeholders in and outside of Hong
Kong to support the Group's business expansion strategy.

Ms. Wong is an all-rounded communications and relationship-management
professional of 30 years. Graduating from Canada’s premier journalism school
at Carleton University in Ottawa, Ontario, Ms. Wong spent more than 13 years
as a television journalist covering domestic and world news before becoming a
corporate communications specialist with particular expertise in communications
strategy development and crisis communications. She has led the communications
function for other Hong Kong-listed companies including MTR Corporation
Limited.

56/HSN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

& ¥R

EHEEL L ([B4t]) Msc MBA MIHRM. (HK), MHKIoD,
FinstLM » 3R F545%  BASBE 2 EBANERMITRES
BESEANERER IRBREEEEE R FEM
FHRMERER ULEBEEEATNITRER BT
tHREERNTEETSANERIEEZRES HOEWUHES
FEDABEINANEREIEBUER  BEIUREE X
L BRI HEBBBFHANERITHREERER B
HMER BHEREMAL MEEETRED B
RS SR FENMEEEES URASER-

FRMuxE ([Eat]) RFSBK RAEEZ XBKRHE
Bl - N20165F2 A ARG R - ARETAFRBRIERER
EREREE  BEHERRPITRE  REERADETY
R WHEEE MBINATRIFD E R R FREARES
M TR -

FrER—UEHUNEEEALBERERER HH30
FEB-BNEREE BN RABEAR (IRLAKE
BREM)NHSREBER ERLEEHBIEXEBEA
13 ZRERGEEAF LREREBRBLAKA
- REEREMEE LT ARNCEERABIE 24
BAREBARAR



Corporate governance is the system by which the Company is directed and
controlled. The Board is fully aware of its importance to the shareholders and has
developed a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows management
to respond to the strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well balanced corporate governance system enables the Company to
achieve business excellence and fulfill the Company’s mission.

Corporate Code of Conduct

Since 1995, the Company has published and distributed its Corporate Code of
Conduct to all staff to educate and reinforce the Company’s commitment to the
highest standards of business ethics and the seriousness with which the Board
treats such matters. The Corporate Code of Conduct is a living document that
will be periodically updated to incorporate comments and suggestions from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption and the other regulating authorities
in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has applied the principals in the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
complied with all code provisions of the CG Code, except those deviations as
mentioned herein below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time by the Stock Exchange) as its own code of
conduct for regulating securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2015.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines
for regulating securities transactions by the senior management and certain
employees of the Group (collectively, the “Relevant Employees”). The Board
believes that the Relevant Employees may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Group.
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Board of Directors

Composition

As at 24 March 2016, the Board comprised 12 Directors, including four Executive
Directors, four Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The names of the Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed with effect from 11 September 2015)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Director of Mergers and Acquisitions)
(appointed with effect from 3 June 2015)

Mr. ZHOU Wei

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan (Non-executive Chairman)
(appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 23 May 2015 and
appointed as the Non-executive Chairman with effect from 19 June 2015)
Mr. YAN lJie
Mr. CHEN Lei (appointed with effect from 23 May 2015)
Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (appointed with effect from 23 May 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang

Mr. GAO Jingyuan

Ms. LEE Jai Ying

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (appointed with effect from 18 November 2015)

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.hsinchong.com).

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including real
estate development, property development, construction, finance, and finance
related work, members of the Board possess a balance of skills, expertise and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group which
helps promote its success and benefits its management. Save as disclosed in the
Profiles of Directors set out on pages 37 to 48 of this annual report, there is no
relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors representing one-
third of the total number of Board members and is in compliance with the
requirement under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The views of the Independent
Non-executive Directors carry weight in the Board’'s decisions, and their
participation helps the Board exercise judgement, make decisions and act
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given to the Company an
annual confirmation of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
are and have remained independent. Mr. CHENG Sui Sang, chairman of the Audit
Committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Members of the Board, including the names of all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications which disclose
the names of the directors of the Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its primary functions
are to set and direct the Company's strategy and to monitor and measure
the management’s performance. It is accountable for the overall strategic
development of the Group with the objective to enhance shareholder value.
Material matters are reserved for the Board's considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group, business plans, annual
budgets, significant capital expenditure, interim and annual results and reports,
dividend policy and payments, material acquisitions, disposals or investment
proposals, directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other
material transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive Committee. It
has also delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business to the senior
management. Delegation of duties to the Board committees and daily business
operations to the management are discussed on pages 64 to 73 of this report.

Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. For the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 October 2015, Dr. Wilfred
WONG Ying Wai was both the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
The Company considered that this dual role was essential at that time, in order
to continue to oversee the construction and property and facility management
businesses, whilst at the same time to manage the strategic development of and
significant additional capital commitments to, the property development and
investment business.

However, the aforesaid situation changed towards the end of 2015. Mr. LIN
Zhuo Yan has been appointed as Non-executive Chairman with effect from 19
June 2015. Dr. WONG resigned as Executive Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 November 2015, and Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (an
Executive Director) became Chief Executive Officer Designate with effect from 11
September 2015, and then Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 November
2015.

The roles of chairman and chief executive are therefore was now separate, and
there are clear divisions among their responsibilities with a view to achieving a
balance of power and authority. Therefore, the Company complies with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

With the support from the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Board chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information on
a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors. The Board set up a Nomination Committee in 2011
to recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the Directors.
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All the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of two years subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company ("Bye-laws”),
including the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or standing for
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at least once every three
years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided with
information on duties and obligations of director, relevant regulatory requirements
and the Group's business affairs. All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
would be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year are
scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the
Directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will
be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who
is not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting through
electronic means of communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days in advance,
and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each
Director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by
meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director
not less than three days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except
where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent
ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings,
drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to Directors for comments
and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board at the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and open for inspection to any Director on request.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures are complied with and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including reports from the Board committees and reports from the
management. They are also provided with updates on the latest developments of
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes and matters of
relevance to the Directors in discharging their duties as and when appropriate.

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted written

procedures in case any Director wishes to seek independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.
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Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant to
the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in a tight timeframe and
hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or not practicable. In case where a
resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient information and explanatory materials
will also be provided to the Directors at the same time. These written resolutions
were tabled for the Directors’ review at the next following Board meeting so that
Directors were given the opportunity to raise any further comment (if any) on the
relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transaction with connected persons) which the Board

determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long as time is
allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant matter first before

any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance covering directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been arranged

to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.

Attendances of Meetings

Nine Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, three Remuneration
Committee meetings, two Nomination Committee meetings and two general
meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2015. Attendances of

these meetings by Directors are set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
EXEBRSE

WE RS FHARZERRAELIRE - W E A
EERESEER AREBAR EFEEBEHER
ReETAMEBBEE R -EEHEERER XD 2EH
KA B R R T EE - R FERARFBINEE
BEZT - REZRSRLR2EFEE REZAKY
SAEBERRHEME—FER (WF) -

WEBERIEEFAER —FH (BREFEALZERR
PP FHEEFERR/EARZNGEHR EFERELER
TR (REERHLANEHESTEER) A EREH
RIE BERASEBAEHEMAZ ) s TEMELE-

AEFCRERBZEENEAREBEERE AEHES
K= A B IR AREE o

- J g of
HE2015F12A3MB I FERAEBITORNEES D 2K
EREZEeeR 3AFHEEe SR 2NRREESY

FL2RBRAE - T RSESHERFTER ZIBER:

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/ RERHESH
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
Name of Directors EENA EFg FNZAE FH=EE REZRE BEXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Chief Executive Officer)'  B:1@% (775423 8/9 n/a 171 n/a 22
LUI Chun Pong (Chief Financial Officer)? iR (B EAFEE) 2 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Director of Mergers and ~ SFBS (4 # K 44 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Acquisitions)® WEEE)
ZHOU Wei A& 99 n/a n/a n/a 22
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (Ex Executive Chairman T 518 (FIfEEH7T 8/8 n/a 2 22 22
and Chief Executive Officer)’ FEREITEBAER)

Non-executive Directors HHTEE
LIN Zhuo Yan (Non-executive Chairman)® ML (FHTTEE) 5/5 n/a na n/a n/a
YAN Jie LS 8/9 n/a na na 2P
CHEN Lef® BR&s 4/5 n/a n/a n/a n/a
CHUI Kwong Kau® R 5/5 171 n/a n/a n/a
ZHANG Xiaoying? o/ B 13 n/a n/a n/a 1n
Clifford King CHIU? BLRT 4/6 "N 22 n/a 22
Indlevendent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
CHENG Sui Sang® il 79 212 0/1 212 212
GAO Jingyuan BRE 99 n/a 33 n/a 212
LEE Jai Ying FRE 8/9 n/a n/a 20 22
KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest? Fhie 171 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen® [REA 6/7 22 22 n/a 22
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Notes:

1 Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer Designate with
effect from 11 September 2015, and then Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1
November 2015.

2 Mr. LUl Chun Pong has been appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 11
September 2015.

3 Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun has been appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 3
June 2015.

4 Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai resigned as an Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
members of Remuneration and Nomination committees respectively with effect from 1
November 2015.

5 Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan, Mr. CHEN Lei and Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau have been appointed as Non-
executive Directors with effect from 23 May 2015. Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan was further appointed
as the Non-executive Chairman with effect from 19 June 2015.

6 Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 21 April 2015.

7 Mr. Clifford King CHIU resigned as a Non-executive Director, and members of Audit and
Remuneration Committees respectively with effect from 30 June 2015.

8 Mr. CHENG Sui Sang has been appointed as the chairman of Remuneration Committee with
effect from 18 November 2015. Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of Audit Committee with effect from 18
November 2015.

9 Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of Audit committee and the chairman of Remuneration Committees respectively with effect
from 1 October 2015.

n/a:  not applicable

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held a meeting
with Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
without the presence of Executive Directors.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. All Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) attended the special
general meeting and the annual general meeting on 25 February 2015 and 22
May 2015 respectively.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Group's performance and financial position.

Directors are aware of the requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code regarding continuous professional development. During the year, the
Company provided reading materials to the Directors for self-study. In addition,
the Directors have attended external courses, conferences or luncheons organised
by various organisations.
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Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates and other
reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments in corporate
governance practices, and relevant legal and regulatory developments. A record
of the Directors’ participation in various professional development programs is
kept by the company secretarial department. A summary of training received by
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2015 is according to the records
provided by the Directors as follows:

| —
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NHEMBRAPEERERMBRED MOER SN ERN
FEEN FHEE2AIRAEREREDINCHEARE
WEBPIRT - RIBEFRHENCE EENEE20155F
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Giving talks or
attending seminars/

Reading newspapers,
journals and

updates relating

to the economy,
general business,
accounting, laws,

conferences/forums  rules and regulations, etc.
B AE A 48 i
1 E R
L3-8
BITHESHE RAREREFTEZ
Name of Directors EEla Wae ol WmiE BE BHHREHEM
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 2 SiEnt
(Chief Executive Officer)’ (7TECAEZ ) v v
LUI Chun Pong (Chief Financial Officer)? B F8 ( & /&5 F44 82 )2 v v/
Wilfred WU Shek Chun SRAEE
(Director of Mergers and Acquisitions)® (&P RUkiEZE F )3 v v
ZHOU Wei JEE v v
LIN Zhuo Yan (Non-executive Chairman)*  #E3E ( FEH177 3 & )* 4 v
YAN Jie £ 4 v
CHEN Lei PREE* 4 v
CHUI Kwong Kau* BB v v
CHENG Sui Sang BG4 v v
GAO Jingyuan RRE v v
LEE Jai Ying = = v v/
KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest® 20 o> 4 v
ZHANG Xiaoying® SR/ N B v v
Clifford King CHIU? aiE sl 4 v
Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen® JE BA e 4 v
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (Ex Executive ~ T H(Z
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)*  (FIEH 7T F /7T AZ#,)° 4 v
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Notes:

1 Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer Designate with
effect from 11 September 2015, and then the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1
November 2015.

2 Mr. LUl Chun Pong has been appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 11
September 2015.

3 Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun has been appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 3
June 2015.

4 Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan, Mr. CHEN Lei and Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau have been appointed as Non-
executive Directors with effect from 23 May 2015. Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan was further appointed
as the Non-executive Chairman with effect from 19 June 2015.

5 Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of Audit Committee with effect from 18 November 2015.

6 Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 21 April 2015.

7 Mr. Clifford King CHIU resigned as a Non-executive Director, and members of Audit and
Remuneration Committees respectively with effect from 30 June 2015.

8 Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of Audit committee and the chairman of Remuneration Committees respectively with effect
from 1 October 2015.

9 Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai resigned as an Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
members of Remuneration and Nomination committees respectively with effect from
1 November 2015.

Board Committees

Each of the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee, is to
assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities and to oversee particular
aspect of the Group's affairs. Each Board committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with
the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of reference and, where applicable, the
proceedings of Board meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent
Non-executive Director) as chairman, Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (appointed as Non-
executive Director and Audit Committee member with effect from 23 May 2015
and 30 June 2015 respectively) and Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director and Audit Committee member both with
effect from 18 November 2015) as members. None of the Audit Committee
members is or has been a former partner of the existing auditing firm engaged by
the Company for the past one year.
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The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an independent and
objective review of the financial reporting process, internal controls and audit
function with emphasis on:

() appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal and
external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators and the
general public;

(iiiy  ascertain the adequacy of the Company'’s system of internal controls which
management and the Board have established; and

(iv) serve as useful channel of communication between the Board and the
external and internal auditors on matters relating to and arising out of the
external and internal audit.

The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific written
terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the Company’s external auditor and on its remuneration; reviewing the
Company'’s interim and annual financial statements and other financial reports;
and reviewing the Company's financial reporting system, internal control
procedures (including monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function)
and risk management systems. The Audit Committee has explicit authority to
investigate any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the authority
to obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it considers
necessary.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. During the year ended
31 December 2015, two committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 61 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee members
reviewed (i) the audit strategy memorandum from the external auditor; (i) with
the participation of the internal and external auditors and the management,
reviewed the internal control system of the Group; and (iii) with the participation
of the internal and external auditors and the management, the interim and
annual results and the related financial statements of the Company with a view
to ensuring that these financial statements were prepared in accordance with
the accounting principles and standards generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
Audit Committee also considered the reports from the external auditor on the
scope and findings of its independent review of the interim and annual financial
statements.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee’s view on
re-appointment of external auditor, and they both have agreed to recommend the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for
the ensuing year at the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent
Non-executive Director appointed as the chairman with effect from 18 November
2015) as chairman, Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Executive Director appointed as a
member with effect from 1 November 2015) and Mr. GAO Jingyuan as members.

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. Its duties are summarised below:

() make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

(v)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(vi)  review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive;

(vii) review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with

contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(viii) delegate such of its powers the committee deems appropriate to the
management; and

(ix)  ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, three committee meetings were held. Attendances of
the meetings have been disclosed on page 61 of in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
members (i) reviewed the bonus distribution of the Executive Directors and the
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2014; (i) reviewed the
bonus structure of the Executive Directors and the senior management; (iii)
reviewed the salaries of Executive Directors and senior management; (iv) reviewed
the annual fee of Directors and annual fees for Chairman and members of each of
Board committees for the financial year ending 31 December 2016; (v) the grant
of share options to an relevant employee; and (vi) recommended the aforesaid
matters to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:
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Number of individuals

Within the band of #8250 5 T 7 A®
Up to HK$ 1,000,000 75 #£1,000,0007TEC LA R 10
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 7T £ 7 #52,000,0007T 6
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 7B #£2,000,0017T £ 7% #53,000,0007T 5
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 743,000,001 7T & 7 #4,000,0007T 6

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000

75 #4,000,0017C £ /%8 #5,000,0007C =
75 55,000,001 7T 2 75 #6,000,0007T

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group comprises Synergis, a non wholly-owned subsidiary whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Owing to its separate
listing status and different nature of its business, Synergis’ remuneration review
process is managed separately and is responsible for setting its own human
resources policies to reward staff of Synergis and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Synergis Group”). However, the key functions and accountabilities of the two
remuneration committees for both companies are similar. The human resources
policies adopted by Synergis for the year ended 31 December 2015 are disclosed
in its annual report for the year 2015.

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management of the
Group. The performance measures are balanced between financial and industrial
comparatives. The components of remuneration package may consist of base
salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus,
participation in a share option scheme or long-term rewards.
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The remuneration packages of the directors are recommended by the
respective remuneration committees and determined by the respective boards
of directors except that no director or any of his associates is allowed to
make recommendation on or to determine his own remuneration package.
Director’s remuneration is determined by reference to each director’s duties and
responsibilities in the Group as well as the overall performance of the respective
company and the Group and the prevailing market situation and competitiveness
in the industry.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are determined by the
remuneration committees and approved by the boards by reference to their
respective responsibilities and accountability, target achievements, business results
and market competitiveness of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
managerial and support staff are determined by the senior management of the
respective company.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for senior
management staff and employees with significant contributions to the business
objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and performance based. Share
options are granted to directors, senior management and other employees
based on individual performance and overall contributions to the Group. The
number and terms of share options granted to each grantee are proposed by the
respective executive directors (except for options granted to themselves), reviewed
by respective remuneration committees and approved by respective boards of
directors.

The Group has sought to make the remuneration policy more transparent and
well communicated to its staff. Details of the remuneration payable to each
Director for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprised Ms. LEE Jai Ying (Independent Non-
executive Director) as chairman, Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Executive Director
appointed as a member with effect from 1 November 2015) and Mr. CHENG Sui
Sang (Independent Non-executive Director) as members.

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in its specific

written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating nomination
policy and leading the process of identifying and nominating suitable candidates.
Its duties are summarised below:

i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, skills, knowledge,
professional experience and length of service) of the Board at least annually;
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of directors for the
Board’s approval;

taking into account the Group's corporate strategy and mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;

assess the independence of independent non-executive directors and review
the independent non-executive directors’ annual confirmations on their
independence; and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

regularly review the time required from a director to perform his/her
responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings; and

review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable
objectives that the Board had set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of
its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year ended
31 December 2015, two committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 61 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee members
(i) reviewed and considered that the structure, size, diversity and composition of
the Board are appropriate; (ii) assessed the independence of independent Non-
executive Directors; (iii) recommended the appointments of new Board members,
and (iv) recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.
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The "Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the
Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, background, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities of members of the board. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, including but not limited to those described above. The “Board Diversity
Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, to ensure
its effectiveness.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprised four members, namely, Ir. Joseph
CHOI Kin Hung, Mr. LUl Chun Pong (appointed as a member with effect
from 11 September 2015), Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (appointed as a member
with effect from 3 June 2015) and Mr. ZHOU Wei.

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Its primary duties are to approve banking matters,
issue of shares under any share option schemes of the Company, and
administrative issues of routine nature (excluding notifiable transactions), with a
view to assisting the Board to discharge partially its executive functions.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required depending on business
and operation needs. Members’ attendances would depend on the importance
of the matters to be transacted. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Executive Committee held 54 meetings to discharge their duties.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and performing the corporate governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(i) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to the employees and Directors; and

(v)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in place procedures for Directors to seek Independent Professional
Advice.
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Delegation to Management

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business plans and
strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior executives led primarily
by the Executive Committee. The Management Committee for the Group's
operations comprising all the Executive Directors and key senior executives
was established to oversee the achievement of the Group's operations. The
Management Committee holds regular meetings to review and discuss the
Group's performance against budget, business strategy, operational issues, and
matters relating to corporate services including human resources, corporate
communications, and information technology. Other management meetings
are also held regularly to review and discuss the day-to-day operations and
performance of individual business divisions.

Tender Procedures for Construction Related Business

The directors of the respective business divisions are responsible for reviewing
business opportunities and their associated risks; formulating viable business
models; and deciding the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity. These
directors or the managing director of the construction division, working together
with the estimator, the bid manager or other persons with relevant expertise
continuously review, discuss and approve the various business proposals
submitted.

Policy for Financial Risk Management

The Group adopted a policy statement on authorisation and approval of financial
transactions, involving the assessment, booking and monitoring of financial
instruments to hedge exposures to financial risks and in particular, liquidity risk,
currency risk and interest rate risk, with a view to further strengthening the
financial risk management.

Internal Audit

The Group has separate internal audit functions for its principal property,
construction & construction related operations, and for its subsidiary property
and facility management operations, forming part of its ongoing effort to focus
on greater efficiency and to quickly respond to the management’s concern for
the likely problem areas due to their distinctive business nature. Internal audit
adopts a risk and control based audit approach. The internal audit work plan
for the subsidiary property and facility management operations is reviewed by
Group internal audit, and its audit reports and follow-up actions are circulated
to the Group internal audit for information. The work plans of internal audit are
reviewed/further reviewed and endorsed by the respective audit committees.
Examination of the processes, practices and procedures of internal controls for
business operations and corporate functions of the Group are performed on a
regular basis. Internal audit reports containing findings and recommendations for
improvements are submitted to the respective audit committees for review.
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Risk Management

The risk management committee for the property and construction operations
was set up to assess and manage market risks, financial risks, and operational risks
of the Company. The committee is led by an executive director as convener, with
members that comprise managing director of construction, managing director
of PRC property, group financial controller, general counsel, commercial director,
head of IT, human resources director, company secretary, and internal audit. Risk
information is reviewed and assessed from time to time during the committee
meetings. A supervisory board that is chaired by the chief executive officer of the
Company with other executive directors will review the risk management report/
meeting minutes before this is communicated to the audit committee. The risk
management committee for the property and facility management operations
(Synergis” operations) will also submit its risk management report/meeting minutes
to the supervisory board for its overall consideration and assessment.

Internal Control
Internal Control has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control
and for the assessment and management of risk.

In meeting its responsibility, the Board has defined a management structure with
limits of authority that helps the achievement of business objectives, safeguards
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information, and
ensures compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. Such management
structure is regularly reviewed to accommodate the refined business objectives
and changing market conditions. The Board also aims at increasing the risk
awareness across the Group's business operations and has put in place policies
and procedures that provide a framework for the identification and management
of risk.

While the system is designed to identify and manage risks that could have an
adverse impact on the achievement of the Group’s objectives, it does not provide
an absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Divisional and functional directors are responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of their own business units, and they are accountable for the conduct
and performance of their own operations within the targets and objectives as
agreed by the management of the Group.

Budgets are prepared and approved prior to being adopted. Proper authorization
procedures are in place for the appraisal, review and approval of significant
projects and major capital investments. Results of operations against budgets
are reviewed regularly in the management meetings, and business forecasts are
constantly refined to reflect the current business situation.
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Proper controls are in place for the recording of complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information. Regular reviews are carried out
to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
prevailing Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards, the Group's accounting policies and applicable laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through discussion with
the Audit Committee on audit findings and control issues. These procedures
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and
fraud, and manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

Integrity Committee

The Integrity Committee was established for the purpose of examining integrity-
related matters. Currently, the Integrity Committee is chaired by Ir. Joseph CHOI
Kin Hung, an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer as chairman, and
members of this committee come from various departments and operating
divisions, including Human Resources, Finance & Accounts, Internal Audit,
Commercial, and Project Administration. The Integrity Committee reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The authority and duties of the Integrity Committee are
set out in its specific written terms of reference as well as the policies, procedures
and guidelines relating to integrity issues.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group on a going concern basis. With the support of the
accounting and finance functions led by Chief Financial Officer of the Group, the
Directors have ensured that the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been prepared in accordance with appropriate
accounting policies applied consistently save for those new and amended
accounting standards, if any, as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements, announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the Directors aim
at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
position and prospects. Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the Directors to
make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Group financial statements, is set
out on pages 111 to 112 of this annual report.
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Auditor's Remuneration
The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’'s external
auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out as

A &
HE2015F 12 A31HILFE - sRARRINEZEANE K&
NESHEMEBMREEZRBES TEBABRSIIMT

follows:
Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FRr iR R %5 Bft EHEA
HK$'000
BT T
Audit services EIZARTS 5,474
Non-audit services: FEBEAZIRTS
— service in connection with a very substantial acquisition in —ARREPEYFERIAR N
relation to acquisition of property development projects in B BEBAWIEEIEN R
the PRC 2,659
— others —HAh 895

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
communications among Board members. The Company Secretary complied with
all the qualifications under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and

Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
quarterly business updates, and press releases, updates on the Group's
developments are also provided on the Company’s website which is updated on a
timely manner.

Comments, suggestions and enquiries from shareholders or investors to the Board
are welcome through the following channels to the Company:

() by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at Hsin
Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 6596
(i) by telephone at (852) 2579 8238
(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk

(v)  on the Company'’s website at www.hsinchong.com under “IR Contact” of
“Investor Relations”
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An annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days
together with detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the annual general
meeting of the Company and ten clear business days for all special general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolution is proposed at an annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of each
individual director.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at a
general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition served to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be convened by
the Board for transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of
meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

There were amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company during the year. In the
annual general meeting held on 22 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company regarding facilitating
the transfer and/or conversion by a Convertible Preference Shareholder of an odd
lot of less than 100,000,000 Convertible Preference Shares.

Continuous Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.

| —
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Introduction

Hsin Chong is committed to ethical and responsible management in all facets of
its steadily expanding business. The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") Policy
of the Group demonstrates our commitment to sustainable business practices.
Corporate governance, safety and health, and caring for the environment, for
our people and for the community are the five key principles of the Group’s CSR
Policy.

Our activities, encompassing construction, property management services and
property development, span the entire building lifecycle and we recognise that
these activities have an impact on society and the environment. We are dedicated
to ensuring that our business activities bring sustained value to our shareholders,
employees and customers and make a positive contribution to the communities in
which we work and live.

For the past 13 years, Hsin Chong has been declared a Caring Company by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Also, the Group was again awarded the
CSR Advocate Mark for 2015 by HKQAA under its CSR Index assessment process,
once again improving on the previous year’s score. The Index provides quantitative
metrics for companies to improve CSR performance and enhance CSR disclosure
and communication with stakeholders. The Advocate Mark is in recognition of the
Group’s commitment and dedication to CSR.

Workplace Safety and Health
The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working environment for
its employees, subcontractors and other stakeholders.

Regular monitoring of the work environment and facilities provided for staff
is undertaken to ensure that employees enjoy a safe and healthy working
environment. In-house health and safety professionals conduct regular checks of
all company workplaces for any possible safety issues, and audits and testing are
conducted to ensure that the workplace does not harbour any health threats.
Modern amenities are provided to ensure a user-friendly work environment. In this
regard, the Good Site Facilities Standard Manual has been revised and issued in
2015.

The Group implements and properly manages an Occupational Health and Safety
System which has been certified to OHSAS 18001 Standards. The prime objective
is not only to achieve full compliance with relevant statutory and contractual
requirements, but also to adopt viable and progressive practices initiated by the
construction industry. Responsible suppliers, service providers and subcontractors
are selected on the basis of their willingness to work in line with the Group's
concept of managing health, safety and quality at work.

In 2015, Hsin Chong collaborated with external experts to run in-house safety
workshops covering issues of particular relevance to our site operations. These
workshops covered topics such as crane and rigging safety and temporary
works safety and were attended by frontline supervisors as well as many young
engineers who are the managers of the future.
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In addition to providing training in occupational health and safety, the Group
renders support to staff and sub-contractors in discharging their daily duties and
responsibilities. Safety culture workshops and safety leadership workshops were
carried out at sites and head office respectively. A Safety Practice Handbook,
which includes safety rules and regulations for different trades as well as
guidelines on various safety aspects, is widely distributed in order to raise staff
awareness of safety issues.

Occupational health and safety is the Group's top priority, and the Company
will continue to be vigilant in policing health and safety issues and proactive in
improving its already impressive health and safety record.

Caring for the Environment

The Group recognises the importance of protecting the Earth against modern
ecological challenges and is constantly improving its management practices so
as to minimise negative environmental impacts, reduce waste and maximise
efficiencies. The Group's Environmental Management System, which has been
certified to comply with ISO 14001 International Standards, is implemented across
all its projects and is constantly undergoing refinement and improvement in line
with latest international trends.

At the Group, a number of emissions reduction and energy saving green initiatives
are being carried out on various project sites. A thorough and comprehensive
environmental management system is established on sites throughout the design
and construction stage, ranging from project planning, procurement and materials
usage, on-site construction and management of subcontractors to materials
recycling and reuse. Some major environmental measures implemented on the
construction sites include the use of solar energy and energy efficient appliances
as well as a range of recycling initiatives. In addition, sub-contractors and suppliers
are encouraged to sign on to our green initiatives and partner with us in creating
a better environment.

The Group is currently implementing an energy management system in
accordance with the requirements of ISO 50001. This international standard will
assist in the efficient use of energy as well as helping in efforts to reduce carbon
footprint and tackle climate change. Implementation of ISO 50001 will make it
easier to integrate energy management into the Group’s business practices and
its overall efforts to improve environmental management. Certification of energy
management system at public housing projects was obtained in 2015.

An environmental and safety initiative which enjoys widespread support is the
in-house Health, Safety & Environmental Performance Award Scheme, which
enhances the Group’s competitive edge by rewarding continuous improvement
in occupational health and safety, environmental protection and hygiene in
project sites. Participating projects are assessed monthly with the awards process
providing a gentle reminder of the need to remain focused on sound health,
safety and environmental practices.
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Caring for and Development of People
The Group, staffed by a total of 8,169 full time employees, believes a vibrant and
sustainable organisation relying on a strong, stable and dedicated workforce.

To further strengthen the Group's corporate core values and functionalities and
to develop a continuous improvement culture, the Group has in place a Human
Resources Steering Committee comprising Chief Executive Officer and senior
managerial staff. The objectives of the Steering Committee are to provide effective
recruitment planning and an optimal reward programme through resources
management as well as an effective performance review system and talents
pipeline for succession planning. Full curricula for both technical and management
training programmes have been set up for the Group’s workforce.

Vocational training is also of high importance to the Group which actively
promotes and assists employees in furthering their education. The Group
offers structured training schemes for trainees and apprentices. These schemes
provide comprehensive and systematic training in both “on the job” and “in-
class” environments. With guidance from personal tutors and supervisors, it
enables young graduates to be well trained and developed within their particular
professional discipline.

Caring for the staff was further augmented over the years with regular company
excursions, staff events and welcoming functions for new staff. In addition, a
series of talks and classes ranging from advice on medical insurance, Mandatory
Provident Fund and healthy lifestyle were organised to assist staff in organising
their affairs and in fostering a positive work-life balance. Organisational support is
given to company sports teams, an initiative that inspires teamwork and a healthy
lifestyle.

Fair Operating Practices

The Group upholds fair operating practices in its contracting with subcontractors
and suppliers through a fair and efficient procurement system. Access to enter
into a business relationship is ensured by the provision on the Company’s website
of an open invitation to prospective subcontractors and suppliers to apply for
inclusion on the Group’s approved lists from which tenderers are selected. This
provides an open route for registering an interest which is monitored to ensure
progress and feedback communicated as appropriate. A fair and consistent
approach is achieved by the adoption of a standard set of criteria for inclusion on
approved lists and selection to participate in tenders. Competitive tendering is the
default approach and any (very infrequent) departure from this requires specific
business justification and approval by executive management. A review was
undertaken of procurement processes, procedures and practices for compliance
with the new Competition Ordinance that came into force in December 2015. No
significant amendments were required as the pre-existing approach was already
consistent with the ethos and requirements of the Ordinance.
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A review of subcontract and supply contract terms and conditions has been
completed. The contractual allocation of risk between the Group and its
subcontractors and suppliers is balanced to take into account the respective ability
to control and bear the applicable risks and is clearly set out in express terms. Fair
administration of the contract terms is ensured by the express right for either party
to call for dispute resolution by an independent third party the product of which
is a legally binding and enforceable decision. The review has also covered social,
ethical, environmental and gender equality criteria in subcontracts and supply
contracts and the process of incorporating express provisions on these matters will
be completed during 2016.

Anti-corruption

To support the Group's commitment to ethical practices, integrity and good
corporate governance, the Group has established an Integrity Committee. The
Committee is responsible for examining integrity-related matters and provides
an open channel for staff to report suspected cases of unethical or corrupt
practices with regards to the operations and work processes of the Group as
well as inappropriate behaviour which might affect the Group’s reputation. The
Committee investigates all cases and takes any necessary action.

The Integrity Committee is chaired by Chief Executive Officer, with members
of the Committee coming from various departments such as Group Human
Resources and Administration, Internal Audit, Accounts, Commercial and
Operation Departments. It reports directly to the Audit Committee. Members
of staff can report in confidence, any integrity-related issue, knowing that their
action will be kept strictly confidential.

The Group holds Independent Commission Against Corruption talks to refresh
its staff with the common corruption pitfalls at workplace and the importance of
work ethics regularly.

Community Involvement

The Group continues to invest in the local community by supporting community
projects and charitable services through donations and sponsorships to charities
and industry-related and professional bodies, as well as organising volunteer
services to care for the needy and underprivileged.

Over the past year, the Group has supported and provided sponsorship for
many worthwhile community initiatives such as Baptist University’s Exchange
Scholarship, Construction Industry Council’s “Build a Better Hong Kong 2015"
and the 5th Hong Kong Games as well as support for the development of new
headquarters for Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Another initiative has been
the collaboration with Hong Kong International Film Festival to bring screenings
of classic Cantonese films to student groups to promote appreciation of film
among Hong Kong's younger generation. Also, to develop new talents for the
construction industry, the Group jointly organized with Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers the programme of “Engineer for a Day” to familiarize secondary school
students and teachers with the duties of an engineer.
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The Group has supported employees in their participation in a number of activities
designed to provide support and comfort to less fortunate members of society.
These activities included delivering rice bags to single elderly and low-income
families under the Neighbourhood Rice Giving Scheme, collecting contributions
from the public for the Construction Charity Fund Flag Day and engaging in fund
raising activities such as Walk for Millions, Love Teeth Day and MTR Race Walk.

As a summary, our major achievements in 2015 are:

o Donated $279,000 to support community initiatives

e Over 150 rice bags were delivered to the underprivileged through taking
part in a series of voluntary rice distribution initiatives set up by the Hong

Kong Federation of Youth Groups

e Organised an annual corporate blood donation day and helped relieving the
pressure of the blood bank

o Received the 10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo from the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

e  Awarded the CSR Advocate Mark by HKQAA under its CSR Index
assessment process
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The Board have pleasure in presenting their report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to the shareholders.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company's subsidiaries are building construction, civil engineering,
electrical and mechanical installation, interiors and special projects, property
development and investment, and provision of property and facility management
services. The provision of interiors and special projects, and property and facility
management services are undertaken by Synergis, a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements and particulars of its joint
operations are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information
Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review
Details of the business review information are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 36 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We consider environmental protection is essential to the long-term development
of the Group and will constantly improve a management practices so as to
minimize waste, maximize efficiencies and reduce our negative environmental
impact on the environment.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Social Responsibility
Report” on pages 76 to 80 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory requirements
and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements. The Group has been
allocating system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and the mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Our establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, Bermuda and the mainland China. A review was undertaken of
procurement processes, procedures and practices for compliance with the new
Competition Ordinance that came into force in December 2015. No significant
amendments were required as the preexisting approach was already consistent
with the ethos and requirements of the Ordinance.

To ensure compliance with the new Competition Ordinance, the Group
has conducted trainings for our staff. We also step up measures to increase
safety awareness amongst our management and staff to prevent accidents in
contravention with safety regulations.
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Risks and Uncertainties
Various risks that the Company may face have been disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report and the Notes to the Financial Statements of this Report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and we regularly review
and improve our policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A customer
complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive, analyse and study complaints
and make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving service

quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair and strict
appraisal of its suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 113; the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 114 and the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated balance
sheet on pages 115 to 116.

An interim dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share (2014: 1.0 HK cent per share) was
paid during the year. To preserve funds for the expansion and development of the
Company, the Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 2.2 HK cents per share). Accordingly, total
dividends for the financial year amounted to 1.0 HK cent per share (2014: 3.2 HK
cents per share).

Separately, the Board proposed to make a bonus issue of shares to its
shareholders, on the basis of one bonus ordinary share for every ten ordinary
shares held and one non-voting convertible preference share for every ten non-
voting convertible preference shares held, in each case on a record date to be
determined and announced by the Board in due course. The Company will make
a further announcement in respect of the proposed bonus issue, which will
require the Company'’s shareholders’ approval.

82/HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BERIBEERE
AARAEHENSBRBERAREZEEERARE

R B 75 R MY R 4 R o

HER FERMKBEHZHE
AEERRGETHEREIAEMGE LERRINTER
IR FF BN R 580 B R R AT 2R -

AEBEBREBERT AKECHETPRFEER
B Wk DM EMERFEFREHRERR AT
RERBEE-

AEBFRHEEBERERY LEeHHERE
Eize

KRR 9IR
ZK%@ﬁizmeﬂzﬂmEULEFZ%F%ZENWBEZ
BAWER BI4EZGAZENRER  MALEBRAA
AIF2015F 12 A31H 2 BB MR D BIE R E1152 1168
IR EERER-

TR R B

KRARRAFEER ;ffaﬁiﬁ&“ 5 1.01l 2z A B AR B (2014
FEBRBE10WL) - REEESUHAQT 2 ER L
R EFEWTES ?Jc%izizmsinﬁmaiir;/ﬁuﬂi
HAPG B (20144F : FRRE%E2 211 © Atk » ANEABUFE 2 B
B BTGB .00l (20144 - ABEE3210) -

FI BEEEE ﬁﬁﬂx%%ﬂﬂﬁx HEERBRE TR
EERREE— foﬁIHx BENERA TRERRENT

HRRAB PR T — IR IR AR A AR BB ST AR - Bl IE
Zuﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁa%$”*ﬁﬂwﬂ?ﬁ& N o AR RIS TR
BRSBTS AS  MEBRITARBEARRBIRE
HEAE



Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
119 and in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 4 financial years and for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out on page 205. This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Properties

A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/own use/sale and
properties under development as at 31 December 2015 is set out on pages 212
to 215.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2015, calculated
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
HK$170,769,000 (2014: HK$708,130,000).

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although there
is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to bye-law 177 of the Company’s Bye-laws, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto,
and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the
duties of his/her office or in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-laws shall only
have effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda Companies
Act. The Company and its listed subsidiary have maintained Directors and officers
liability insurance during the year.

.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ir. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 1 November 2015)

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (appointed with effect from 11 September 2015)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (appointed with effect from 3 June 2015)

Mr. ZHOU Wei

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (Ex-Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 November 2015) (Note)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan (Non-executive Chairman)
(appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 23 May 2015 and
appointed as Non-executive Chairman with effect from 19 June 2015)

Mr. YAN Jie

Mr. CHEN Lei (appointed with effect from 23 May 2015)

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (appointed with effect from 23 May 2015)

Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying (resigned with effect from 21 April 2015) (Note)

Mr. Clifford King CHIU (resigned with effect from 30 June 2015) (Note)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang

Mr. GAO Jingyuan

Ms. LEE Jai Ying

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (appointed with effect from 18 November 2015)
Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen (resigned with effect from 1 October 2015) (Note)

Note:

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai, Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying, Mr. Clifford King CHIU and Dr. Joseph CHOW
Ming Kuen resigned as a Director in the financial year ended 31 December 2015. They have
confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and there is nothing relating to the
affairs of the Company that needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company or the Stock Exchange.

The Profiles of Directors who are in office as at the date of this report are set out
on pages 37 to 48 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 98(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. ZHOU Wei, Mr. YAN Jie,
Mr. GAO Jingyuan and Ms. LEE Jai Ying shall retire by rotation but, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2016 annual general
meeting. Save for the aforesaid, the other remaining directors of the Company
would continue in office.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the 2016 annual
general meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a Director and the
Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors” emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

pa. W
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RELERGRIGHER G ITFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Number of interest in

shares held/ underlying the issued

Name of Directors Capacity involved shares held Total share capital

HERT

#E SR HFRZHR BEzEDR

EEpR 21 ZBin#E Bin#E #at #BHhaast

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(FtzED) (BftsE2)

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung Beneficial owner - 1,334,000 1,334,000 0.03%
RIS EmfEE A

LUI Chun Pong Beneficial owner - 750,000 750,000 0.01%
= R EmfEE A

ZHOU Wei Beneficial owner 48,932,000 - 48,932,000 0.94%
Bl EnEAA

LIN Zhuo Yan (Notes 3 & 4) Interest of spouse 1,466,858,789 - 1,466,858,789 28.27%

MEFE (Mi5E3 & 4) B R (Note 3)
(HM5E3)
Interest of controlled — 3,303,223,683  3,303,223,683 63.66%
corporations (Note 4)
R EE s (FtzE4)

Notes: ffEE -

1 As at 31 December 2015, the interests in the underlying shares held by the Directors 1 B ZE2015F 128310 EH/F B 2 EBRN 2R ERERD
represented share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the AIFA200855 522 B ERAN 2 SRR AT B 5% H 2 SRRk - i HH 2 3R
Company on 22 May 2008. Details of share options granted were set out below: PeresiE® s T

Number of Exercise price
Name of Directors Date of grant share options per share Exercisable period
BHA M fTEs
(dd/mm/yyyy) -1 (dd/mm/yyyy)
EEgf (8/B/%#) BARRERA fTER (B/R/%¥)
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,0000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019
LUI Chun Pong 01/09/2011 750,000 1.29 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021
= 4R
i Share options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012 i AR 5 Bl F20104F < 20114F % 20124612 B4 B 1233610
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and FE W E B HEEE2019F12A38 LB A F17
ending on 3 December 2019. f&Eo
i Share options were vested in three portions on 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014 ii. RARIE S BI 20124 < 20134 K 201499 A30 R #3517
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and FE WS B HEEE2021F8A318 LB Al F17
ending on 31 August 2021. f&E o
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There were 5,188,576,651 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December
2015.

475,816,993 ordinary shares are held by Neo Summit Limited (“Neo Summit”), which is
owned by (a) Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings
Limited (“Summit View") as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%;
and (d) Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly
wholly-owned by Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai. Jones Capital Investments Limited is wholly-
owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony (“Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the SFO.

991,041,796 ordinary shares are held by Summit View, which is owned as to 50% by Dr.
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the SFO.

Ms. MA Kwing, Pony is the spouse of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan and is deemed to be interested
under the SFO.

As disclosed in (i) the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014, Hsin Chong
Property Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
entered into the Acquisition Agreement with Rich Century Development Limited (a company
wholly-owned by the Non-executive Chairman of the Company, Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan) (“Rich
Century”) as the Vendor and Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan as the warrantor regarding a very substantial
acquisition in relation to the acquisition of a property development project in the PRC; and (ii)
the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2014, a Supplemental Agreement
was entered into amongst the same parties. As part of the consideration of the Acquisition
Agreement, the Company may issue to Rich Century convertible preference shares (“CPSs”)
which can be converted into Shares in the Company. As such, Rich Century being a company
wholly owned by Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. LIN Zhuo
Yan under the SFO.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015 in relation to the
issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, the total number of CPSs (issued or which
may be issued) to Rich Century and which can be converted into Shares of the Company is
6,253,829,151. Upon issue of certain number of CPSs to Rich Century on 8 January 2015,
it then disposed 1,855,563,322 CPSs on the same date. Therefore, as of 30 June 2015, Rich
Century held 4,398,265,830 CPSs (rounding difference included).

As further disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2015 in
relation to the issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, Rich Century was further
allotted by the Company 1,095,042,146 CPSs on 8 July 2015. Rich Century then disposed
1,095,042,146 CPSs on 15 July 2015. Therefore, as of 31 December 2015, Rich Century
held 3,303,223,684 CPSs (rounding difference included).

| —
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated =~ W& 2 EItEZEZ R RIGRHE R IFE

corporations of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the Director had the following interests in Synergis: M2015F12A31A - EERHEEEPHA A T s

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Number of interest in

ordinary underlying the issued

Name of Director Capacity shares held shares held Total  share capital

HERTRF

BRZ FRZHERA ZIE S

EEgR 513 HEESE Bin& A et HEL

(Note 1)

(BRF=ED)

LIN Zhuo Yan Interests of spouse 57,846,436 = 57,846,436 16.64%
MR A B #E o (Note 2)
(P&E2)
Notes: iz

(1) There were 347,676,000 ordinary shares of Synergis in issue as at 31 December 2015. (1) HEEER2015F12A31H 2 B 317 5B /347,676,000 °

) Synergis is owned by Summit View as to 57,846,436 ordinary shares. Summit View is owned (2)
as to 50% by Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. Ma Kwing, Pony. As such,
Summit View is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai and
Ms. Ma Kwing, Pony under the SFO.

Ms. MA Kwing, Pony is the spouse of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan and is deemed to be interested
under the SFO.

HMEERABRESS7,846436/ KR - R MEREB LN
FMZ L% BHEAS0% Bt REEFRAEED BRKE
RERBELREMNZ L2 RXE-

BIMZ L RAMBIELEZ IR iRIEES LKD) MREIE
ARG BB -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and chief B ESCPREEE SN 20155124310 AR RIBREE R
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short positions 17 B A8 £k 3 1 % 2 Bk 22 AL AR 1% ) 3 B AE{] AR HE
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its (EERBHLEEGAIEXVER) 2G5 - A8 RG &
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded &% H A (E e s SOK B T ad SR IR 28 o5 S B B 1
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO ~ BIFE352(6 AR RIATFE Z ERMA - REEET A
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange — ZRiBAIANA &) KB 32 Fr

pursuant to Model Code.
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Share Option Schemes

2008 Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
on 22 May 2008 (the “2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option
Scheme, the directors may, at their absolute discretion, make an offer to grant
share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive director of the Company or its
subsidiaries. A summary of the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme
(@) Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in the
prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested Entity”) and
consequently such opportunity is an incentive for such Eligible Person
to contribute further to the success of the Company and/or its any
subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.

(b) Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme
The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
("Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”):

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of the Company, its subsidiary or any Invested
Entity and for the avoidance of doubt, including any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of
China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; or

(i) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the persons mentioned in
subparagraphs (i) and (i) above.
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Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2008
Option Scheme

As at 24 March 2016, the total number of shares available for issue
was 24,004,000 shares, representing 0.44% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the 2008
Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of Shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the total number of issued Shares on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval by the shareholders in a general meeting with
such Eligible Person and his/her associates abstaining from voting has
been obtained.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of HK$10.00 is
payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer. Such amount
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Basic of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i)  the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, which must be a
business day; and

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in the offer
letter in respect of the option.
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(h)

Remaining life

The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme.
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Movements under the 2008 Option Scheme (2) 2008FRBRIEFTEIT 225

Details of movements in the share options under the 2008 Option Scheme, R2008F R EI TRREZ ZF SRR FYI R

and the options outstanding as at the beginning and the year ended 31 HE2015F12 A3V A IEFE 2 RI1TERBREFIB W

December 2015 are as follows: N

Weighted
average
Closing price of
Number of Number price  closing price
share of share per share per share
options X . options immediately  immediately
held as at Changes during the period held as at Exercise before date  before date of
1 January 31 December price of grantof  exercise of
Name of grantee Date of grant 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2015 per share Exercisable period  share options  share options
20158 R2015% SRR
181R 128318 RENRE  GEAND
#EZ #EZ EHANG Shing
ABARE RHEH HEERA Rl fie 34 B BREBE  SROER e SREHRE  FHETR
(ddmm/yyyy) (HKS) (dd/mm/yyyy) (HKS) (HKS)
(B/R/%) (#%T) (B/R/%) (#ET) (#&T)
Directors
13
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,000 - - - - 1,334,000 1.02 04/12/2010- 03/12/2019 1.02 -
LUI Chun Pong 01/09/2011 750,000 - - - - 750,000 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021 127 -
i
Ex-director
HEF
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai® 23/05/2008 5,000,000% - - - - 5,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018 204 -
THES
Employees (in aggregate) 23/05/2008 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018 204 -
[ -1€-C) 04/12/2009 2,920,000" - - (1,500,000) - 1,420,000 1.02 04/12/2010- 03/12/2019 1.02 -
01/09/2011 1,500,0002 - - - - 1,500,000 129 300092012 - 31/08/2021 127 -
Total 25,504,000 - - (1,500,000) - 24,004,000
i

Notes: i

(1) Share options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012 (1) RBEHES BIF2010%E 20114 K20125E12 4B 2 = 2
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and IR WiNE 8 AEEZE2019612 A38 LR F17
ending on 3 December 2019. f#io

(2)  Share options were vested in three portions on 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014 (2)  RIEHED BIF20124F ~ 20134F K£20145F9A30H & = P
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and MEEE Wit 8 ABREZE202148A31H (LHR A F17
ending on 31 August 2021. fize

(3)  Share options were vested in equal portions on 1 January 2009 and 2010 respectively, (3)  REEAED BIM2009% K%2010F1 A1HIZRASHHFE -
and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 22 May WREE HES-EE201855A22H (L EARI A] F17(%
2018.

(4)  Share options were vested in three portions on 1 January 2009, 2010 and 2011 (4  RREAED BIR20094 ~ 20104F 2011461 B1HZ =210
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and HE NS B8 AR E2018F58228 LA A 17
ending on 22 May 2018. fio

(5)  Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai resigned as the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive (5) FREHTDEMERITERIRITERALE - H20155F11 A1

Officer with effect from 1 November 2015.
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Synergis Share Option Schemes

At the annual general meeting of Synergis held on 17 June 2013, its shareholders
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme, which was adopted
on 19 September 2003 (the “Old Option Scheme”). Share options granted under
the Old Option Scheme remain effective. Details of the Old Option Scheme and
the New Option Scheme as required to be disclosed under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Summary of the Old Option Scheme
(@) Purpose of the Old Option Scheme
The Old Option Scheme was set up for the purpose of recognising and
motivating the contribution of the Eligible Persons (as defined below)
to Synergis and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as
defined below).

(b) Participants of the Old Option Scheme
Eligible persons entitled to participate in the Old Option Scheme (the
“Eligible Persons”) include:

()  any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which Synergis or
any of its subsidiaries holds an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”); including any executive director of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any employee employed
or to be employed by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(i) any shareholder of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who had, in the
opinion of the board, made contribution to the business growth
of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any person or entity that provided research, development or
other technological support to Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(v) any supplier of goods and/or services to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(vi) any business collaborator, business consultant, joint venture or
business partner, technical, financial, legal and other professional
advisers engaged by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;
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(d)

(vii) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the directors
or the substantial shareholders of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity who had, in the opinion of the board,
made contribution to the business growth of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; or

(viii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which included any of the above-mentioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Old Option Scheme, the options might be
granted to any company wholly-owned by one or more of the above
Eligible Persons.

Maximum number of shares available for issue under the
Old Option Scheme

As at 24 March 2016, the total number of shares available for issue
was 1,394,000 shares, representing 0.40% of the issued share capital
of Synergis.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the Old
Option Scheme

No option might be granted to any one Eligible Person in any
12-month period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the
options previously granted to him/her which had been exercised and,
issuable to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her
which were for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding
1% of the share capital of Synergis in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless being approved by the shareholders of
Synergis in a general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of Synergis, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
and to be granted to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of the proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of the proposed grant, was in excess of HK$5.0 million,
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such proposed grant of option shall be subject to the prior approval
of the shareholders of Synergis at a general meeting in which all
connected persons for the time being of Synergis (if any) (except
where any connected person intends to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so had been stated in the
circular) should abstain from voting at such general meeting and at
which any vote taken should be taken on a poll.

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by an Eligible Person
(and by no other person except the Eligible Person) in respect of all
the Shares for which the offer is made. Acceptance should be made
by such Eligible Person by signing and returning the duplicate of the
offer letter together with the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00
for such grant to Synergis within the time period specified in the offer
letter.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted under the
Old Option Scheme should be a price determined by the board and
notified to each grantee and should not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of a share; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on which an
offer for grant of an option (the “Old Offer Date”) was made to an
Eligible Person; and (iii) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the Old Offer Date which
must be a business day, provided that the subscription price should be
rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There was no minimum holding period for which an option must
be held before exercise pursuant to the Old Option Scheme. The
commencement date of an option period should be specified by the
board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life
The Old Option Scheme was terminated pursuant to resolutions
passed by the shareholders on 17 June 2013.
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(2) Summary of the New Option Scheme

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the New Option Scheme

The New Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of recognising and
motivating the contribution of the Eligible Persons (as defined below)
to Synergis and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as
defined below).

Participants of the New Option Scheme
Eligible persons entitled to participate in the New Option Scheme (the
"Eligible Persons”) include:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which Synergis or
any of its subsidiaries holds an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”); including any executive director of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any employee employed
or to be employed by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(i) any shareholder of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who has, in the
opinion of the board, made contribution to the business growth
of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(v) any supplier of goods and/or services to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(vi) any business collaborator, business consultant, joint venture or
business partner, technical, financial, legal and other professional
advisers engaged by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(vii) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the directors
or the substantial shareholders of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity who has, in the opinion of the board,
made contribution to the business growth of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; or

(viii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the above-mentioned persons,
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and, for the purposes of the New Option Scheme, the options may be
granted to any company wholly owned by one or more of the above
Eligible Persons.

Maximum number of shares available for issue under the
New Option Scheme

As at 24 March 2016, the total number of shares available for issue
was 100,000 shares, representing 0.03% of the issued share capital of
Synergis.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the
New Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the share capital of Synergis in issue on the last date of such 12-month
period unless being approved by the shareholders of Synergis in a
general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of Synergis, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result
in the shares issued upon exercise of all options already granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) and to be
granted to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of the proposed grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of the proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such proposed grant of option should be subject to the prior approval
of the shareholders of Synergis at a general meeting in which all
connected persons for the time being of Synergis (if any) (except
where any connected person intends to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so has been stated in the
circular) shall abstain from voting at such general meeting and at
which any vote taken shall be taken on a poll.
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Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible Person
(and by no other person) in respect of all the shares for which the
offer is made. Acceptance shall be made by such Eligible Person by
signing and returning the duplicate of the offer letter together with
the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to Synergis
within the time period specified in the offer letter.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted under the
New Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of a share; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which
an offer for grant of an option (the “New Offer Date”) is made to an
Eligible Person; and (jii) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the New Offer Date which
must be a business day, provided that the subscription price shall be
rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There is no minimum holding period for which an option must
be held before exercise pursuant to the New Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be specified by the board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life

The New Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 17 June 2013, the date of adoption of the New
Option Scheme, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
rules of the New Option Scheme.

(e)

()

(9

(h)
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(3) Movements in Options (3) BREZEE
Details of movements in the share options under the Old Option Scheme EEBIERTE MBI T8 TR E 2 B85
and the New Option Scheme, and the share options outstanding at the BRREVIREZ2015F12A318 LFE 2 K17
beginning and the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out as follows: BRI T
Weighted
average price
of closing
Closing price price per
Number of Number of per share share
share share immediately  immediately
options held options held
P ot Changes during the year P ot e before date  before date
1 January FRED 31 December price of grantof  of exercise of
Name of grantees Date of grant 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2015 per share Exercisable period  share options  share options
R2015E 20155 RERER
1818 12A310 REREE OEEWS
b:1-F4 REZ S Lil Shing
ABARE REEH BRERA i fifE E3 B WREME SROER fif  SREHE  FYRTHR
(ddmmdyyy) (HKS) (dd/mmdyyy) (HKS) (HKS)
(B/R/%) (#%7) (B/R/%) (#%7) (B%T)
Directors
j £
Brenda Yau Shuk Mee” 271052013 720,000° - (180,000) - - 540,000 0952 2710512015 - 27/05/2019 094 335
HRE
Terence Leung Siu Cheong? 27052013 1,00,000° - (300,000) - - 900,000 0952 271052015 - 27/05/2019 094 362
2kEe
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 27/052013 300,0000 - - - - 300,000 0952 2710512014 - 27/05/2017 094 -
Zhw 16/10/2013 600,000 = (500,000) = - 100,000 0850 16102013 - 15102018 085 272
Kan Fook Yee 27/052013 300,000° = = = = 300,000 0952 27/0512014 - 27/05/2017 094 =
s 16/102013 600,000 - (600,000 - - - 0850 16/102013 - 151012018 085 280
Wong Tsan Kwong 27052013 300,0008 - (200,000) - - 100,000 0952 2710512014 - 27/05/2017 094 301
Bt 16102013 600,000 = (600,000) = = = 0850 16/102013 - 15/102018 085 3.00
David Yu Hon To 27052013 300,000¢ - (200,000) - - 100,000 0952 2710512014 - 27/05/2017 094 339
§2E 16/10/2013 600,000 = (600,000) = = = 0850 16102013 - 15102018 085 294
Ex-directors
HER
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai" 25/0972009 2,000,000' - {2,000,000) - - - 0820 25/09/2010 - 2410972015 081 331
THEw 27/052013 1,200,000¢ = (480,000) (720,000) = = 0952 27/0512014 - 27/05/2019 094 EAll
Fan Cheuk Hung? 25/09/2009 1,500,000° - (1,500,000) - - - 0820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015 081 230
Hejge 01/0922011 1,500,000° - (1,500,000) - - - 0760 01/0922012 - 31/08/2015 073 230
Employees (in aggregate) 28/06/2010 150,000’ - (150,000) - - - 0.9% 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015 098 297
®A (2%) 07/0672011 880,000 = (400,000) (120,000) = 360,000 0.860 07/06/2012 - 06/06/2017 085 27
27/052013 9,750,000¢ - (25160000 (1,440,000) = 5,794,000 0952 2710512014 - 27/05/2019 094 294
22,500,000 - (11,726,000  (2,280,000) - 8,494,000
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Notes:

! Share options were vested in equal portions on 25 September 2010, 2011, 2012,
2013 and 2014 respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective
dates and ending on 24 September 2015.

2 Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions on 7 June 2012, 2013,
2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period
from the respective dates and ending on 6 June 2017.

3 Share options were vested in equal portions on 1 September 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2015.

4 Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2014, 2015,
2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period
from the respective dates and ending on 27 May 2019.

° Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2015, 2016,
2017 and 2018 respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period from the
respective dates and ending on 27 May 2019.

6 Share options were or are to be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2014, 2015 and
2016 respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period from the respective
dates and ending on 27 May 2017.

7 Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee was appointed as an executive director of Synergis with
effect from 10 April 2015.

8 Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong was appointed as an executive director of Synergis
with effect from 10 April 2015.

o Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung resigned as an executive director and managing director of
Synergis with effect from 1 September 2015.

0 Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai resigned as a non-executive director and chairman of
Synergis with effect from 11 December 2015.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year, the Company operated a share option scheme pursuant to which
options may be granted, inter alia, to the directors of the Company. Certain
directors of the Company, being also directors of Synergis, are also eligible to
participate in the Synergis Share Option Schemes pursuant to which they may be
granted options for subscription of shares in Synergis. Details of such schemes
and the movements in options are set out in the paragraphs entitled “Share
Option Schemes” above. Further details of options granted and/or shares allotted
or transferred to the directors of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph
entitled “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” and note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. YAN Jie (a Non-executive Director)
was the board chairman of KEMEBFERBMR AT (“Tewoo Property”)
engaging in property development in the PRC (the “Tewoo Business”). Based
on Tewoo Group's website, in recent years, it has developed and is developing
projects of approximately 1.4 million sg.m GFA in total. Tewoo Property is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Tewoo Group, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

For the purposes of the Listing Rules, Mr. YAN lJie is considered to have interests
(by way of directorship) in competing businesses (i.e. property development and
investment in the PRC). The operations of Tewoo Property and the Group and
their respective management are totally separate and independent. Therefore,
the Company has been and continues to carry on its business, management and
operation independently of, and at arm'’s length from, the Tewoo Business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (excluding Independent Non-
executive Directors) were interested in any business apart from the Group's
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

On 8 January 2015, a total of 857,449,996 Rights Shares offered under the
Rights Issue and a total of 1,472,960,000 New Placing Shares at the Placing Price
of HK$1.00 per New Placing Share were issued pursuant to the announcement
and right issue prospectus of the Company dated 9 December 2014. Upon
completion of the Rights Issue and New Placing, all condition precedents set
out in the acquisition agreement of the entire issued share capital of Goleman
International Limited (“Goleman”) were satisfied and the acquisition was
completed on the same date.
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Issuance of convertible preference shares (“CPS”)

On 8 January 2015 and 8 July 2015, the Company issued a total of
5,654,772,134 CPS as the consideration (excluding the holdback amount) to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Goleman, which through its wholly
owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Goleman Group”) holds 7 parcels of land in
Foshan City, Guangdong Province.

Subsequent to the year end and on 15 January 2016, the Company further
issued 259,263,039 CPS to settle the holdback amount which was pending the
determination of the aggregate amount of fee, fine or penalty (if any) charged
under the relevant land grant contract or applicable Mainland of China laws at
any time after completion but on or before 31 December 2015 in respect of any
delay in the development of certain acquired parcels of land.

Issuance of convertible bonds

On 20 November 2015, the Company issued a 2-year convertible bonds with
principal amounts of US$100 million due on 20 November 2017 bearing interest
of 6% per annum which is payable semi-annually (the “Convertible Bonds”)
and listed on the Stock Exchange. Certain information regarding the Convertible
Bonds are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
181 to 182.

Save as above, the option schemes mentioned under “Share Option Scheme”
above and in note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31 December 2015.
Other than those disclosed above and in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participated defined contribution retirement schemes during the year.
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 2(u)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the following
substantial shareholders (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RELXEIRGEEBRGZIFE
Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Number of Shares Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder(s) Capacity held/involved  underlying Shares capital
HERT
¥,/ SR 2. 34
BRREE E L] Bin 8 B HRRHEE #Haat
(Note 3)
(Ff3E3)
(1) Tewoo Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of controlled 513,861,240 3,000,000,000 67.72%
REVESEFRAR corporation
s E
(2) Tewoo Investment Co., Limited Beneficial owner 137,940,000 - 2.66%
RAYREBRAT EnAA
Interests of controlled 375,921,240 3,000,000,000 65.06%
corporation
EEEERE R
(3) Riant Investment Co., Limited Beneficial owner 375,921,240 3,000,000,000 65.06%
W RRERRAR EREAA
(4) Neo Summit Beneficial owner 475,816,993 - 9.17%
i EnEBA (Note 1(a))
(FfH3E1())
(5)  Summit View Beneficial owner 991,041,796 - 19.10%
= EnBEAA (Notes 1(b))
(FFEE1(0))
(6) MA Kwing, Pony Interests of controlled 1,466,858,789 - 28.27%
5 corporation Notes 1(a)(b)
XEEE R (MiEE1@)b))
Interests of spouse = 3,303,223,683 63.66%
[ (Note 2)
(Fff&E2)
(7)  Wilfred WONG Ying Wai Beneficial owner 26,000,000 5,000,000 0.60%
FTHE ERlEE A (Note 4)
(Fi5E4)
Interests of controlled 1,466,858,789 - 28.27%

*  for identification purposes only
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Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Number of Shares Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder(s) Capacity held/involved  underlying Shares capital
, HEBT
Fi,/ BRE 2. ¥4
BRREE 213 KRz H HRREHE #Buaakt
(Notge 3)
(FEE3)
(8) Rich Century Development Limited Benefigial owner - 3,303,223,683 63.66%
it ERARAR B (Note 2)
GE)
(9) China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 830,219,280 - 16.00%
BrEEFRHBRA A __ corporation (long position)
XA E RS HE)
83,100,000 = 1.60%
(short position)
(k&)
(10) China Merchants Securities International Interests of controlled 830,219,280 - 16.00%
Company Limited __ corporation (long position)
i EFEE AR AR TR EE RS (4 7)
83,100,000 - 1.60%
(short position)
(k&)
(11) China Merchants Securities Investment Beneficial owner 747,119,280 - 14.40%
Management (HK) Co., Limited EmEBA (long position)
BRAEFREEE (FE)ARAA iR
(12) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests of controlled 400,000,000 - 7.71%
__ corporation (Note 5)
XEEEER (Fft5E5)
(13) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited Interests of controlled 400,000,000 - 7.71%
__ corporation (Notg 5)
REEEER (PH3E5)
(14) Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Interests of controlled 400,000,000 - 7.71%
__ corporation (Note 5)
R EEER (F¥7E5)
(15) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interests of controlled 400,000,000 - 7.71%
__ corporation (Note 5)
X EE R (FftzE5)
(16) Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Beneficial owner 400,000,000 - 7.71%
BAABREATRAA EafEaA (Note 5)
(Ff5E5)
(17) MAK Siu Hang Viola Interests of controlled 400,000,000 - 7.71%
B _ corporation
i E R
(18) VMS Holdings Limited Interests of controlled 400,000,000 - 7.71%
__ corporation
X EE R
(19) VMS Investment Group Ltd. Beneficial owner 400,000,000 - 7.71%

=

fos
Bm
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(a) 475,816,993 Shares are held by Neo Summit, which is owned by (a) Pinnacle State
Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings Limited ("“Summit
View") as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%; and (d)
Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly
wholly-owned by Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai. Jones Capital Investments Limited is
wholly-owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony (“Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed
to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the
SFO.

(b) 991,041,796 ordinary shares are held by Summit View, which is owned as to 50% by
Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed
to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the
SFO.

As disclosed in (i) the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014, Hsin Chong
Property Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
entered into the Acquisition Agreement with Rich Century (@ company wholly-owned by
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan) as the Vendor and Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan as the warrantor regarding a very
substantial acquisition in relation to the acquisition of a property development project in the
PRC; and (i) the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2014, a Supplemental
Agreement was entered into amongst the same parties. As part of the consideration of
the Acquisition Agreement, the Company may issue to Rich Century CPSs which can be
converted into Shares in the Company. As such, Rich Century being a company wholly
owned by Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
under the SFO. MA Kwing, Pony is the spouse of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan and is deemed to be
interested under the SFO.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015 in relation to the
issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, the total number of CPSs (issued or which
may be issued) to Rich Century and which can be converted into Shares of the Company is
6,253,829,151. Upon issue of certain number of CPSs to Rich Century on 8 January 2015,
it then disposed 1,855,563,322 CPSs on the same date. Therefore, as of 30 June 2015, Rich
Century held 4,398,265,830 CPSs (rounding difference included).

As further disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2015 in
relation to the issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, Rich Century was further
allotted by the Company 1,095,042,146 CPSs on 8 July 2015. Rich Century then disposed
1,095,042,146 CPSs on 15 July 2015. Therefore, as of 31 December 2015, Rich Century
held 3,303,223,684 CPSs (rounding difference included).

There were 5,188,576,651 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December
2015.

As of 31 December 2015, the interests in the underlying shares held by Dr. Wilfred WONG
Ying Wai represented share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on May 22, 2008.

As of 31 December 2015, 400,000,000 shares are held by Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited,
which is owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited as to 99.80%. Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited is owned by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited as to 78.58%. Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited is in turn owned by (i) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited as to 48.98% and (i)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited as to 46.65%.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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72015128310  TEREBLFE 2 AR YD 2 E=ERE
N EFA20084F5 22 AN 2 SRR HERT BI% ) 2 RARAE o

20156124315 A KRR R IE A B R 2 7% 5400,000,000
PR A% 17 $.99.80% & &A1& (12A%) AR A B#A o M Chow Tai
Fook Capital Limited BIIFA EIAAE (#1%) R A Rl#5H78.58% %
&% » M Chow Tai Fook Capital Limitedf LA T~ & 75 # A () Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited###548.98% K (i) Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited{% 5 46.65% ©

Fr EXPATIEEEE SN - 1A20158F 12 318 AN A BN R
EREMALT (KRRESERITBERRY
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BIEHIE336GARRIETHFEZELMA-
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company and/or its subsidiaries
had entered into (or continued to be a party to) the following continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the annual review and reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(A) Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements
Cogent Spring Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, or the
Company entered into tenancy agreement, sub-lease agreement or carpark
agreement with subsidiaries of Synergis, details of the transactions were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company of 7 January 2014 and 27
February 2015. The annual caps, annual considerations and other details for
the year ended 31 December 2015 were as follows:
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FHERERXS

REZE2015F12A31HEFERN  ARE R SEWBR
BIERIM (BB AZERHZEIHNA) N EES LT
MABUAZEZ FEEZLBRBENFEBRERS:

(A) HERBREFELGHR
N2 7z 2B K B A R Cogent Spring Limitedgk AN &
RIEMFEERZMB AR T HERRE 2R
BUFESHH EEXIHFBERERAARHE
A2014F 1 A78 X2015%2 278 2 A& - H ZE2015
FRAJNALFE FELR FEREREMFSE
e

Annual Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annualcap  consideration connected person’s interest
MEAL 21 =L MR B FELR FERE MEALZERREREE
(HKS) (HK9)
(BB (B%T)

Hsin Chong Interiors Renewal Sub-lease Agreement 2 years from 1 January  Lease of portion of 7/F of 1,000,000 935,878 Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS are
(Hong Kong) Limited dated 27 February 2015 20150 31 December ~ Hsin Chong Center wholly-owned subsidiaries of Synergs,
("Hsin Chong Interiors”) A 8182015628278 2 2016 HEHEHLTEZHH a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
as lessee R m2015F 1 F1ARE the Company where Summit View

MEENEH (FE) 20165124318 Holdings Limited, a substantial
BRAR ([HEER Ik shareholder of the Company, is

5H))  feREEA

directly holding 16.64% of Synergs.
Hence, Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS

Synergis Management Tenancy Agreement dated 2 years from 1 January  Lease of portion of 3fF, 5F, 4,000,000 3971,621  are connected persons under the
Services Limited (“SMS") 7 January 2014 201410 31 December  8/F and 10/F of Listing Rules.
as lessee BHA014518782 2015 Hsin Chong Center HEERENRNEEERBALA
MEERRBERNA REHH m014EIAIRRE  HEMERL3E 52 8 AR EMBARNE R 2 AN
(HHEERRE]) 2015412318 Riogz#h BRR ARz TERRESER
{ERAEEA flois ARARERFANEEE664%
IR Rk HEEARMRIE
SMS as lessee New Carpark Agreement 2years from 1 January  Lease of car parking spaces 230,000 196604 ERREALHRAET2BEA

MEEBREEARAA  dated 27 February 2015 201510 31 December  FEHER
H#A201552R278 2 2016
MEE G M2015F1 A1AEE
2016512A318
Ik

+o
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(B) General Business Services Agreement

The Company entered into a General Business Services Agreement on
31 December 2014 with Synergis pursuant to which Synergis Group is
the service provider. The annual cap for the General Business Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$35,000,000.
Details of the General Business Services Transaction were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014.

(B) —REFEIRE BB

AN TR EBIEN20145E12 31T — R ER
Rt B EEREB AA RIS 2 HES -
HZE2015F 128318 1L FE —REKRERZER
F[Z PR AB35,000,00070 c —RREBKRBEZHH
FIEEBENARRHEA2014F12A31B 2 A%

Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person'’s interest
HEAL 1 B 8 1R Hf FERE MEALZHEGMEREE
(HKS)
(B%T)
Synergis General Business 3 years from 1 January Provision of property and 15,602,864  The Company is a substantial
mEER Services Agreement 2015 to 31 December facility management shareholder and controlling

dated 31 December 2017

2014 201551 A1ERE
2017128318

FHR2014512831
Bz—MEBRYE 137
fthat

services, cleaning services
and miscellaneous services
by relevant members
of Synergis to relevant
members of the Group
HEEEEERE RRIRA
SEREKE LR
ERREEERE ER
PR ¥ Bk TE R 7%

shareholder of Synergis and
hence, Synergis is a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
ARRRMEERMNTERE
RS Bt HEEEAL
MHRAET ZBEAL

(C) Tender Services Agreement

The Company entered into the Tender Services Agreement with Synergis
on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which the Group will provide tender
services to Synergis Group. The annual cap for the Tender Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$1,300,000,000.
Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the

(O RIFEE &

AATHFEEIEN2014F12 431 B ] LR B ARFS
Wiz B A E @ A & T IR S BIREIRIZRG -
HE2015F 12 A3 IEFE  HIZRE HENFE L
R &5 % 1,300,000,0007T ° X SR FFIEHER AR
HHEIA2014F12A31B 2 25 X HE 520152 A2

Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular dated 2 February 2015. A28 e
Annual  Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person's interest
MEAL 1a i B HR Hf FERE MEALZEEMEREE

(HK$)

(B%TL)

Synergis Tender Services 3 years from 1 January To provide tender services to 245,956,302 The Company is a substantial

MEER Agreement dated 31 2015 to 31 December Synergis Group shareholder and controlling
December 2014 2017 M e E RS ERMERE shareholder of Synergis and

H#A2014%12831  @2015F1 A1HER
20174128318

B2 RERH
1F3%

5

hence, Synergis is a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
ARRRHEERNFTERE
BRRR Bt HEEBAR L
MRAE T 2 AL
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(D) Supporting Services Agreement

(E)

The Company entered into the Supporting Services Agreement with
Synergis on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which the Group will provide
supporting services (which mainly involve staff costs in health, safety,
quality, environmental, plant, surveying, site administration, building
services and special projects, etc.) to Synergis Group. The annual cap for
the Supporting Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015
was HK$20,000,000. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular
dated 2 February 2015.
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(D) XiEERE K

AATHEFEEEN2014F12 831 B 5] L B IR
Wi B AL A E T EEBRE T IRRG
EREIrESRERE -T2 RE RE -HE -#HE-
HWEREE BFREMMFANBEESETIXNA-HE
2015F12A31B IEFE T ERGEHE2FE LR
A 78120,000,0007T ° X W FFIBH BN AAQ R A H
A2014F 128318 2 A5 M HEA2015F2 828 2
K o

Annual  Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person's interest
WEAL 4 1=R HR i3 FERE REALCHEMEREE
(HK$)
(B%T)
Synergis Supporting Services 3 years from 1 January To provide supporting services 9,280,889  The Company is a substantial
MEER Agreement dated 31 2015 to 31 December to Synergis Group shareholder and controlling
December 2014 2017 mEITEEESBREE shareholder of Synergis and
AEA2014F12A318 #2015F1A188ZE R hence, Synergis is a connected
X BRI HE 20176124318 person under the Listing Rules.
IE3%E AARARHEERMTIERE

BB Bt HEEEAL
MHREAE N EEALe

Specialist Works Sub-Contracting Agreement

The Company entered into the Specialist Works Sub-Contracting Agreement
with Synergis on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which Synergis Group may
engage the Group as the sub-contractor of Synergis Group for provision
of specialist works to the Synergis Group's projects. The annual cap for
the Specialist Works Sub-Contracting Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2015 was HK$600,000,000. Details of the transactions were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014
and its circular dated 2 February 2015.

() BFIIEDHE#E

AN FIEH S BEIEPN20145612 83185 EF TR
DHWE BUHFEEEEENREAEEELAT
EEEERZHHEANEEREEZIBE RESE
FITAR - H ZE2015F 12 A31H IEFE  HEFTED ¥
ik 2 FE LR A% ¥600,000,0007T ° X H 1B
WEARNAT B A2014512831B 2 A5 & B H
A2015F2 A28 28K »

Annual  Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person's interest
WEAL hEEH HR HiE FERE MEALZERMEREE
(HKS)
(A%
Synergis Specialist Works 3 years from 1 January Synergis Group to engage the 0 The Company is a substantial
MEER Sub-Contracting 2015 to 31 December Group as its sub-contractor shareholder and controlling

Agreement dated 31 2017

for providing specialist

shareholder of Synergis and

December 2014 A2015F1 A1ARE works hence, Synergis is a connected
BEA2014E12A318 20174128318 HEERSBREALE(E person under the Listing Rules.
ZEFIRAHGE I3F REAHIEREFMIE ADAIRMEEEMEERE

BBR - At HEEEAL
MRAET ZEEAL
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(F) ISP Works Sub-Contracting Agreement
The Company entered into the ISP Works Sub-Contracting Agreement with
Synergis on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which the Group may engage
the Synergis Group as its sub-contractor for provision of the ISP works to
the Group's projects. The annual cap for the ISP Works Sub-Contracting
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$700,000,000.
Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular dated 2 February 2015.

() BEAZGREFFHEEIES VGBS
RAREFEEIEN2014F12 83185 L EANEH
LERIEE IR A B ASEZENS
EEREEEAESHE AALEEZEEREENA
N ERIAEE T2 - B 22015F 12 A31HIEFE -
EREMEEREE TRRDHHE 2 FEE LR AS
#700,000,0007C ° X Z W FBHERA AT B A
2014F12A31B 2 R E K BB A2015F2 A2H 2@

Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  connected person's interest
REAL 4 1=R KRR <3 FERR REALCHREEREE
(HKS)
(B¥T)
Synergis ISP Works Sub- 3 years from 1 January The Group to engage Synergis 671,600,000  The Company is a substantial
HEER Contracting 2015 to 31 December Group as its subcontractor shareholder and controlling
Agreement dated 31 2017 for providing ISP works shareholder of Synergis and
December 2014 A2015F1A1ARE AEBZENEEEEE hence, Synergis is a connected
A#EA2014F128318 2017124318 ERESHEREER person under the Listing Rules.
ZEREMHPRRA  3F KM REFHRIER T12 ARRRHEERMNTERE

BIEDHGH

RIRR Bt HEERARL
MRAET ZBEEAL

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) of the Company
have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected transactions
mentioned in (A) to (F) above conducted in the year were entered into on the
following basis:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(0 according to the relevant agreements governing these transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group as above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015:

(@) have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group where the transactions involve the provision of services by the
Group;

(© were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in the respective
previous announcements of the Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected
transactions mentioned in (A) to (F) above.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 61% (2014: 74%) of the
Group's total revenue and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 24%
(2014: 41%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The 5 largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% (2014: less than
30%) of the Group's total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

Bank Borrowings
The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2015 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Bonds

On 20 November 2015, the Company issued Convertible Bonds bearing interest
at 6% per annum at a par value of US$100 million. The bonds mature two
years from the issue date at their nominal value of US$100 million or can be
converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the holder’s option within
the conversion period at the initial conversion of HK$1.00 per share subject to
adjustments required under the conditions of the bonds. The maximum number
of ordinary shares to be issued at the maturity date is 775,020,000 shares and
none of them was issued up to 31 December 2015. The net proceeds received
from the issuance of convertible bonds was HK$728.7 million. The Company
will not receive further consideration when any holder determines to convert the
bonds into ordinary shares of the Company on conversion date. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds for refinancing the Group’s debts and provision
of working capital for its general corporate purposes.
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(d) HBEARRZEAEHKEZBEFELR-

ARREREXFENZEFEMLEHANFERERSE
S ETRAFAAT R AR E

FEERRHERD

RER  REBEZASUEFEREBAIZE261% (2014
F:74%) MAEEZAEFAMEAREB @AW EZ24%
(20144 : 41% ) ©

RER NEBFASMEEEEREER 2 BRBEIR
30% (20144 : LA30% ) °

EF IARSZHBEAIBR (BESHAEEALQR
BERITHRABES%E) IERANEEEASEFTHESR
EfaiEas -
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AEEMR2014512A318 &2015F12 318 2 R1TIEE
FHIBERRNER A T SRR 27 -

CIE: Y3
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Donations
During the year, donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes
amounted to HK$279,000 (2014: HK$2,566,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 36 to
the financial statements. In relation to those related party transactions that also
constituted connected transaction or continuing connected transactions of the
Group as defined in the Listing Rules, if any, the relevant disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of knowledge of its directors.

Auditor

The retiring auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has offered themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2016 annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
auditor of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix
its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS “HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD."”)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the "“Group”)
set out on pages 113 to 204, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

* for identification purposes only
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BULHERS

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

D AN L
ol maR
For the year ended 31 December 2015
B ZE20155F12A31BIEFE
2015 2014
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE BETT PRI IT
Revenue ek 5 15,018,873 14,010,505
Cost of sales HE AR 8 (14,397,789) (13,377,607)
Gross profit EF 621,084 632,898
Other gains, net Hofth iy #5558 6 117,282 8,516
Gains on bargain purchase AEWE R 34 2,320,579 =
Fair value gain on investment properties JEWMEDRERS 16 191,465 403,691
Net exchange loss b 5 &8 (17,538) (2,026)
Selling and general administrative expense HER—MRITHBAX (515,603) (435,652)
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 17 (12,195) (12,269)
Interest income B A 3,123 1,370
Interest expenses K B 7 (122,587) (43,036)
Profit before taxation B 75 A A 8 2,585,610 553,492
Taxation ] 12 (111,520) (150,617)
Profit for the year AN 2,474,090 402,875
Profit attributable to: AT &7 (R mA
Equity holders of the Company RATRE=FEA 2,445,837 387,558
Non-controlling interests FEFERAR M AR 28,253 15,317
2,474,090 402,875
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) GRREARZF (BE) 13 46.4 13.6
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREERF (BEAL) 13 22.3 13.6
Dividends %2 14 108,433 243,045
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEZTENER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A318IEFE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit for the year S AFEsN 2,47409 402,875
Other comprehensive (lossyincome Hibz2m (BER) =
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: BT EE DI BB 2 HE -
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations BRENEECIEEEE (3,280) (2,158)
Fair value gain on leasehold land and building HE T REF 2 AR ERE 43,951 139,291
Deferred tax on fair value gain of METHEEFAREBERTZZ
leasehold land and building IEIERL IR (7.252) (22,983)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to HiZ [t BEX 7 Bk
profit or loss: IBH :
Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial asset A EM B EE 2 AR BERE 3,864 17,608
Deferred tax on fair value gain of AP ERBEERA R BERZEZ
available-for-sale financial asset RIETE (966) (4,402)
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEBIINEBEEZER Z58
foreign operations (1,003,401) (33,371)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, REELMBRTIER 2 Efth 2 M|
__netoftax o __ (Bi8) Mows (967,0849) ________ celzkl |
Total comprehensive income for the year, REFELMBRTIARE 2
net of tax SHEW AR 1,507,006 496,860
Total comprehensive income attributable to: ATRATEGEEK=EEE:
Equity holders of the Company RARE=FFEA 1,492,368 481,976
Non-controlling interests e AR M 2 14,638 14,884
1,507,006 496,860
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

FORERER

As at 31 December 2015
201512 A431H

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{h=s B¥TT BT T
Non-current assets EREDEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER TS E T 15 568,137 578,521
Investment properties "EMHE 16 10,721,129 2,806,731
Intangible assets mILEE 17 76,043 87,543
Goodwill 5ES 18 42,002 42,002
Available-for-sale financial asset A E K EE 20 31,662 27,798
Deposits for non-current asset FERBEEZIES 23 208,941 =
Tax indemnification asset BB REEE 34 1,867,518 =
Deferred tax assets EIER IR & B 26 41,974 15,632
13,557,406 3,558,227
Current assets MENEE
Properties under development BRPYE 21 16,808,489 4,287,431
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress FEREzEPTE 22 2,537,258 2,051,994
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R TFBN & 23 2,679,474 2,394,207
Amounts due from non-controlling interests U SE 45 IR A 2 AR B K 24 1,043 3,910
Amount due from an associate JrE B & A B RIR 11,940 =
Amounts due from other partners of FEUHRIZE 2
joint operations 3 \WzéﬂE%ﬂiwﬁ 19 11,200 2,886
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents T RekERBFLIER 25 1,469,463 863,960
Restricted cash ZR RS 25 126,812 30,708
23,645,679 9,635,096
Current liabilities e R s
Bank loans RITER 27 (3,117,787) (2,194,118)
Notes E - (154,7417)
Convertible bonds Al E S 31 (544,199) =
Other borrowings HipEE 29 (2,400,736) =
Payables and accruals EREREFRETER 28 (6,073,538) (4,227,729)
Amounts due to other partners of AN E Gk =y
joint operations Eﬂﬂ/\f’ﬁ%ﬁim 19 (16,153) (10,750)
Financial derivative liability SRMOTETEARE 31 (206,412) =
Current tax liabilities EHHIEEE (66,760) (58,924)
(12,425,585) (6,646,262)
Net current assets MENEERE 11,220,094 2,988,834
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHAR 24,777,500 6,547,061
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Bank loans RITER 27 (679,816) (1,241,680)
Senior notes BEEE 30 (2,275,504) =
Long service payment liabilities RERBEBE 32 (6,553) (3,749)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 26 (7,268,256) (643,182)
Total non-current liabilities ERB & EEE (10,230,129) (1,888,611)
Net assets HEERE 14,547,371 4,658,450
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

TEEBEBEX
2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B eE BETT PEMETIT
Equity Ba

Capital and reserves attributable to FLFEBFEA

the Company'’s equity holders FEAG T & R G O
Share capital [N 33 1,084,335 285,817
Other reserves H b fE 9,694,991 3,347,055
Retained profits R 3,109,814 762,028
Proposed dividends BURA% S = 214,463
13,889,140 4,609,363
Non-controlling interests FEERRES 658,231 49,087
Total equity i E=t g 14,547,371 4,658,450

The financial statements on pages 113 to 120 were approved by the Board of 2511321208 7 B 5 Rz B EHEEZ 720163 724H

Directors on 24 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf HETH T EERELES
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung & {#318 LUI Chun Pong & iE38
Chief Executive Officer 7TIE{ A2 Chief Financial Officer B & 81 7548 &=
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

D AN A —1
w0 .IIE Iz ﬁ ==l ?E
For the year ended 31 December 2015
B ZE20155F12A31BIEFE
2015 2014
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5E BETT BT T
Operating activities BEEE
Net cash outflow from operations L 2B IFRE 39 (229,606) (851,086)
Interest received BEUFIE 3,123 1,370
Interest paid BEfFIE (407,565) (107,958)
Tax paid BEfHIA (43,964) (37,905)
Long service payment RERTE 2 (734) (2,210)
Advance from other partners of REHRERE
joint operations HAih & ERH 2 2K 5,403 15,558
Repayment to other partners of BRTHRLZEZ
joint operations Hih S ERH (8,314) (7,187)
Net cash outflow from operating activities EZFEHZR LR HFHE (681,657) (989,418)
Investing activities BREED
Net cash paid for consideration EREBaHREZ
for business combination He /FE 34 (2,411,927) =
Release/(placement) of time deposit =EANEEEBERZ
over three months e (FH) 7.168 (452)
Payment to non-controlling interest upon R — IR ERANE
dissolution of a non-wholly owned NSITEENE 22
subsidiary T %5 R R K I8 — (225)
Advance to an associate RHF—EBE Q[ 28R (11,940) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB s R (19,048) (36,893)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERLEE (714) (949)
Additions of investment properties RNEREWME (537,517) (2,456)
Deposits paid for an intangible asset HEMEEZENZSE (208,941) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMEE MR RERE
plant and equipment ITIEC T 928 250
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMEFER - 1,353
Net cash receipt from disposal of a subsidiary R E & — RS A RUELZ
ReFE 943 =
Net cash outflow from investing activities BREFEHZHERHBHE (3,181,048) (39,372)
Financing activities mMEED
Drawdown of bank loans REGRITE R 1,344,193 1,893,613
Repayment of bank loans BEBIETER (1,325,295) (975,156)
Net proceeds from issuance of notes BIIRBZGRIEFHE - 148,719
Proceeds from issuance of shares by R T RARRE T 3T 2 E I8
Synergis to non-controlling interests M) FEPE AR 2 AR BR BT
upon exercise of share options A1 P15 318 10,203 3,341
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests Bk T IR e e AR B IR B (11,339) (11,020)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders B T AR B RS (322,896) (85,745)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITIRID PTG 2,255,816 =
Net proceeds from issuance of senior notes REBITRBEREZ
PR sRIR 58 2,271,129 -
Net proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 78 5 21T [ iR (& 55 2
P15 SRR 58 728,713 -
Drawdown of other borrowings REREMEE 1,988,641 =
Repayment of other borrowings BERAMER (2,284,083) =
Repayment of notes EBEEE (156,250) =
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEFEHZHERANBRHE 4,498,832 973,752
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER
2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT BT T
Increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRERBALEH
cash equivalents |/, (D) 636,127 (55,038)
Cash and cash equivalents RENZH e RER
at the beginning of the year REIEH 850,045 907,725
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents RekFREASERZ
I 5 &5 18 (23,456) (2,642)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZHEERERARESTH
the end of the year 1,462,716 850,045
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash HReRSRAREHAREZ
equivalents: b2k
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted RITHEFRIBE TR 1,469,463 863,960
Less: Time deposit over three months B =18 A LA EEHRTF R (6,747) (13,915)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZEERER
at the end of the year RE&mAE 1,462,716 850,045

1 1 8/HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2015

B ZE20155F12A31BIEFE
Capital Convertible
redemption bonds and
and Share  warrants Non-
Share Share  Exchange general Special  Revaluation options equity Other  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
TRERS
RERER RikiE
Bx  RHER EREE 2 RERE 0 RMEE  EMEE QRERE  NERE  RRRE  REEH @i FEEEE  HEeH
(Notei) (Note i) (Noteii) (Note )
(i) (Maxi) (Wi (M)

HPO0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKYO0O  HKS000  HKBOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0O  HKSO00  HKS00
BETT  BMTn BMTn BMTn BT BM T BMTn BMTn RMTm A%t A%t A%t R%TR

At January 2014 ROUEIA1R 85817 238585 141,757 440 3ME 2714%5 25639 - T3 669593 4200189 4563 421752
Profitfor the year AEFER = - - - - - - - - 387,558 387,558 15317 402875

Other comprehensive income/loss)

AtezEks/ (BR)

Actuara los on efrement beefit obigations  E{KRAIE (T 2 HEEHE - = = - 2,158) 2,159) - 2158
Fairvlue gan on leasehold land and buiding ﬁ = HRET A G = 139291 = - - 139291 - 139291
Deferred tax on fairvalue gan of keasehold” &L REF AL EREZ
land and bulding @EWE - (22983) = - = (22983) - (22983)
Fair value gain on avaiable-forscle A HEREEL
financidl aset MrfEdE - 17,608 - - - 17,608 - 17,608
Deferred tax on fair value gain of Lﬁﬁﬂﬁ HEER ARG
avallable-for-sale finandil asset - (4402 - - - (4402) - (4402)
Eichange difference arsing }ﬁﬁﬁf@%%iﬁﬁiz
on translation of foreign operations EXZR - - - - - (32939 (33 (3337)
Total comprehensive income 2EhEEE - 129514 - - 385,400 481976 14,884 496,860
Issue of shares by Synergis to non-controling {7 2 EM 1B E B FFEIER
Interests upon exercise of share options BERRBORG - - (556) - - (556) 3897 3341
Fquity settled share-based transactions NRHAEER REEERS - - 2609 - (193) 1816 (12) 1,804
Transfer upon share options apsing S YU - - (8,036) - 8036 - - -
Recognition upon issuance of warrants REfTR BN ER - - - - - 11,683 - 11,683
Payment to non-controling interest Ry k2 ARANEAA
upon dissoluton of a non-wholly fixfiEREERRSE
owned subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (225) (225)
Dividends paid BIRRE = = = = = = - - - (85,745) (85,745) (11,020) (96,765)
- - - - - - (5983) 11,683 - (78502) (72,.800) (7,360) (80,162)
At31 December 2014 H2014E12A318 285817 2,385,285 108,819 14420 332,046 401,009 19,65 11,683 741371 976,491 4,609,363 49,087 4658450
At 1 January 2015 01581 A1R 285817 2,385,285 108,819 14,420 332,046 401,009 19,656 11,683 74137 976,491 4,609,363 49,087 4,658,450
Proft for the year RERRT - - - - - - - - - M58 2485837 8253 2474090
Other comprehensive incomel(oss) H2EkE/ (B8)
Actuara los on retement beneft RINEHEEZRERE
obligations - - - - - - - - - (2.258) (2.258) (1,022) (3,280)
Fairvalu gin on leasehold land and HETHRETI AL ENE
buiding - - - - - 43951 - - - - 43951 - 43951
Deferted tax on fair value gain of i1 ﬂm&@ﬂ Bz
leasehold land and buding BEREHE - - - - - (7.25) - - - - (1.25) - (1.25)
Fair value gain on avaiable-forsale AHERREEL
finandal asset RiEE - - - - - 3864 - - - - 3864 - 3864
Deferred tax on fair value gain of AHHERRERRA ARG
avallable-for-sale finandal asset ELHE - - - - - (966) - - - - (966) - (966)
Eichange difference arsing on translaion 4585 %fﬁ&iz
of foreign operations ERZE - - (990,808) - - - - - - - (990,808) (12593)  (1,003,401)
Total comprehensive income 2EhEEE - - (990,808) - - 39,597 - - - 2M35T9 1492368 14638 1,507,006
Issue of new placing shares EOMRERND 1479 1,266,746 - - - - - - - - 1M408 - M40
Issue of rights shares EARRER 85,745 756,029 - - - - - - - - 841,774 - 841,774
Issue of convertihle preference shares LRy 565477 5,032,747 - - - - - - - 559824 - 559824
Unisued consideration shares AERERR - - - - 256,670 - - - - - 256,670 - 256,670
Acquistion of non-wholly owned subsidiaries  iEE 32 EMEB A7 - - - - - - - - - - - 594,280 594,280
Issue of shares by Synergs to non-controlling BT (¢ AREMH S E B IR
Interests upon exercise of share options 3??%4&@&9?%17% - - - - - - (2,688) - - - (2,688) 12891 10,203
Equity settled share-based transactions RN AR RIEEER - - - - - - 1357 - - - 1357 (400) 957
Transfer upon share options lapsing i ”ﬂx%%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ@%@é - - - - - - (1,208) - - 957 (251) 251 -
Transfer upon warrants lapsing RARERLAmEE - - - - - - - (11,683) = 11,683 = = =
Change in ownership interest iy Fﬁ%%irﬂ%zm% az
in a subsidiary without loss of control A=Y - - - - - - - - 111 - 1M (147) -
Dividends paid BRRE - - = = - - - - - (322,89) (322,8%) (11,339) (334,235)
798518 7,055,522 - - 256,670 - (2539) (11,683) 117 (310.256) 7787409 594,506 8381915
At31 December 2015 H015812A318 1084335 9,440,807 (881,989) 14420 588,716 440,606 17117 - 75314 3109814 13,889,140 658231 14547311
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=
o

Notes:

(ii)

3 kS

Capital redemption reserve was created during the repurchase of shares of HK$4,420,000.
General reserve amounts to HK$10,000,000.

Special reserves comprise:
(a) the difference between the fair value of the consideration, net of deferred taxation
and fair value of acquiring land parcels in Tieling, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). This reserve will be recognised through the retained profits upon the earlier

of the disposal of the subsidiaries or the disposal by the subsidiaries of the assets to
which it relates, in proportion to the percentage the Group disposes.

the convertible preference shares issued subsequently after year end on 15 January
2016 for settling part of the consideration for acquiring the properties in Foshan, the
PRC. (Note 34)

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value gains, net of deferred tax, on leasehold land and
building held for own use and available-for-sale financial assets.

Other reserves were arisen from the Group's reorganisation and realignment of business
activities.

On 30 November 2012, the Company completed the disposal of Interiors & Special Projects
division to Driven Power Management Limited (“Driven Power”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of Synergis Holdings Limited ("“Synergis”), a separately listed subsidiary of the Company. The
transaction was accounted for as a transaction with non-controlling interests.

As part of the settlement of the consideration, Synergis issued 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares (“CPS"”) to the Company. In determining the Group's economic interest
in Synergis after the transaction, management has taken into account the rights of the CPS
holders, among other things, potential voting rights and the same entitiement to dividends
and other distributions as the ordinary shareholders, and that a holder of the CPS is entitled
to the return of capital in priority of ordinary shares in case of winding up of Synergis.
Accordingly, the Group's economic interest in Synergis increased from 50.94% to 58.31%
and the gain on disposals to non-controlling interests of HK$77,664,000 was recognised in
equity.

*  for identification purposes only
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(ii)

(i)

(iv)

kS

R 5 ] R 1 1 2 A8 64,420,0007T 2 B AR 1 8 - T i i
3#%%10,000,0007T ©

BRI

W EARAME ([HE ) HEbRREIRE
(BRI IE) BERGHR 2 R A ERNZRE - UL RER
PNHEZEME AR R EHBE AR L EMF RN
BER (UARPERE) RSB SN #RN
R

(a)

BB EMN S B L 2 M B RERFHARZ2016
FIAISAETZ A ERE - (MiFE34)

EHFHEEREERZEEL BT RAIREEMBEE
RHRIELER IR 2 DA EREH

HitEHAAREEAREGARMES

7201249118301 * A A 52X [MDriven Power Management
Limited ( [Driven Power | ) * Synergis Holdings Limited ( 72 & 12
EEERAA ([FEER])  ARBZBEYL LTHBERF)E
2EREMBRARLEENES RISHEB DI -ZAXHA
IRIEREITERER 25 -

ERERREN I FTEERMAA F)E1758,666,667 1% AT
BB ([ATERELR]) - AR TR R FEREEAREER
MEBTEMCERD TEERAWEHIRELRZEE ANET
EAEERN ERREEEREREREEERFAEAZARS
EFESRERE MR  MEHEEREER  ATERELRS
BANBEHEBRIFEABRELDMEER AL REERHE
BRI EE K FR50.94%38 558.31% « 1M Hi & T IR AR RS &Y
75 1£77,664,0007T Yz B FER A = T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (formerly known
as "Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) are engaged in building construction, civil engineering,
electrical and mechanical installation, interiors and special projects, property
development and investment, and provision of property and facility
management services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, and were approved for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 24 March 2016.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties, leasehold land and building,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial derivatives which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments and improvements are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2015.

HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans —
Amendment Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvement 2010 —

2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvement 2011 —
2013 Cycle

The application of the above amendments and improvements
in the current year has had no material effect on the Group's
reported financial performance and position for the current
and prior year and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

* for identification purposes only

mE WBRRME

—REH

ESBIERBR AR ([ARF] AIEA Hsin
Chong Construction Group Ltd. (¥T&&&EEEAERA
A REMBAR (RBIAEEDHSEFE
EEARTRR MELETRE SNEMRERER -
MR RIRE AR 2 R GR e E IR AR -

ARBARARETMRIHERET AR HiE
Mt == bk A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda * R AR BB E R 5
AR G ([BAT]) ERIEE— Lo

% BEYIPIN KB FREABE T T AEMNYIR
WER2016F3 A24HER N R E B S A TIE -

FESHBREBE
REZEGREVBEREMERZ TR ST BERET
MT-BRARBEHBIN ZEBRRERMAEERFEE
BB

(a) HEEE
KA BHRERIIRIEMAERNB BN ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(@
(i)

(iii)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New and amended standards have been issued and
are relevant to the Group but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2015 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements

Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvement 2012 —
2014 Cycle'

Accounting for acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations'

Disclosure Initiative’

HKFRS 11 Amendment
HKAS 1 Amendment

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable

Amendment Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’
HKAS 27 Amendment Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements'
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Amendment

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendment

! Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2016
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2018
3 Effective date to be determined by the IASB

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the above
new standards and amendments to existing standards on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Company Ordinance (Cap,622) come into
operation during the financial year, as a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December
2015.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

0]

Business Combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. Indemnification assets are
recognised as an asset of the acquirer at the same time and on
the same basis as the indemnified item is recognised as a liability
of the acquiree. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwiill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement as a gain.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M BRERM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation (continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

Business Combinations (continued)

For purchase of subsidiaries which constitutes a purchase of
assets rather than a business combination, the assets and
liabilities acquired are accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies for the assets and liabilities rather
than the acquisition method of accounting.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of transferred asset. Where necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(©

(d)

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures; depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each investor has rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. For the joint arrangements that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations
to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements, they are classified
as joint operations. For the remaining joint arrangements, they are
classified as joint ventures.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investments in associates include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit
of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M BRERM

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Associates (continued)

(e)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised
in the income statement.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such
as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

-  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, currency translation differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(f) Intangible assets

0)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.

| —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 XET

fREMBRzRMEE

TR R ()

(e) IERE (E)
(i) KERQF

SEETHAERISARIHEET—
B8 2Pt BEMIRFER
ERRZEEEBRER  HREMBHAR
MRAT T EREREREE

- SEAEABRZAERAMELER
i AE R EREH A2 W ER
RE AR WA

—  SEkaEZ AR REE
WERRE A2 &

- MBEAZEXZEAREMEZE
Y s fERR o

R e BRRmEL ZHERARER
B OERESIEBEBCZEERAGERE
WiRHERGE - prELE 2 E X ERTY
P E A 2 U et TR o

A AMRE - RE SN B RBICE FEM
EEZERZR HIIABRREGZA S
HEBINETSES - W FE L ZBHNEA
WK AER L ERENERZ — 8
f/\o

() BEEE

0)

[k 3

PR WIB AR = S B AR B AR 4
BHEBARZAHRFEEAREZLE
HomESFETRENS  LIRRAR
RIERERBRTR BB ZREERTE
BE-stEHEER AERREZEH
EERHEM P EREE.

HREHANE HEGROIRERTE
EEBA DETIRBREEDEMEA]
BRI R BEESAHT R REES
BugReELEuHER -

FEEBRRERAD 2015EV 127



.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB R EE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Trademarks and trade names

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and trade names acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a finite useful life are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
They are subject to impairment testing annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Secured contracts

Secured contracts acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The secured
contracts have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the contracts of 5
years.

Client relationships

Client relationships acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The client
relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the client
relationships of 9 years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Intangible assets (continued)

(v)

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design
and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are met:

—  Itis technically feasible to complete the software product
so that it will be available for use;

—  Management intends to complete the software product
and to use or sell it;

—  There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

— It can be demonstrated how the software product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

—  Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

- The expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets
are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not
exceed three years.

(g) Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the companies in
the Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases. A property interest that
is held by a lessee under an operating lease may be classified and
accounted for as investment property if the property would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property and the lessee uses the
fair value model for the asset recognised.

2 EEg
() WMEEE(E)

 —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fREMBRzRMEE

TR R (1)

(v) EBHEEH
HEEERRF RO AREREE
B HERR A P S AR AT BBl ot F SR R Il Y
ARSI M BRI ER BRI 2K
ARFE TR RSB EE

— ERMEERZETERAEER

HERERITTA
- EREEEEERRERIHEZY
#Fm-

- ARNERIHLEZRMES:

- FREBEZRUERNFELRAA
BE IR AR RSB A28

— AR\ - MSMEMEIREK
RERERRLEZEMER: &

— REHEREREEAEEORX
CLEITEE

A B BB EmR— BB R E R ES
PR BIER MR 3R B TARAFEE )
MERRRE R R -

TFE A LGB BN AT ELR
ﬁwﬁﬁi PBERR R ARERA
SHEERMEERAREE-

R RBEENEBREIRERAT R
TB=FZAERFHEE-

(9) REMRE

REVEREREERRPUKIES S RAB
BAEE MAIFAAEERNCEMERZY
X -BREMEZHRTERIRNTEE  FFL
BHOZTWARBEREDE - RUBERT
EREEROBRRBMEEBR AR - fi
ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁé&ﬁ%%ZEﬁi%&%ﬁA

UARERAEEEER  RIREEEBR%
MAFR 2 A RED BRARRIREY
e

FEEBBRERAD 2015EV 129

-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB R EE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(h)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
the end of the reporting period by independent professional qualified
valuers.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
assets. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices in less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.

Subsequent expenditure is recognised in the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the consolidated income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Property comprises leasehold land (classified as a finance lease)
and a building held for own use and is stated at fair value less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluation is performed
with sufficient regularity by independent professional qualified
valuers. Changes arising on the revaluation are dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in the
revaluation reserve, except that, when a deficit arises on
revaluation, it will be charged to the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in
the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to
revaluation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

When a revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(ii)

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost less accumulated impairment over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land classified as over the unexpired period of

finance lease the lease
Building 5%
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of
the lease

10%-50%
10%-50%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%-30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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RSB R EE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

1

(k)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated taking into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development comprises costs of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying
assets and professional fees incurred during the development period.

If a property under development becomes an investment property
under development when there is a change in use, any difference
resulting between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus an
appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress payments
and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises direct materials,
labour and overheads expenses incurred in bringing the work-in-
progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers
for contract work for all contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade and retention receivables. The Group presents as a liability
the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Financial assets
The Group classifies its investment as available-for-sale financial asset.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Financial assets (continued)

)

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid
prices. For financial assets that are not traded in an active market
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessors are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(i) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the asset.
Lease income from an operating lease is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Receivables

(n)

(o)

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwiill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Q)

r

Borrowings

Borrowings, including senior notes, are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payable
Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and joint operations
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred taxation liability is settled.

Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and joint operations, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

s)

(®

(u)

Current and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits
The Group participates in mandatory provident fund schemes
in Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally
funded through payments to trustee-administered funds. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in the PRC
participate in the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible employees. The
municipal government of the PRC is responsible for the entire
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay
the ongoing contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. It
is the Group’s policy to forfeit any untaken annual leave within
a specific time period. Subject to regular assessment of staff
turnover rate, a provision will be made or reversed. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Employee benefits (continued)
(iv) Termination benefits

v)

(v)

(vi)

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility of
withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service accounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method
by a qualified actuary. Actuarial gains or losses were recognised
immediately in current financial year.

Bonus plans
Provisions for bonus are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEEHEFBFREE (2)

(w) Revenue recognition (w) R ER

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of contracting work can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to date as
compared to the total contract sum receivable under the contracts.

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of relevant properties has been completed and
the properties have been delivered to the purchasers and collectibility
of related receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated balance sheet as advanced proceeds
received from customers under current liabilities.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Property and facility management fees are recognised when the
services are rendered in accordance with the terms of agreements.
There are two types of property and facility management agreements,
namely management remuneration contracts (“MR Contracts”)
and lump sum contracts (“LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract,
the Group is remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility as management
remuneration and only such fee is recognised as revenue for the
Group. Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee which
normally covers the costs involved in the management of the property
or facility, thus the whole of the lump sum fee is recognised as revenue
for the Group.

Revenue from provision of other supporting services for the
management of the property or facility is recognised when the services
are rendered.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

x)

(7

)

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income, consultancy
fee income, services centre charges, building management fee and
copying service income are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficial holder of the guarantee (i.e. the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its carrying amount of the net liability from the financial
guarantee with its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company'’s equity holders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

(aa) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEHBREE &
(ab) Convertible bonds, coupon bonds and warrants (ab) ATRRIES REEFRERES

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the option
of the holders, where the conversion price is at a stipulated price that
will be adjusted, subject to terms and formulae provided for in the
agreement of the convertible bonds, to adjust for the dilutive effects
of share split or consolidation, capital distribution, capitalisation of
profit or reserves, issuance of new shares or share options or warrants,
and etc, are accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an embedded derivative
component.

The liability component of convertible bonds is recognised initially
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component and embedded derivative
component are recognised initially at the difference between the fair
value of the convertible bonds as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing convertible bonds
and coupon bonds with detachable share purchase warrants are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their
initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of convertible
bonds and the coupon bonds are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component of the warrants
are not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition. The derivative
component of convertible bond is re-measured using fair value model.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bonds equity reserve,
together with the carrying amounts of the liability and derivative
components at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds
are redeemed, the convertible bonds equity reserve is released directly
to retained profits, and any difference between the amount paid
relating to the liability component and the fair value of the liability and
derivative components is recognised in profit or loss.
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REMBRRM L
3 Financial risk management

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i) Market risk

(1)

&)

3)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group’s
operation in Macau and the Chinese Mainland are
monitored by proper synchronisation of receipts and
payments in different operating currencies, hedging of risk
is not considered because of insignificant exposure to the
Group's working capital. The Group has no outstanding
forward exchange contract as at 31 December 2014 and
2015, but will consider hedging the foreign currency
exposure by using forward exchange contracts if needed.

As at 31 December 2015, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2014: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year would have been approximately HK$5.5 million
higher/(lower) (2014: HK$1.1 million (lower)/higher),
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains/(losses)
on translation of foreign currency denominated trade and
other receivables, deposit, cash and bank balances and
trade and other payables.

Interest rate risk

Financial instruments at fixed and variable rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest-rate risk arises
mainly from bank borrowings, other borrowings, senior
notes and convertible bond. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk due
to fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong
Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

At 31 December 2015, if interest rates on bank
borrowings, which carried at floating interest rate, had
been 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) higher or
lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have decreased/increased by
approximately HK$6.0 million (2014: HK$8.9 million) as a
result of higher or lower interest expenses on floating rate
bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
financial asset held by the Group classified as available-
for-sale financial asset. The Group considers the price risk
exposure is not material.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from deposits, cash and
bank balances and receivables. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit rating.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment on the
potential customers is carried out as part of the acceptance
procedures for the new contracts.

To manage the credit risk associated with receivables, the Group
adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of the customers
and debtors, taking into account of their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Aging analysis is performed and
reviewed regularly by management of each operating segment
and follow up action will be taken, as appropriate.

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash, and
having available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating segments
of the Group and aggregated by corporate finance team.
Corporate finance team monitors forecasts of the Group's
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. For
bank loans containing a repayment on demand clause, after
taking into account the Group’s financial position, the Directors
do not consider that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment, and believe that the bank loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in note 27. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payment.

However, for bank loans containing a repayment on demand
clause, if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect, including short term
revolving loans of HK$1.9 billion which is subject to annual
review by lenders and bank loans of HK$0.8 billion with
scheduled repayment dates will be on demand for repayment
immediately, excluding interest payments.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 MBERREE®

(a) MERBERE (&)
(i) ABELER (8)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5 years Total
DPR—F —EEMF MEERLF 8|
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETRT BT BT
At 31 December 2015  #2015%12A31H
Bank loans IRITER
— short term revolving —RHAEIRIRITE R 1,941,097 - - 1,941,097
— with repayment on —BEREREER
demand clause &2 RITER 369,565 238,469 209,954 817,988
— without repaymenton  — KRB EIRBENK(EE
demand clause 1R 2 SRITE R 450,398 264,653 453,864 1,168,915
Convertible bonds AR ES 821,500 - - 821,500
Other borrowings Hing & 2,484,962 - - 2,484,962
Payables FETER IR 4,873,605 313,673 165,040 5,352,318
Amounts due to other  FE{ H R4 & H A
partners of joint BHERIE
operations 16,153 - - 16,153
Senior notes BAEZRR 203,438 203,438 2,426,719 2,833,595
Total 45t 11,160,718 1,020,233 3,255,577 15,436,528
At 31 December 2014 R2014512H31H
Bank loans RITER
— short term revolving —RHEEIRIRITER 1,438,182 = = 1,438,182
— with repayment on —BEREKEER
demand clause X 2 RITE K 356,193 144,021 145,094 645,308
—without repaymenton  — KB ERERKEE
demand clause {2z BITERK 190,675 595,530 749,198 1,535,403
Notes £33 164,063 - - 164,063
Payables FERTRRX 2,881,112 269,624 305,172 3,455,908
Amounts due to other B HRELEHA
partners of joint RHERIE
operations 10,750 - - 10,750
Total Bt 5,040,975 1,009,175 1,199,464 7,249,614
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Capital risk management

()

In managing capital, the Group’s objectives are to safeguard its ability
to continue operation as a going concern and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of net debt-to-tangible-net-
assets ratio. Net debt is the sum of deposits, cash and cash equivalents
less bank loans, interest-bearing notes, convertible bonds, senior
notes, financial derivative liability and other borrowings. Tangible net
assets include total net assets of the Group and exclude goodwill
and intangible assets. The ratio is 54% at 31 December 2015 (2014:
60%). As a result of long-term funding raising activity to cope with
rapid expansion of property development in the Chinese Mainland,
the Group has a net debt position of HK$7.8 billion as at 31
December 2015 (2014: net debt HK$2.7 billion).

Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’ requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

—  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

—  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. These instruments
are included in level 1. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group
did not have financial instruments under this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have
financial instruments under this category.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 HMERRBRER®)

3 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. As at 31 December
2015 and 2014, the Group had available-for-sale financial asset and
financial derivative liability under this category.

There was no transfer of financial instruments between level 1, 2 and
3 during the year.

Movement of financial asset under level 3 measurements is as follows:

(©

R REEE (E)

N—IBsRZ A E X AW IERIEATER T IHE
EEL BZEmTAIAE=[E - R2015F &
2014512 A318  AEB B H| At fE R 2 7] 4
HECHBEERERITETAGE:

RAFE TEESMIARE B F_ERE
B REETER

BE-—REENPBEEZSHNT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

Available-for-sale financial asset AHHEREEE BETTT BT

At 1 January ®W1H1H 27,798 10,190

Fair value gain DR ERE 3,864 17,608

At 31 December M12H31H 31,662 27,798
Movement of financial liabilities under level 3 measurements is as REZEFENYKaEEsnT:

follows:

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

Financial derivative liability SMUAETIRAR BETT BT

At 1 January RK1A18 - -

Additions NE 199,425 =

Fair value loss NREEE 6,987 =

At 31 December ®12H31H 206,412 =

4 EXEEHEE RS
AR BYRRAE I (5T R RER - RIRE 5 TSI
2 EEHEHESRAH BRERIER  HEER

4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions having a significant effect on BEREEREAXE 2t REBRE T Xamit:
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:
(a) Business combination (a) EHELH

The Group completed several acquisitions during the year ended 31
December 2015. Please refer to Note 34 for details of the acquisitions.

The Group assessed the acquisition in accordance with HKFRS and
concluded that the acquisition constitutes a business combination. To
account for the assets and liabilities acquired, significant judgement

HZE2015F12A31HIEFE  AEBEE KA
FU BB ETH - W BTE 2 B R 2 M 34 -

AEBEDREBBUWHRE LR A KBEER
WREZBBEBERBRELA - /HCWE
BERABBAR REEASNEERBELZ

RAERAELEARHE -

was required in determining the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities.

BERZFMEMERBEGG MEBRRZFHE
BRI 2B M E4Q) -

For details of the respective estimates and assumptions being made for
the properties, please refer to note 4(g) respectively.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Fair value measurement of convertible bonds, bonds,
warrants and notes

On initial recognition and redemption, the fair values of convertible
bonds that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select methods
and make assumptions, including those based on market conditions
on valuation date for valuation. The assessment of the fair value of the
bonds and the liability component of the convertible bonds involved
key management assumptions, among other things, the expected
volatility, dividend yield, etc.

Construction contracts

As explained in note 2(w), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted construction income
is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews of the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the
actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in estimating
the total contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of percentage of
completion and job profit taken.

As at 31 December 2015, among the arbitrations over the Group have
been dealing with, a significant arbitration claim of approximately
RMB205 million was against a subcontractor in the PRC (the “PRC
Subcontractor”) in respect of disputes between the Group and the
PRC Subcontractor in a building construction contract in the PRC. The
PRC Subcontractor raised a counterclaim against the Group in the sum
of approximately RMB221 million. The case is under examination by
the arbitrator and the directors are of the view that no provision for
the arbitration is required as at 31 December 2015. The determination
of the provision involved significant management estimation.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group are based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of account
receivables and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.

| —
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4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)
(e) Impairment of assets

()

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademark have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(f). The recoverable amounts of goodwill and
trademark are the higher of the assets’ fair values less costs to sell and
value in use.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions are required
in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill and trademark,
including growth rate, gross margin and weighted average discount
rate applied to the discounted cashflows.

The Group also assesses annually for intangible assets that are not
being amortised, to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
For the trademarks held by the Group, management carries out the
assessment by performing an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
including the ability to hold and use the trademarks and the market
environment of relevant industry, to consider whether there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

Tax indemnification asset recognised upon business combination is
subject to impairment assessment as at the end of reporting period
based on the evaluation of collectability and the fair value of the
underlying assets withheld, which requires considerable amount of
management estimation and judgement.

Impairment provision of deposits is evaluated as at the end of
reporting period in respect of the realisation of the underlying assets
and the recoverability of the balances, which involved significant
management estimation.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost to sell or value-in-use calculations. These value-in-use
calculations require the use of estimates.

No impairment was made during the year.

Provision for properties under development

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development according to their recoverable amounts based on the
realisability of these properties, taking into account estimated costs to
completion based on past experience and committed contracts and
estimated net sales/rental value based on prevailing market conditions.
Provision is made when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The assessment
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

)

(h)

0]

Estimate of fair value of properties

The valuation of properties is performed in accordance with the ‘The
HKIS Valuation Standards (2012 Edition)" published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Details of the judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in note
15 and note 16.

If information on current or recent prices of properties is not available,
the fair values of properties are mainly determined using income
capitalisation valuation techniques.

The Group uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at balance sheet date.

The principal assumptions underlying management’s estimation of fair
value are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected
future market rentals; void periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared
to actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Group and
those reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of
current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and
condition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
PRC income taxes. There are a number of transactions and calculations
for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies among
various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not
finalised its land appreciation taxes calculation and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land appreciation taxes based on
management’s best estimates according to the interpretation of the
tax rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and tax provisions in the periods in which such
taxes have been finalised with local tax authorities.

| —
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5 Segment information

(@

1 SyHSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Operating segments

Revenue comprises gross billing value of contracting work to third
parties, property and facility management services income, sales
proceeds from stocks of properties, rental income from stocks of
properties and investment properties and rental related income.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the Executive
Committee, who are responsible for allocating resources, assessing
performance of the operating segments and making strategic
decisions, the reportable operating segments are (1) building
construction; (2) civil engineering; (3) interiors & special projects;
(4) electrical and mechanical engineering; (5) property and facility
management services; and (6) property development and investment.

5 SBFAEH

(a) EESRH

W e EERETE=ZEANITIREE U
ELFREEERBEA -MEFEZHEMS
T MEFERREVEZESRAREHEE
HHRAZ WA

REBAEERRTEIZ22ERKE (MRITE
Sg HEBAESRER FEEESBRRRR
TEHRRRIDRE ) 2 WA B IE R ATER
ZEENBRRETREE QLATE: QF
MR RAFIRIEE  GRETLR: R RR
MEE R IR ARG TR R IRE

Property Property
Building Civil Interiors & Electrical and and facility ~ development and Corporate
construction engineering  special projects mechanical management investment (Note 1) Total
ZREHR WXR MRERR &

#rRE TAIR RREH BRIE HEEE #E (MiE1) £l

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

BRTT BRTT BYTT BRTT BT BETT BRTT BT
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE0155 128318 L5
Revenue (excl. NSC (Note 2)) g (AELENSC (Fiit2) ) 6,513,467 1,868,967 1,681,149 1170173 752,468 70,575 - 12,056,799
Gross profit el 259,899 83499 92,578 7551 93,036 16,501 - 621,084
Other gainsfosses), net Ethls/ (B1R) 58 1717 9 868 (1) 3811 17,611 (6,733) 117,28
(Gains on bargain purchase EEUG e - - - - - 2,320,579 - 2,320,579
Fair value gain on investment properties RENF AR ENE - - - - 20 191,225 - 191,465
Net exchange gainloss) ERERN/ (BB) 58 (146) = 21) (776) 151 29 (17,038) (17,538)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMERERX - - - = = (32.408) = (32,408)
General and administrative expenses —RATBR S (83,773) (45,059) (34,901) (25,143) (76,338) (74,089) (143,892) (483,195)
Operating profitoss) wE T/ (B8) 177,697 38,449 58,524 49,651 20,900 2,539,711 (167,663) 2,717,269
Amortisation of intangible assets BN AEEH (768) (105) (209) (104) (7,89) 1 (3,112 (12,195)
Interest income FIEMA - - - - 101 1,165 1,857 3123
Interest expenses Fle % - - - - (1,612) (18,137) (102,838) (122,587)
Profit(loss) before taxation Baiaas/ (&8 176,929 38,344 58,315 49,547 11,493 2,522,738 (271,756) 2,585,610
Taxation #E (111,520)
Profit or the year REE ST 2,474,090
Capital expenditure ERERS (3,587) - (323) (195) (2319 (4,651) (7.913) (19,048)
Depreciation g (8,854) (149) (360) (234) (4,065) (52,517) (6373) (72,552)
As at 31 December 2015 20155124318
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents ER RERERRLER - - - - 129877 552323 787,263 1,469,463
Bank loans BIER - - - - (293,536) (2480.437) (1,023,630) (3,797,603)
Convertible bonds R ES - - - - - - (544,199) (544,199
Other borrowings AR - - - - - (2.400,736) = (2/400,736)
Financial derivative liabiity SRITETIASE - - - - - - (206,412) (206,412)
Senior notes BAEE - - - - - - (2,275,504) (2,275,504)
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= E
REUBRRMEE
5 Segment information (continued) 5 S¥MEH @
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) EERE(E)
Property Property
Building Civil Interiors & Electrical and and facility ~ development and Corporate
construction engineering  special projects mechanical management investment (Note 1) Total
ZREHR nER il
#rRE TAIE HRER BREIE BEEE WXRRRAR (Mi1) #9
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT BT BRTT
Year ended 31 December 2014 HENUENANALFE
Revenue (exc. NSC (Note 2) Wi (FBENSC (Hzk2)) 4,550453 1,820,546 1,007,487 689,767 848,049 122,085 - 9,038,387
Gross profit £ 290,086 96,988 69,428 52876 100,793 0777 = 632,898
Other gaingflosses), net At/ (B1R) 58 236 3627 299 ) 1384 466 (185) 8516
Fair value gain on investment properties RENELAE - - - - 530 403,161 - 403,691
Net exchange gain/oss) ExaHl/ (B58) %8 214 - (40) 340 (63) 12 (2,489) (2,026)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSEREMAR - - - - - (#1,890) - (41,890)
General and administrative expenses —RAIBEX (74,107) (47,140) (29,181) (28311) (77.816) (51,593) (85,614) (393,762)
Operating profioss) &t/ (5R) 216429 53475 3197 24,903 21828 332,883 (88,288) 607,427
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERY (896) (150) (165) (121) (7.89%) - (3,041) (12,269)
Interest income FIEWA - - - - 67 534 769 1370
Interest expenses FlemX - - - - (1,521) (33358) (8,157) 43,036)
Profitloss) before taxation BEAER/ (58) 215533 53,325 43,032 24,782 15478 300,059 (98,717) 553,492
Taxation 2] (150,617)
Profit for the year TEFRF 402,875
Capital expenditure EARRAX (2129) (516) (480) @1 (3473) (6:870) 9,266) 42,318)
Depreciation bl ] (12:452) (366) (615) (201) (523)) 42,317) (3442) (64,625)
As at 31 December 2014 20145128318
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents ERRERERREHER - - - - 91,24 63,119 709,617 863,960
Bank loans ROER - - - - (247,000) (1,651,161) (1,537,631) (3435,799)
Notes B - - - - = (154,741) - (154,741)
Notes: B
1. Corporate mainly represents corporate and administrative activities, and shared 1. TBFEARARARRITEOES  ARLZRE -
services.
2. Nominated subcontractors’ works of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project 2. CEMSRTIRSERNE-HEEMEE AR
("NSC"). T2 (INSC ) -
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fREMBRERM

5 Segment information (continued) SEEH#)
(b) Geographical analysis (b) HEZRH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT ok S
Revenue g

Hong Kong B 10,120,689 7,321,105
Macau D 4,750,782 6,466,259
PRC A 144,186 223,141
Others HAb 3,216 =
15,018,873 14,010,505
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT ok S

Non-current assets EmBIEE
Hong Kong B 668,986 686,786
Macau JERPY 318 538
PRC A 12,814,466 2,827,473
13,483,770 3,514,797
Available-for-sale financial asset AN E IS EE 31,662 27,798
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 41,974 15,632
Total non-current assets JEmB) & E AR 13,557,406 3,558,227

(c) Customer base analysis () FEFEEDIF

ARE 2 EFERD B MATME (20144 -

MB)BEFZRSBEEAREBUEE10%A
L-ZEEPZUMSERABTEESHBER
5,907,100,0007T (20144 : 7 #£7,414,900,000
TLRBETRIE)

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes two (2014:
two) customers with transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s total
revenue. Aggregate revenue from those customers amounted to
HK$5,907.1 million and was derived from building construction (2014:
HK$7,414.9 million from building construction).

(d) AFEHXRZBFMBEEIE

(d) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Reportable segment revenue AT E2HmH AR 12,056,799 9,038,387
Revenue — NSC 2 —NSC 2,962,074 4,972,118
Revenue g 15,018,873 14,010,505

1 SyHSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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settlement of certain other borrowings.

REMBRRME
6 Other gains, net 6 Hfhlh B
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME BEREEZ
equipment B8 558 (817) (674)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYSE 2 W= - 453
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR ZEE (2,257) =
Gain on reversal of provision [0 pE W AR FOR B BB 2 W e
for impairment of receivables 772 -
Loss on trade receivables written off B 5 I W AR 5 8 2 1618 = (2,537)
Gain on debt extinguishment (Note) ERSH SE AT EE A 2 s (Pt eE) 117,557 =
Change in fair value in financial derivatives SRITETERAREES (6,987) =
Secondment fee EEBHARBEE 20 3,474
Miscellaneous Efb 8,994 7,800
117,282 8,516
Note: The gain represents the discounts offered by the financial institution upon the early Mizt: WaiEeREERRENENE TEMEERENTE-

Interest expenses 7 FIBRX

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT R IT

Interest on bank loans and overdraft RITERRBET ZHE 122,197 107,591
Interest expense on notes ZRF BRI 2,087 24,939
Interest expense on convertible bonds R ES 2 F BT 14,911 =
Interest expense on other borrowings HiEE 2 FERX 33,553 =
Interest expense on senior notes BEZBRZFERX 138,546 =
Others HAh 117 =
311,411 132,530
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets ~ J3: REEREEE N2 FIE (188,824) (89,494)
122,587 43,036

The annual interest rates of bank loans are ranged from 1.6% to 7.1%
(2014: from 1.6% to 8.2%), of which the capitalised interest rates are
ranged from 1.6% to 7.1% (2014: from 1.6% to 8.2%). The annual
interest rates of other borrowings ranged from 2.5% to 14.0% (2014: nil),
of which the capitalised interest rates ranged from 2.5% to 14.0% (2014:
nil). The imputed effective capitalised interest rate of notes, convertible
bonds and senior notes issued after taking into account of the valuation of
embedded derivative portion and transaction costs was 19.7%, 28.1% and
9.7% per annum (2014: 19.7% per annum for notes, nil for convertible

bonds and senior notes).

RITERZEFNERNF1.6%E71% (20145F : M F
1.6%%E82% )  HPEXIFENF16%E7.1%
(2014%F : N F1.6%ZE82% ) - HMEE Z FFIR N
TF25%FE14.0% (2014F - &) - Hp E R EN
F25%%E14.0% (20145F - f8) & R ALTETL
BEBHBHERISKAE  BBITRIE  ARRKRE
HFREEEENGHETRENMEENEA19.7%
28.1%%9.7% (2014F B BITEENFF R A
19.7% AR EH B L ZIENFF R BE) -
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fREMBRERM

8 Profit before taxation 8 [AIEF
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Cost of sales HERE
Cost of construction BIERAR
— Staff costs —BIRA 1,185,448 1,173,463
— Other construction costs —H fth 3 ERAR 12,498,835 11,357,530
I 13,684,283 12,530,993
Cost of property and facility 2 K 7R ite B TR AR TS A AR
management services
— Staff costs —BIpA 623,852 508,813
- Others —H 35,580 238,443
e 659,432 747,256
Cost of property development and MR RIEE KA
investment
— Staff costs —BTIpA 1,305 -
— Stock of properties sold —BEWEFERAR 15,344 56,437
— Others —Hft 37,425 42,921
54,074 99,358
14,397,789 13,377,607
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - # 22 N R 2T E 72,552 64,625
Auditor’'s remuneration S A BN & 6,066 5,562
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings i RIEFLEEHEH S 21,363 18,435
Outgoings in respect of LTEEZERA
— investment properties — BB 23,621 27,615
— owner occupied property —BRZYE 4,792 4,119
Staff costs, included in general and FTA—MRITBAR 2 B ITKA
administrative expenses 302,176 232,694

1 SA/HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



9 Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of the directors and chief executive officer for the year
ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fREMBRzRMEE

9 EERTHEZNMS

FBERITHRAHENEZ2015F12 4318 1L FE 27 Bl
Eoy N

2015 2014
Salaries,
allowances Contributions Share-based
and benefits to retirement  compensation?
Fees in kind? Bonus? scheme? (Note xvi) Total Total
HRRE
#iMl 2R HiL 38 U] Efcmm
e Ehka’ {E412 (218 (P &Exvi) #a Ft ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Names :£1 ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT AETT
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung' B 234 6,020 3,934 - - 10,188 6,761
LUI Chun Pong (Note i) BiR7B (HtaEi) 78 1,764 350 87 = 2,279 =
Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Note i) SRR (HizEii) 119 2,060 - 18 - 2,197 =
ZHOU Wei A 202 744 = = = 946 390
LIN Zhuo Yan (Note iii) WREFE (B i) 1 - - - = 21 =
YAN Jie LIEES 250 - - - - 250 130
CHENG Sui Sang Hink 250 - - - - 250 220
GAO Jingyuan BRE 250 = = = = 250 143
LEE Jai Ying FEE 250 S S o o 250 143
KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (Note iv) %803 (FffzEiv) 30 - - - - 30 =
Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen (Notev)  EIEA4E (itiEv) 188 - - - - 188 220
CHEN Lei (Note vi) Bz (Mratvi) 153 - - - - 153 -
CHUI Kwong Kau (Note vii) BEFER (Biztvi) 153 - - - - 153 -
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (Note vii) ~ E 548 ( Mizhvii) 319 15,125 16,517 30 109 32,100 23,101
Clifford King CHIU (Note ix) EES ) 124 = o - - 124 165
ZHANG Xiaoying (Note X) RNE (BiizEx) 76 - - - - 76 130
Barry John BUTTIFANT (Note xi) 21N (M) - - - - - - 2258
Catherine CHU (Note xii) KA (FiaExi) - - - - - - 2,060
Kenneth CHU Ting Kin (Note xii) RipiE (Bt xiii) = = - = = = 108
Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung (Note xiv) MEEsE (FiizExiv) - - - - - - 78
Abraham SHEK Lai Him (Note xv) B2 5k (Fifskxv) - - - - - - 80
3,097 25,713 20,801 135 109 49,855 35,987
1 Chief Executive Officer ! THRAEE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The amounts represented emoluments in respect of services provided in connection
with management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking.

Mr. LUl Chun Pong was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of
Executive Committee with effect from 11 September 2015.

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of
Executive Committee with effect from 3 June 2015.

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan was appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 23 May
2015.

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 18 November 2015.

2 ZEREEMIRHBEMEEARAR RIS EMNBE R TETZ
EHZRIBWEZ BN S -

() BRATECEZTERATEERNTZEENE A
20155F9 A1 B ARk -

(il SEBLEEEZTARTERRITZEGKE &
20156 A3H £ o

(i)  MEBEEEBEZFERIENITES  H2015F5H8230 18
e

(v) BLBEEBEZEBIIFPTEERELZEGHKE
F2015F 11 B18HBBEM ©
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fREMBRERM

9 Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 October 2015.

Mr. CHEN Lei was appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 23 May
2015.

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau was appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 23
May 2015. He was appointed as a member of Audit Committee with effect from 30
June 2015.

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai resigned as an Executive Director, the Executive
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, members of each of the Executive, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees with effect from 1 November 2015.

Pursuant to announcements of the Company of 18 January 2016 and 29 March
2016, the Company entered into a subscription deed with Dr. Wong, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue to Dr. Wong convertible bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$34,000,000, as payment of part of the
performance bonus due to Dr. Wong. The maturity date of the convertible bonds falls
on the 18th month of the date of issue. This transaction is subject to fulfilment of
certain conditions, including independent shareholders’ approval.

Mr. Clifford King CHIU resigned as a Non-executive Director, a member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect from 30 June 2015.

Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 21 April
2015.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT resigned as an Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee with effect from 18 February 2014.

Dr. Catherine CHU resigned as an Executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee with effect from 26 May 2014.

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting Kin resigned as a Non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee with effect from 26 May 2014.

Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 10 May 2014.

Mr. Abraham SHEK Lai Him retired by rotation as an Independent Non-executive
Director at the annual general meeting held on 12 May 2014 and did not offer
himself for re-election, and ceased to be the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 12 May
2014.

Share-based compensation represents the fair value of share options granted by the
Group recognised during the year.

No benefit arose on shares issued and allotted to directors of the Company
under the employee share subscription scheme of the Company adopted
on 23 August 2002 for both years as no such share allotment was made
for both years. None of the directors have waived their rights to receive
emoluments for both years.

There is no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (2014: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Group was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

1 SVHSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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REMBRRME
10 Five highest paid employees 10 AfiEEHFMES
There were two directors (2014: two) whose emoluments were among the AEBERMNU ST HEEPRIERUES (20145
five highest paid employees in the Group and included in the analysis set out MAL) - Eife B EARMEoz DR e
in note 9.
Details of the emoluments paid to the other three (2014 three) individuals, HE#M=07 (20145 - =f0) = BB A L - HERG I 3F
who are not directors of the Company but whose emoluments were among ARRAEEEBRALEE RS HHEES - EB
the five highest paid employees in the Group are as follows: BRI
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Salaries and other allowances N 2 LA 22 B 9,929 10,364
Bonus TE4T 3,724 2,726
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET B 278 306
Share-based compensation VARR (7 A 2Tt 2 F 18 - 81
Others =) - 1,142
13,931 14,619

Number of Individuals in each band

EHEZREEAR
Emolument bands EsEE 2015 2014
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 75 #53,500,001 7T — 78 #4,000,0007T 1 =
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 75 #4,500,0017T — 7 ¥55,000,0007T - 2
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 715,000,001 7T — 78 #55,500,0007T 2 1
3 3
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fREMBRERM

11 Staff costs 11 BIRE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ook S
Wages, salaries and allowances (including T& - i &Ri28L
directors’ emoluments) (BRESHS) 2,061,774 1,864,748
Provision for annual leave, net FREE F5 (156) 314
Termination benefits LIFRE B A 533 999
Long service payment RERG S E R 258 253
Contributions to defined contribution 5 #tFGRIRETEI 2 K
retirement schemes 49,414 46,852
Share-based compensation VAR (D BERE 2 {8 958 1,804
2,112,781 1,914,970
Charged to cost of sales (Note 8) BEF R HEKAR (FiFEs) (1,810,605) (1,682,276)
302,176 232,694
12 Taxation 12 RIA

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year after application of available tax
losses brought forward for both years. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated income statement

MEFENTENERIREBFE G ERY
AR T R A 2 RIB R R R 16.5% B8 - A&
B2 s e M IR R IR A R AR R R A A
REBRFK 2 RITHETHE -

AR KR, (GTA) ZBEMT :

represents:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
B®TT PEME T T

Provision for the year REG R
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEH 31,324 24,778
— PRC and Macau profits tax — B KORPI RIS R 25,690 33,179
Over provision in prior years BEFERBEREE (3,924) (3,234)
Deferred tax charge (Note 26) EER IS (Kf5E26) 58,430 95,894
111,520 150,617

1 58/HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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CELET P
12 Taxation (continued) 12 R\ (&)
Taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the theoretical AEEBRBADEN 2 BIEEBREHAA QTR
amount that would arise using the tax rate of the home country of the RZBEMFE 2 BRMBIEZFIT:
Company as follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Profit before taxation BR %% A8 A 2,585,610 553,492
Taxation at Hong Kong profits tax rate at REBNEHE16.5%TE 2
16.5% IR 426,626 91,326
Effect of different taxation rates in Hih B e EERIRRE 2
other tax jurisdictions T 19,724 23,208
Over provision in prior years BT FE R (3.9249) (3,234)
Income not subject to taxation EmARBIUA (413,533) (509)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose A F1Fi 2 f =% 34,710 6,979
Temporary differences not recognised REBRZERER 11,131 9,756
Tax losses not recognised REERZHIE 33,989 22,590
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ERRAIARE®ERZ
tax losses T8 (1,642) (337)
Land appreciation tax T 3B E R 5,919 1,118
Tax effect of land appreciation tax THIRER 2 G2 (1,480) (280)
111,520 150,617
13 Earnings per share 13 BEERF
(a) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit (@) BEREARBAINZERFEABRGASEERZF
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted BRIAFABEITZ ERRMETEREGTH -
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2015 2014
Profit attributable to equity holders EnfEa AERRT (A% FT)
(HK$'000) 2,445,837 387,558
Less: dividends to convertible preference B AR B R IR R 2 AR B
shareholders (HK$'000) (BT IT) (56,548) =
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders & 3% A% A% 2R f& {5 3 1| (7% T 1)
(HK$'000) 2,389,289 387,558
Weighted average ordinary shares issued BT 2 BB INE T 15 AR
('000) (/%) 5,143,884 2,858,167
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRREARZF) (FEAL) 46.4 13.6
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REMBRRME
13 Earnings per share (continued) 13 SKEF ®
(b) Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit (b) EREBRMNTEAER 2 EmEEAEGS
attributable to the equity holders by the weighted average number of FIER LABL 702 RATI0 B AR % A 1 AR 4R AT
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the potential dilutive HIRES R AT MR E ARG T T 2B LR
effect in respective of outstanding share options and potential ordinary BB BEHARE 2B EITERR
shares to be issued on convertible bonds outstanding and convertible Nt AR BT E -

preference shares during the year.

2015 2014
Profit attributable to equity holders BEFE ARG OB TT)
(HK$'000) 2,445,837 387,558
Add: Change in fair value in financial m:eRiTETRERAREES
derivatives (HK$'000) (B®TT) 6,987 =
Add: Interest expense on convertible bonds Al : AT AR (E 5 2 FIEF X
(HK$'000) (BBFT) 14,911 -
2,467,735 387,558
Weighted average ordinary shares issued B 81T 2 AR ke T AR
('000) (FR) 5,143,884 2,858,167
Adjustment for convertible preference shares 722015512 431 H 317 2 AJ# A%
issued as at 31 December 2015 (‘000) BB (TR) 5,800,615 =
Adjustment for convertible bonds issued 2015912 A31H 21T 2 Al 2%
as at 31 December 2015 ('000) EFAE (FR) 127,401 -
Adjustment for share options ('000) AR (FR) = 96
Weighted average ordinary shares TR EREERT 2 B @R INE
for calculating diluted earnings per share PR (Fh%)
('000) 11,071,900 2,858,263
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) GBS R (L) 22.3 13.6
14 Dividends 14 R
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: RERBRD IR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
2015 Interim dividend — 1.0 HK cent 2014 20154 H HAfR & — GRS #51.01L
Interim dividend: 1.0 HK cent) per share (201445 R HARR B - BAREH1.00L) 108,433 28,582
2014 Final dividend — 2.2 HK cents (2013 2014F RERR B — B #2211l
Final dividend: 2.0 HK cents) per share (2013F REARR B - FAZE®2.000L) 214,463 57,163
322,896 85,745
The Group did not propose any final dividend for the year ended 31 AEBETBRMLEZ2015F12A318 L FE IR
December 2015 (2014: 2.2 HK cents). RHARR S (20144 - B ¥2.2l) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME
15 Property, plant and equipment 15 YR -BEBRER
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
building improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HELH R BE
Rig¥ HEMREE BERE RER®MR RE 8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT BT BT BT
Cost or valuation BFBHE
At 1 January 2014 201451818 399,000 70,245 50,048 79,994 14,633 613,920
Exchange difference B ERE - (115) - (102) (53) (270)
Additions RE = 11,100 21,567 7,485 2,166 42,318
Fair value gain on revaluation AR EEBRE 107,000 - - - - 107,000
Disposal HE - (479) (2,087) (1,423) (365) (4,354)
At 31 December 2014 20145124318 506,000 80,751 69,528 85,954 16,381 758,614
Exchange difference EHER - (899) - (1,235) (557) (2,691)
Additions RE - 2,669 2,993 10,047 3,339 19,048
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34) WK AR (FizE34) - - - 5,321 515 5,836
Disposal HE - (6,515) (3.363) (1,442) (2,644) (13,964)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HRBAR - (186) (294) (465) - (945)
At 31 December 2015 20154124318 506,000 75,820 68,864 98,180 17,034 765,898
Accumulated depreciation REAE
At 1 January 2014 201451818 = (52,538) (34,210) (56,987) (6,222) (149,957)
Exchange difference EHER = (16) = 20 1 15
Depreciation for the year (Note) REFHE (F:) (32,291) (12,076) (9,186) (9,352) (2,967) (65,872)
Elimination of fair value gain HEARBERNE
on revaluation 32,291 - - - - 32,291
Disposal HE - 475 1,766 1,010 179 3430
At 31 Decerber 2014 120145123318 - (64,155) (1.630) (65,309) (8999) (180,093)
Exchange difference ERER - 709 - 524 236 1,469
Depreciation for the year (Note) AFEEFE (Hiz) (43,951) (11,089) (7,633) (10,746) (2,812) (76,231)
Elimination of fair value gain HEARBERNE
on revaluation 43,951 - - - - 43,951
Disposal HE - 5,490 3,299 1,140 2,290 12,219
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR - 186 292 446 - 924
At 31 December 2015 R2015612/4318 - (68,859) (45,672) (73945) (9,285) (197,761)
Net book value or valuation IREPESEE
At 31 December 2015 #2015 124318 506,000 6,961 23,192 24,235 7,749 568,137
At 31 December 2014 20145124318 506,000 16,596 27,898 20,645 7,382 578,521

Note: During the year, depreciation of HK$3,679,000 (2014: HK$1,247,000) was capitalised

in properties under development.

BISE: GFR - 13,679,000t (20144 : 7#H1,247,0007T ) 2 3T
ECRERPWETUER®E-
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REMBRRME

15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The leasehold land and building was revalued at fair value by an
independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. Valuation process of the
Group is disclosed in note 16.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Fair value of leasehold land and building in Hong Kong is derived using the
direct comparison method. This valuation method compares the property
to be valued directly with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the
property under consideration.

These was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of leasehold land
and building at 31 December 2015

Valuation method

fH{ERE

Unobservable input

ARG A B

15 X -BBRERE (5

HMELREFHB L GEMPEBITARARR
RAEER - AEEZHERFRME167mM

HFRAEXFATORGARBZ L LEHE (F=
E)

REBZEELHWEETZAABDNRBERLER
ARG A EET S EEAE 2 MEREMIT R
52 AL BMFEETTIR - R EREHENEZ
HWEE AR BRAELES ZHBAMAENE
BL2ER ZEEZRNGYEMEEMEZ(ER-

FRFE—EB - F_EBERFE=EB AT EEE-

AREEN2015512831B2HEL HREFA
REZERBARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
ARG A B A
DREZRE

31 December 2015
2015%12A31H

Leasehold land and building
— Hong Kong
HET M REF—EFE

Direct comparison method

HELBOA

If leasehold land and building had not been revalued, it would have been
included in these consolidated financial statements at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation of HK$86,528,000 (2014: HK$94,767,000).

The leasehold land and building is situated in Hong Kong with a medium-
term lease.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's leasehold land and building of

approximately HK$506,000,000 (2014: HK$506,000,000) was pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities.
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Average price per square feet:  The higher the average price,
HK$6,138 (2014: HK$6,138)  the higher the fair value
SFHRFHER
75 %£6,138 7T
(20144 : 56,1387

TIHERRE DA ERE

WHELHREFUELETER ISRELK
AR 2T E B 186,528,000 (20144 : B
94,767,00070) T AL E4R & BIISTREK

e+ REFMNRES LK EPHEE-
R2015F12A310 AEEMHAE L MEFHE

#506,000,0007T (20144 : & #506,000,0007T ) E K
FEREERITRE 2 KT M-
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REMBRRME
16 Investment properties 16 EMER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
At fair value: BARE:
At 1 January M1A1H 2,806,731 1,536,519
Addition nNE 574,403 2,456
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34) BBt B A R] (FiEE34) 7,689,453 -
Disposal & = (900)
Transfer from properties under development £ Z& e /1 ) 3 55 13
(Note 21) (BEE21) - 875,179
Fair value gain INRIET & 191,465 403,691
Exchange difference PE =58 (540,923) (10,214)
At 31 December ®12A31H 10,721,129 2,806,731

The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed as follows:

REBREZMERADIITWT

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Properties in Hong Kong held under BEBEATHERBEZBEDE
— Medium-term lease (more than ten years ~ —FRHATHE
but less than fifty years) (#B3810F 18 D HA504F ) 3,040 2,800
Properties outside Hong Kong held under BB THERE 2B BRINDE
— Medium-term lease (more than ten years ~ —FRHATHE
but less than fifty years) (#8105 18 505 ) 10,718,089 2,803,931
10,721,129 2,806,731

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s investment properties of
approximately HK$8,951,043,000 (2014: HK$1,606,049,000) were pledged
as collaterals for the Group’s banking facilities and other borrowings.

201512 A31H » A 5 & 4978 #8,951,043,0007C
(20144 : 78%51,606,049,0007T ) Z &% B ¥ % B K
EAREBIRITRMEREMERE 2 ERG-
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M BRERM

16 Investment properties (continued)

16 |EWE (2

Commercial
properties under
Carparks ~ Completed commercial properties development Total
Efl BRIERYE BRIPERMR it
Hong Kong Hong Kong PRC PRC
L gt H LY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT EETT
As at 1 January 2014 201451518 3,170 8,900 1,524,449 - 1,536,519
Addition AE = = 2,456 - 2,456
Transfer (Note) (M) - - - 875,179 875,179
Disposal & (900) = = = (900)
Fair value gain/(oss) Ah kS (BE) 530 (8,900) 91,874 320,187 403,691
Exchange difference R ER = = (12,730) 2,516 (10,214)
At 31 December 2014 12014612 A31H 2,800 - 1,606,049 1,197,882 2,806,731
Addition NE = = 3,932 570,471 574,403
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yokl B A A)

(note 34) (P5E34) = - 3,695,915 3,993,538 7,689,453
Fair value gain AR ERE 240 - 48,270 142,955 191,465
Exchange difference M=% - - (301,370) (239,553) (540,923)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12 A31H 3,040 - 5,052,796 5,665,293 10,721,129

Note: Pt et -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the development plan and certain leasing
arrangements have been finalised for the commercial portion of the properties under
development. The development costs of the said commercial portion amounting to
HK$875,179,000 were transferred to investment properties under development held for
investment purpose.

The properties in Hong Kong and the PRC were revalued at fair value by
independent valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited and Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, respectively. The following
table analyses the investments properties carried at fair value, by valuation
method.
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REZE2014F 12831 BILFE  B#ERPMERELHDOEER
BIRETHERHEAEE - LU EIMOERRARBE
875,179,0007T  EE R ERFIERE 2 RRPIRENE -
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16 Investment properties (continued)

The Group's finance department would review the valuations performed
by the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the finance department
and valuers at least once every six months, in line with the Group’s interim
and annual reporting dates.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fREMBRzRMEE

16 HBEWME (2

7R 2 B TSP 5 B B o (5 1 BT R 5 7 e ¥
PO (T (18 - BRSPS R A B A 25 05 < B A (5
AR 2 o S T £ PR R B S — B) S R R A
RETH

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 using

ERATHKESEEHZ
#2015F12A31HZ AR {ERTE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEAEE HfthEX EXFW
REBTS AR bk
ZERE WA B WA RE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—&) (B=8) (B=E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Description EREA BT BT T BT
Recurring fair value measurements LEERARBENE
Investments properties: BEMEE:
Carparks in Hong Kong MRBAZ BRI - 3,040 =
Shopping mall in the PRC AR E 2 YIRS - - 4,951,310
Carparks in the PRC A B 2 B fif = = 101,486
Commercial properties under AR B 2 BRI
development in the PRC - - 5,665,293

There was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant other observable
inputs (Level 2)

Fair values of carparks in Hong Kong are derived using the direct comparison
method. This valuation method is based on comparing the property to
be valued directly with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Fair values of shopping mall, carparks and commercial properties under
development in the PRC are derived using the combination of direct
comparison method and investment method.

Direct comparison method is by comparing the property to be valued
directly with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative
differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property
under consideration.

RAFE F—E F_ENE=BZRITELETE
o

FRARUMEXTRRGAKBES N LEHE (F
-F)

BRBEUZ AAERBERLEERL A EE
DENBERGEZYERAEMINRR S 2 TR
MEETHER

ﬁ?;ﬂEJtZ\'ﬁfﬁﬁml BEZ L EE (F=
B

TEBENES BURBERTEEVEZAAEBR
RERLEARREZMEA TR

BREBOEENBEETHREZMEE R BRI
HIZ 5 2 FILL B R IELL 8 - AT EREFEHEY
EZMHEEMER BEAFHEE 2 HBUAA
THEELZEZR ZEZRNGTENTENE
ZIEfE -
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M BRERM

16 Investment properties (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3) (continued)

The investment method is based on the capitalisation of net income at an
appropriate discount rate or by taking into account the current rents passing
and the reversionary income potential of the property. For commercial
properties under development, construction costs that will be expended
to complete the development to reflect the development potential of the

16 ®BEWE (2

E) (&)

property and the quality of the completed development are taken into

account in the valuation.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of investment

properties at 31 December 2015

Valuation method

R A BB

Unobservable input

AURRGARE

FRAEXFITRRGABBEZ LA EHE (F=

BREZEDERIEE IR EAGWNFR T IAER
bt AREREENEZRTHENERER
WA -RBERTPAXRVEMNS  BEXAGEAEH
RITRAHR 2R ARBRZ M ERNERE S BIb
ERNSERTRERIEER

AREE2015F12A31HZREMEARBEZE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FAERBARBHAREZRE

hEHE
31 December 2015
2015%12A31H
Retail - PRC Investment method and Direct
TE-F comparison method

(2014 Investment method)

(Note)
REXRERLBE

(20144 12 & %) (FIsE)

Term yield 5.25% — 5.50%
(2014: 5.25%)

FHABIHREK 1 5.25% - 5.50%
(20145 :5.25% )

Reversionary yield 5.50% - 6.00%
(2014: 5.50%)

B85 E1HR % : 5.50% - 6.00%
(20144 :5.50% )

Adjusted average market
rent per sgm per month
RMB260 - 410
(2014: RMB 250)
BABTARERETOMSHS
AR#260-4107T
(20145 : AR#2507T)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sgm RMB21,900 (2014 N/A)

KRBTSR SHE  BYHRAR
#21,900 7T (20144 : NEH )
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The changes in the term yield would not
materially affect the fair value.
FHOREEHHAREISELEX

=47
%

The lower the reversionary yield,
the higher the fair value.
EBERERE  DoERE-

The higher the adjusted average market
rent, the higher the fair value.
mRRTOmsEe S

AYRETSE

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair
value.

=]
A °



16 Investment properties (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3) (continued)

Valuation method

EERE

y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fREMBRzRMEE

16 wBEME 5

B) (&)

Unobservable input

AUERGARE

HRREXFTBRGABBEZ LR ENE (F=

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FAERBARBANREZRE

Carparks — PRC
Bi—H

Commercial properties under
development - land, PRC
BRPEENFE LT F

Commercial properties under
development - retail, PRC
BRPEEME
—Z€ H

Investment method and Direct
comparison method (2014:
Direct comparison method)
(Note)

REZRBREERE
(2014 : EEHER)
(PEE)

Direct comparison method
(2014: N/A)
ERLEL (20146 TER)

Investment method and Direct
comparison method (2014:
Investment method) (Note)

REEREBELEE
(20145 12 &%) (FIsr)

Term yield 3.50% (2014: N/A)
S H [ #72  3.50%
(20145 : NER)

Reversionary yield 4.00% (2014: N/A)
B EHE - 4.00%
(20145 : TER)

Adjusted average market rent per lot
per month RMB1,750 (2014: N/A)

BEEAERARTETERHE:
ARH1,7507T (20145 : TEF)

Adjusted average market transacted
price per lot RMB259,000
(2014: RMB259,000)
BEKARTATSRHE:
AR#259,0007T (20144 : AR
259,0007T.)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sgm RMB530 - 6,000 (2014: N/A)

TABRTHTSRHE : BYHK
AR H¥5307T- A R%6,0007T
(20144 - NE)

Term yield 3.00% (2014: 3.00%)
FHIERE : 3.00%
(2014% :3.00% )

Reversionary yield 5.00% (2014: 5.00%)
EHEHME :5.00%
(20145 :5.00% )

Adjusted average market rent per sqm
per month RMB130 (2014: RMB130)
BRABTKERBRTATSHEE A
R¥1307 (20146 : AR¥1307T)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sgm RMB19,000 - 24,000
(2014: N/A)

RRBTHANHRHE GLHAK
AR#19,000 7T- A R #24,000 7T
(2014% : @A)

The changes in the term yield would not
materially affect the fair value.
FHORESEHHANEIGELEX

By 480
F&o

The lower the reversionary yield,the higher
the fair value.
EROMEME AAEER-

The higher the adjusted average market
rent, the higher the fair value.
LEETHmSESHE AnER.

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair
value.

BATTUHERHELE
D ERS

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair
value.

RBTOMS RSB DA EY
Zo

The changes in the term yield would not
materially affect the fair value.

FHDREZPHURNAETSELER

=727
7

The lower the reversionary yield, the higher
the fair value.
EHERREHE ArELES-

The higher the adjusted average market
rent, the higher the fair value.

mRgETYmsAess
AnEHR-

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair
value.

MBS R SEMS DA ER

=
= °
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16 ®BEWME 2
FRAEXFTBRGABBEZ L EHE (F=
E) (&)

16 Investment properties (continued)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) (continued)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

AAERBARBHAREZRER

Valuation method

fHERE

Unobservable input

AURERGARE

Commercial properties Direct comparison method (2014:
under development N/A)
— apartment, PRC BRI EE (20145 : NER)
BRPEENE-2E F

Adjusted average market transacted price - The higher the adjusted average market
per sgm RMB16,000 (2014: N/A) transacted price, the higher the fair
MRBTOMERS5E : BTHRKAR  value.
#:16,0007T (20144 : TNiEF) MBS R HENR  DAEY
5o
Commercial properties
under development

Direct comparison method (2014:
Direct comparison method)

Adjusted average market transacted price  The higher the adjusted average market
per lot RMB123,000 - 150,000 transacted price, the higher the fair

— carparks, PRC (Note) (2014: RMB122,000) value.
BRPEENE HEELEE Q014 F - EREER SELRAELHMERHE: RABRTHMHER HELS
—&#f f %) (FsE) AR 123,000 - 150,0007T (2014 AREHE-

£ ARM122,0007T)

Mi: BERAREENERLBERTBEARZYE-

Note: The directors consider the investment method and direct comparison method is more
applicable to the property.

17 Intangible assets 17 EEEE
Secured Client Other
Trademark contracts relationships trademarks and
(Note) (Note) (Note) Sub-total trade names  Software cost Total
i1} R#aH EFRE HitE
(MsE) (MsE) (MsE) it REHER REBE #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost B
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1 718 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 11,858 173,497
Additions AE - - - - - 949 949
At 31 December 2014 120148128318 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 12,807 174,446
Additions AE - - - - - 714 714
Exchange Realignment AR - - - - = (19) (19)
At 31 December 2015 120156124318 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 13,502 175141
Accumulated amortisation ARMS
At 1 January 2014 201451 818 = (30,497) 42,112 (72,609) - (2,025) (74,634)
Amortisation for the year REEEH = = (7,89) (7,896) = 4373) (12,269)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 - (30,497) (50,008) (80,505) - (6,398) (86,903)
Amortisation for the year TEEEH - - (7.89%) (7.89%) - (4,299) (12,195)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015%12A318 - (30,497) (57,904) (88,401) - (10,697) (99,098)
Net book value FESE
At 31 December 2015 120156124318 58,469 - 13,169 71,638 1,600 2,805 76,043
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 58,469 - 21,065 79,534 1,600 6,409 87,543
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Intangible assets (continued)
Note:

Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of Synergis included a trademark, secured
contracts and client relationships. The trademark has an indefinite useful life as there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the trademark is expected to generate economic
benefits to the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the management of the Group determined there is no impairment
of the trademark. The basis on how the recoverable amount of “Property and facility
management” segment, to which the trademark is related, is determined, is the same as
those used in the impairment assessment of the goodwill allocated to the “Property and
facility management” segment (Note 18())).

The estimated useful lives of secured contracts and client relationships of 5 and 9 years
respectively are based on the terms of existing contracts and historical data. As at 31
December 2015, secured contracts have been fully amortised and the remaining useful live
of client relationship is 20 months.

Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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fREMBRzRMEE

BERE (8

P aE -

WEHE BIEMEL BIVEAE BENE S HOREFH
MR AIEEAEAFES AR E RS A RERES
RS e I8 4 R TR R B HAR -

M2015F12A318  AEEER BT miEwELIRRE BT
HEEEE [MERBHEER] DB I RE SR FTiKE
MR EANHSEEE [MELERBER] HDHENHEETR
BB PTER A & AR (MERE18(3)) »

BSEHALREFPBIEZEAIFERFHERERRE 2GR
RIESBUES RIFTARE RNE -R2015F 128318 BIEE4
EERHSEHELEPBARZFARIERAFHA20@EA -

e
PﬁéﬁzﬁEE@&Tﬁ\JET DECETREIM RIS A fF
SHmzReEEBMAR:

Notes HK$'000

P aE R IT

Property and facility management )% I 5% it B @) 18,753

Property development and investment MEZRERIEE (ii) 23,249
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 201451818 2014128318 &

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 42,002

Notes:

(i) Goodwill arising from Synergis, allocated to the “Property and facility management”
segment, amounting to HK$92,618,000 (2014: HK$92,618,000), was previously
reduced through recognition of an impairment loss of HK$73,865,000 (2014:
HK$73,865,000).

At 31 December 2015, the management of the Group determined that there is no
further impairment of goodwill. The recoverable amount of the “Property and facility
management” segment has been determined based on the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. Management has calculated the fair value based on
observable market price assessed that the fair value less costs to sell is higher than the
carrying amount of “Property and facility management” segment and no impairment
provision is considered necessary.

(ii) Goodwill arising from Hsin Chong Property Development Limited (“HCPD"), allocated
to the “Property development and investment” segment has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. The value in use calculation is derived from cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering by a
three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates stated below, which have been determined based on
management expectations for the market development. The long term growth rates
used are largely consistent with the range of forecasts included in industry reports.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are as follows:

G

() HFEEBREAZEE BOEZE [MERIBER] H%E-
£ 5 A#%92,618,0007T (20144 : 51#92,618,0007T )
ME S A B MR T AR (B B3 38 751 73,865,0007T (20144F :
75173,865,0007T) FIA T

M2015F128318 $E@gﬁﬁ§mﬁﬁﬁ%1ﬁ -
WA [ RE Iz RESEIARLA
ﬁfﬁifaﬁiﬁ%ﬁiﬂ:iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁaﬁfm%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ#

ERENTBEMSERAEARE RBARER
%ﬁ%WFtW)%& SHEEIR] A EEES  WEEA
TR E R -

iy PEZEMMEERIRE|SBREMEMERRERA
A ([HEMERRDMBE DREFENEHEES
JE o (e BBV ENE R EAIE 2R E = FHZ FHTR
HEOHReRAAFE - BR=FH2HERETIRAT
NXEh 2z hEHR R R WERBEERBETISERE
ZIRHIEE - TR REIE R R MITERE MM 2TA
BEEEA B EEREEMANIERRNT

2015 2014
Discount rate ARIR & 12% 12%
Growth rate HRE 5% 5%
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REMBRRME

HEEEXRS
M20155F K2014F 12 A3 B F EHARARK L EKIRE

19 Joint operations 19
Details of major investment in joint operations as at 31 December 2015 and

2014 are as follows:

ZEIEIWT

Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
£1 REME FERH 2k
2015 2014
CRCC - HC - CR15G Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 30% 30%
hEE-E P HEISREEAR in Hong Kong TARTE
EEBRE 2 FBEBARGE X
GAS Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 30% 30%
HERERELNR in Hong Kong BETR
EEBGE 2 FREELREE X
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice )V Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 70% 70%
MEDME-—REBEREHE AR in Hong Kong BETR
EEBRE 2 FBEEA ARG E X
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice )V Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 60% -
FETE-—PRBEREHE AR in Hong Kong B2
(002) EEBEE KB ABARLE X5
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice )V Unincorporated joint operation operating in Electrical and mechanical 60% -
FEnttE-—PRBEREHE AR Hong Kong WETIE
(003) EEBGE R EELRLE X
Hsin Chong — Maeda JV Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 60% 60%
in Hong Kong BFEE
EEBEE KB ABARLE %5
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Unincorporated joint operation operating Interiors and special projects 30.2% 30.2%
Joint Venture (01) in Hong Kong ENEHRERIER
EEBGE 2 FREELRLE X
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Unincorporated joint operation operating Interiors and special projects 30.2% 30.2%
Joint Venture (02) in Hong Kong EREA N FFRIEE
EEBRE 2 FREALRLE X
Hsin Chong - Yau Lee Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 50% 50%
in Hong Kong BFEE
EEBRE 2 kB A LREE XS
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 60% 60%
MEE in Hong Kong tARTR
EEBRE B EBARGEEER
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%

12 i E 82 (DC/2012/07)

in Hong Kong

EERREFBEBARRERY
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Note:

in Macau

ERPEE BB AR LT

BFRE

GEE

REMBBRRM L
19 Joint operations (continued) 19 HXEBEXRS o
Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
&1 BEmR FERE 2k
2015 2014
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
72 i EHE (DC/2012/08) in Hong Kong TARTRE
EEBGE 2 FREELREE X
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 83% 83%
T8 3 £ 2 (5/WSD/13) in Hong Kong TARIRE
EEBRE 2 FREALRLE X
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% =
572 i = (CV/2015/03) in Hong Kong TARTE
EEBEE KB ABARLE %5
Laing O" Rourke — Hsin Chong - Paul Y. Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
Joint Venture in Hong Kong TAIRE
EEBRE R EABARGLEER
Laing O" Rourke — Hsin Chong — Paul Y. Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
(WKCD) Joint Venture in Hong Kong TARIRE
EEBRE 2 FBEALRLE X
Maeda - Hitachi - Yokogawa Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
— Hsin Chong Joint Venture in Hong Kong TAIRE
EEBLE 2 B FBARLE R
MBH Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
in Hong Kong TAIRE
EEBRE B EAEARGEEER
Samsung — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 40% 40%
in Hong Kong ITARIRE
EEBREZFBABARGEEH
Yau Lee — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 40% 40%
BR-#EKE in Hong Kong BFRE
EEBLE 2 FBEBARFLE T
CESL - HCCG Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 45% 45%

Pursuant to the terms of the joint arrangements, the profit sharing for each year of all joint
operations listed herein above shall be distributed to the joint operators in proportion to their
respective participating interests.

Amounts due from/to other partners of joint operations are unsecured, non-interest bearing,
have no fixed terms of repayment and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The above table lists the joint operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other joint operations
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

REARZH 2GR DB ARGEEBEF RN 2D
HHIR S KL & E PTG 2 2 BRI DR -

BN ARG E 2 B A R 2 REBRER T8
HEEFEERPRABE REM -

FRITEERAIBYEAEEEENAEZAEEARL
RA EUERECARLEEBNFBREER

FEEBBRERAD zmmy 171



S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CErEE BT
20 Available-for-sale financial asset 20 AIHHECHMBEEE
Available-for-sale financial asset comprises the following: AfHE s BEERFENTEEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Equity securities BFEEH
Listed, at fair value W BARE
At 1 January M1A1H 27,798 10,190
Fair value gain N ERE 3,864 17,608
At 31 December RK12H31H 31,662 27,798
The fair value of listed securities is determined based on valuation report EWRBHFZARENREB L GERM 2 HERSE
by independent valuers and has been referenced to net asset value of the E-WE2EFIMEFNREARAZEEFE.
unlisted securities as at reporting date.
21 Properties under development 21 BEDPME
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
At 1 January M1A1H 4,287,431 3,880,470
Additions during the year FRNRE 971,459 1,307,012
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34) W Bt A A (B sE34) 12,487,798 =
Transfer to investment properties under EREERPREME
development (Note 16) (MFzE16) - (875,179)
Exchange difference b 5, = (938,199) (24,872)
At 31 December ®12A31H 16,808,489 4,287,431
Properties under development comprise: BERPMESRE .
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Land use rights - f5P FR A 14,076,708 2,402,304
Construction cost and capitalised expenditure &3k 28 & & A B ¢ 2,377,886 1,679,121
Interest expense capitalised BEAREF B 353,895 206,006
16,808,489 4,287,431
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21 Properties under development (continued) 21
As at 31 December 2015, the amount of properties under development
expected to be completed and available for sale within one year is
approximately HK$1,160,030,000 (2014: HK$967,763,000). The remaining
balance is expected to be recovered after one year.

As at 31 December 2015, a portion of the Group's properties under
development with cost of approximately HK$12,244,684,000 (2014:
HK$229,569,000) was pledged as collateral for the Group's banking

 ——

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRPYMER ()

fREMBRzRMEE

M2015F 128318  BEIB R —FA®R T KAl 4
EZBERPYES L AB,160,030,0007T (2014
F 1 3 #967,763,0007T) - #REETEHA R — F 12 UK

[ER

R20155F 124318 RNEE 2 B R A EIBH KR
#9785 112,244,684,0007T (20144F : 7 #229,569,000
T EERBEAAEERITEEREMEE ZEMT

facilities and other borrowings. o e
22 Stocks and contracting work-in-progress 22 FREHEEDRIE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Gross amounts due from customers for JEWE Pz TEHKIBERE
contract work 1,918,127 1,407,721
Raw materials, at cost R Rk A 1,666 1,412
Stocks of properties, at cost MEGFE KA 591,510 642,861
Stocks for retailing HTENFE 25,955 =
2,537,258 2,051,994
Note: B3 -
Cost plus attributable profit less B DN FEAS i AR PT TR R & 1R
foreseeable losses 31,896,206 28,792,382
Less: progress payments received and R B MR I TARER R
receivable (30,296,153) (27,721,873)
Contracting work-in-progress EER TR 1,600,053 1,070,509
Representing: RE&:
Gross amounts due from customers for FELEZERTEBE NS
contract work included in stocks and EWEF 2 TIRFIBERE
contracting work-in-progress 1,918,127 1,407,721
Gross amounts due to customers for contract JEfTEEZ N BT E RIE N B
work included in payables and accruals ERNEFP 2 IIRFIBERE (318,074) (337,212)
1,600,053 1,070,509
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23 Receivables and prepayments 23 BEFREAEMR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT IT
Trade receivables Z 5 FEW AR
— third parties —%=h 883,298 733,698
— provision for impairment — BB (423) (423)
882,875 733,275
Retention receivables R [E & AR
— third parties —%=7 1,268,742 1,230,854
— provision for impairment — BB (125) (125)
1,268,617 1,230,729
2,151,492 1,964,004
Other receivables H th FE U BR X
— third parties —%=% 101,814 63,203
Deposits and prepayments Ze kENE
— third parties (Note) —%=7 (M) 635,109 367,000
2,888,415 2,394,207
Less: non-current portion B IETRENE (208,941) =
2,679,474 2,394,207
Note: Balance as at 31 December 2015 included an earnest deposit of HK$200 million MisE: 2015612 A31 BMERBRIER TR RETERE— Ry
paid in respect of a potential acquisition of a property project in the PRC and M2+ 2 3= &7 #200,000,0007T & 5t B 1L — =49
approximately HK$209 million paid in respect of an operating licence of a property in X2 EEHBRM 2 49748%209,000,0007T (558 43E
Foshan, PRC which is classified as non-current portion. REND) °
The carrying amounts of the Group's receivables and prepayments are REE RS R TEN SR EN T EE B8 :
denominated in the following currencies:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
Hong Kong dollar ot 2,174,534 1,866,816
Renminbi AR 115,220 109,615
Macau pataca R 389,720 417,776
2,679,474 2,394,207
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23 Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The aging analysis of trade receivables by due date is as follows:

 ——

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fREMBRzRMEE

23 BEFRFAME (&
(a) BBREELBEKER

0]

B RUERFIREIE A 2 AR DA T -

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$'000

BRTT BT T

Not yet due REIHA 801,692 607,259
1 to 30 days 1230K 31,026 71,654
31 to 90 days 31E90K 34,923 23,483
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 2,795 7,587
Over 180 days 180K A E 12,439 23,292
882,875 733,275

As at 31 December 2015, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing as
there is no history of default of the customers.

The Group's credit terms for its contracting business, property
rental and property and facility management services are
negotiated with and entered into under normal commercial
terms with its trade customers. The credit period for the trade
receivables for contracting business and property and facility
management generally ranges from 30 to 60 days (2014: 30 to
60 days).

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts.
Rental income is billed in advance of the rental period. At 31
December 2015, retention receivables held by customers for
contract works amounting to approximately HK$603,906,000
(2014: HK$860,809,000) are expected to be recovered or settled
in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and retention receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

2015512 A318 » KRB IR IR X
A EEFEHERIERZ L BUREE
ABERE NERBITZIB MR-

AEEREER MEAESHEYERRE
EERG 2 EEE R R — AR g
EEEE MR - EEES MY E R
EEMNE SEWIRR 2 EEBH BN T30
Z60K (201445 : 30260K) °

BEEKZRESERRETIZBERNA
B2 R EEE - B WA BN THE H 5l
BB BR B FE UL - 2015128310 &
PRBEGHNIERE 2RESEKIER
XA 7 1£603,906,0007T (20144 7B
860,809,000t ) * 7B B G A 5 B4 SR A
RETEE -+ —E A BB A o

HRARBEEF BB #E S RRE
ERBERALBEERP AR -
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RSB R EE

23 Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables (continued)

(v)

Depending on the credit history and financial position of each
individual customer, trade receivables that are less than 180 days
past due are not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2015,
trade receivables of HK$12,439,000 (2014: HK$23,292,000),
net of provision for impairment, were past due over 180 days
but not impaired as there are no recent history of default
of independent customers and no objective evidence of the
receivables being not fully collectible.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and

23 BRIERREME (&)
(a) BBREELEWRES )

(v)

RIS ERNEP 2 EERS M BARM
T E 5 e U BR B B D 80K NI AR
BEEREME-MN2015F128318 2%
BERE 2 B 5 EUERFE 12,439,000
JC (20144 : 7 #623,292,0007T ) 45 & %1 2f
HBiB180K B EIELRE  RAREME
ERERHSEIERERGLEE  METEE
BRERZ SRR E L2 S E -

B 5 RRE® YRR 2 BEREZ S

-

retention receivables are as follows: :
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE¥ETT BT
At the beginning and RENRER
at the end of the year 548 548

The provision for impairment represents trade and retention
receivables aged over 180 days in both years.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group does not hold
any collateral.

24 Amounts due from non-controlling interests
Amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair values, and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong

dollars.
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mEWBEBRRME
25 Cash and bank balances 25 ReRBTEEFE
(a) Deposits, cash and cash equivalents (a) FR -HLRFRARLEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITHFRFERS 1,199,583 827,923
Short term bank deposits (Note i) 5 ERERITERR (PRI EEI) 263,133 22,122
1,462,716 850,045
Time deposit over three months (Note ii) = 1@ 5 LA _t & #ifF 7k (B &ii) 6,747 13,915
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents FHBEMERRESIER 1,469,463 863,960
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following FHCRERERBESER U TIIEE BER
currencies:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar B 700,397 697,812
United States dollar ETT 130,750 36,217
Renminbi AR 549,106 56,086
Macau pataca TR 88,797 71,436
Other Hth 413 2,409
1,469,463 863,960
Notes: Bt 5T
() The short term bank deposits of the Group have original maturities of three (i) AEBZEHBRTERSVEHAA=EAKAT-
months or less.
(i) The time deposits of the Group carry an effective interest rate of 2.0% (2014: (ii) REEREHHFFIRERFFZE2.0% (20149 :3.0% )
3.0%) per annum and have an average maturity period of 184 days (2014: B FHEIEH B184K (2014F 1 184K) ©
184 days).

(b) Restricted cash (b) fﬁﬂﬁﬁ B s
As at 31 December 2015, restricted bank deposits of 72201 5¢12531 H X KE %'J Zﬁﬁﬁ”\_ﬁ ﬁi
HK$126,786,000 (2014: HK$29,775,000) represent deposits placed in 126,786,09_07‘E (2/014% 7,% ﬁ%29,715,037075) b
banks on which charges are created to secure banking facilities. BT RITAMGRITRE 2 RITIFA
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26 Deferred tax 26
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability
method using applicable tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates. The movement of the deferred tax is as follows:

BEERIF
EAEBIERA S AR 2 BRI
BIRM BT E AR R E R BE E o BRI &
mT

Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
BEREAR BERERE
Properties under Depreciation
development/ in excess of
Accelerated tax Properties held Fair value Intangible depreciation Tax

depreciation for sale gains assets Total allowance losses Total

BRT0E/ HERR
NEREHRE REHEZNR LhERE L3714 L] HESRE HEER #h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BRI BT AT BT BT
At 1 Janaary 2014 R0WEIA18 (5300 (22319 (276.426) (14427 (519349 5685 5974 11859
Eichange difference EXZE B 2057 1,165 = 3219 = - =
Charged to other comprehensive income £ 482 AR - - (27,389) - (27,385) = = =

(Charged)credited to consolidated income ~ FEEFAIRERA (HB) /3T A
statement (12,683) 14728 (103,015) 1303 (99,667) (503) 4276 3713
At 31 December 2014 R014F12A31R (17,988) (206,409) (405,661) (13,124) (643,182) 5,382 10,250 15,632
Exchange difference ExzE 9% 305,612 91,664 - 398,223 - - -
Acquistion of subsiciares (Note 34) IREMBAE (Hi4) - (5,386,314) (1,543978) - (6,930,292) - - -
Disposal of subsidiary HEHBAR (16) - - - (16) - = =
Charged to other comprehensive income A 2ERERIR - = 8217 = 8217) = - -
(Charged)credited to consolidated income &R &IRERA (H1B) /FF A

statement (19,360) (17,435 (49,280) 1303 (84,772) (1,051) 21393 26342
At 31 December 2015 20158124318 (36,417) (5,304,546) (1915472) (11.821) (7,268,256) 4331 37,683 4,974

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$570,513,000 (2014:
HK$307,469,000) which can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses amounting to HK$433,470,000 are expiring from 2016
through 2020 (2014: HK$242,566,000 expiring from 2015 through 2019).
The remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.
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REMBRRME
27 Bank loans 27 RITER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Bank loans, wholly payable within five years 7B B F ABHEE 2 RITER
— secured — B 2,554,158 2,336,423
— unsecured — A 1,243,445 1,099,375
3,797,603 3,435,798
The repayment schedule of bank loans is as  $R/TE 7 EFHAZAT -
follows:
Short term revolving bank loans EHERIRTTE 1,895,220 1,436,382
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR —FR E@Zfﬂ BREk
within one year 787,845 477,711
2,683,065 1,914,093
Portions of bank loans due for repayment AR —FREER
after one year but contain a repaymenton B EIREREEKEX 2
demand clause R1T E%’Ka‘ )
(i) in the second year (i) —FEIH 231,421 137,860
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive (ii) E"% = FAFEH
(EEMFEBREEN) 203,301 142,165
Portions of bank loans due for repayment AR —FEEER
after one year and do not contain a WA ERERERKEXZ
repayment on demand clause ﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁ?ﬁ(a‘ﬁf\
(i) in the second year iy MEZFIHH 254,595 546,335
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive iy RE=ZZ=FRAFHNH
(EEMFBREEN) 425,221 695,345
1,114,538 1,521,705
3,797,603 3,435,798
Less: Amounts due after one year shown BERBBEET —F&
under non-current liabilities Rz &% (679,816) (1,241,680)
3,117,787 2,194,118

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank loans of HK$3,087,063,000
(2014: HK$2,669,504,000), HK$192,697,000 (2014: HK$306,526,000) and
HK$517,843,000 (2014: HK$459,768,000) denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, United States dollar and Renminbi respectively.

R2015F 128318 REE 5 B OB -0 kA
R HEZR1TE R A 13,087,063,0007T (2014
F B #2,669,504,0007T) 7B #192,697,0007C
(20144 : & #306,526,0007T ) & 78 #517,843,000
7 (20144 : 5%459,768,0007T ) °
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27 Bank loans (continued) 27

Notes:

(@) The bank loans of the Group carried weighted average interest rates of 3.22% (2014:
3.69%) per annum.

(b)  As at 31 December 2015, the bank loans of the Group were secured by leasehold
land and building of HK$506,000,000 (2014: HK$506,000,000) (note 15);
investment properties of HK$2,496,549,000 (2014: HK$1,606,049,000) (note 16);
properties under development of HK$216,234,000 (2014: HK$229,569,000) (note
21); restricted cash of HK$126,786,000 (2014: HK$29,775,000); and certain other
assets and equity interests of the Group's certain subsidiaries.

(0 The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair value.

|1T

B EE -

(a)

(b)

(©

BH @

AREE 7 RITE R METHFRER3.22% (20145
3.69% ) °

MR2015F12A31B  AEBEZRITERUBE
506,000,0007T (20144 : 7 #506,000,0007T ) 2 & £+
K 48 (M 7E15) 78 #2,496,549,0007T (20144 :

7 #1,606,049,000T ) Z A WE (H5E16) B
216,234,0007T (20144 : 7 #5229,569,0007T ) 2 % &
¥EE (ME21) : 78%5126,786,0007t 2 ZIRH13E £ (2014
F:78#29,775,0007T)  RETHMEERASEET
B8 R B2 AR A VEHE A o

RITERZ FREAERE QA ERG -

28 Payables and accruals 28 FEFERKEENER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR¥TT BT T
Trade payables Z SRR
— third parties —$=5 1,073,392 530,554
Retention payables R E & B ER
— third parties —%=5 946,909 905,818
Accruals for builders’ work AR TREERER 2,131,287 1,661,100
4,151,588 3,097,472
Other payables, deposits and accruals HithEHIRR e REFER
— third parties —%=7 1,574,650 761,534
— accruals for tax liabilities on acquisition — BN R 2
of land parcels in Tieling EEIEAE 347,300 368,723
6,073,538 4,227,729

The carrying amounts of the Group’s payables and accruals are

REBEMERLEFTERZRRE T EE

denominated in the following currencies: &:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Hong Kong dollar ki 3,429,259 2,590,802
Renminbi AR¥ 1,799,237 747,496
Macau pataca SR P 845,042 889,204
Other Hfth - 227
6,073,538 4,227,729
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Payables and accruals (continued)
The aging analysis of trade payables by due date is as follow:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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fREMBRzRMEE

EMEREERRA ()
ESEMERRHSE 2 RRATMT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Not yet due R EIH 632,645 328,473
1 to 30 days 1830k 257,457 84,309
31 to 90 days 31290k 64,876 47,848
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 24,508 31,502
Over 180 days 180K LA b 93,906 38,422
1,073,392 530,554

Note:

Retention payables in respect of the contracting business are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts. At 31 December 2015, retention payables held by the
Group amounting to approximately HK$478,713,000 (2014: HK$574,796,000) are expected
to be settled in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Other borrowings

The other borrowings from financial institutions bearing interests ranging
from 7.6% to 14.2% per annum were acquired from the business
combinations completed during the year. Other borrowings amounting to
HK$2,400,736,000 will be repayable within one year. As at 31 December
2015, the other borrowings were secured by the Group’s investment
properties of HK$6,454,493,000 and properties under development of
HK$12,028,450,000.

Senior notes

In May 2015, the Company issued senior notes with principal amount
of United States Dollars (“USD"”) 300 million (the “Senior Notes”). The
Senior Notes bear interest of 8.75% per annum, which are repayable semi-
annually. The Senior Notes will mature on 18 May 2018. The Company may
at its option, at any time prior to 18 May 2018, redeem the Senior Notes in
whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date. The Senior Notes are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and can be dealt with by way of debt issues for
professional investors only.

Convertible bond and financial derivative liability

On 20 November 2015, the Group issued 6.0% convertible bond at a par
value of USD100 million. The bonds mature two years from the issue date
at their nominal value of USD100 million or can be converted into shares at
the holder’s option within the conversion period at the rate of HK$1.00 per
share. The values of the liability component and the embedded derivative
component were determined at the issuance of the bond.

29

30

31

G

BEEBIREASENERDNRESEENZEREE -
M2015F 124318 AEBE A 2 RE S B ERROEE
478,713,0007T (20144 : ##£574,796,0007T ) TBERHE B ¥ 55 BiAE
REFBB T _MAKEE-

Hfthf &5
RECREBEZNENTFETER142B 2
HifEETDRERAFERHRNESS 5K
2,400,736,0007T 2 EAEE R —FA(EE - 522015
F12A318  Hb{EE AR EEE%6,454,493,0007T
2B N B 1612,028,450,0007T 7 B R R
A o

EERE

72015458 - AN A &) 817 7 7~ € %8300,000,0003
T([ET)MELEE ([BAEE]) - ZEZEEE
B8 75% 2 FHERFTE  BFHEFEE X -%EE
HEEHR2018F5 718 BIHI - A QT B1TIRER
2018F5 3180 Z BIER R IRIZEE R AL F100%
MERENEZ=EL AN EREEREZERA
MR RARNFE  BEIEBMmIEL S EBILEE-
ZERBAZBNREAH AR IMERAR LMAE
AIAMBEREEEITERN T R -

ARERFREMITEIRAR
72015411 5208 - A& B 2 17 E {E100,000,000
ELW60OEATMBRES ZEBEFREME
100,000,0003% 7T B 217 A BARR AT M EF 2 8 - sk Al %
#HAANREREIRARANIZESREE1.00TH L
EEMARN - BEXS RRATETIARSMHE
BEREITERRETE -
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31 Convertible bonds and financial derivative liability 31 FMBRBEFREMTETRAA&R (&)

(continued)
The convertible bond recognised in the balance sheet is calculated as REEBERBROATRRESHAENT:
follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Fair value of convertible bond issued 2015511 A208 B 1TH Al AR & 5
on 20 November 2015 NHE 728,713 -
Embedded derivative component BASTETEZBS (199,425) =
Liability component on initial recognition 72015911 208 H1 5 HE R 8
at 20 November 2015 BEHS 529,288 -
Interest expense F B 14,911 =
Liability component at 31 December 2015 #2015 12 A31HM A E LD 544,199 =
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Embedded derivative component M2015511 A20B Mk ASTAE T AE 5
on 20 November 2015 199,425 -
Change in fair value in financial derivatives ~ £ @{TAE T E QAR (EE 6,987 =
Embedded derivative component
at 31 December 2015 201512 A3 B iR ASTET A& S 206,412 -

The fair value of the liability component and embedded derivative
component of the convertible bond at 31 December 2015 amounted to
USD73,334,840 and USD26,633,141 respectively. The fair value of liability
component is calculated using cash flows discounted at effective interest MERERHNZX28.06%TH THETEFH 2
rate at 28.06%. The fair value of derivative component is calculated using
Black-Scholes model and is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

FE3EA -
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32 REBRH&AR

32 Long service payment liabilities

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employee’s final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's defined contribution retirement scheme that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

REEE (BREED)  AREBEEEARBFEZE
AFINEMESRTHERATELZERNEE N —
FENSE-MXNNEBENREBERENERTE
N AR SR S RE - M N BR 1B B 7R AN S B SRE (AR
BARGHE TR ST AREAE TR AEH
WEBHEMEEAREFASKTHOETRI‘ES

Movements of present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows: AERANEFEZREZZE0T
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Attlanway o owvAw@o . 220
Amounts recognised in income statement PR ERPERZEH
Current service cost BIVER AR 5 Ak AR 209 195
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation REBMBEEZFIEKA 49 58
258 253
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive R Hth 2 EINEF ER 2 S5
income
Remeasurement: BHEE:
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from: BUTSBEELEZREER (M) :
Experience adjustment KB 2,318 1,862
Financial assumptions B 5 R a% 962 298
Demographic assumptions AB#EH R - @)
I 320 2,158
Others Hfth
_Benefitspad BM@d 739 2210
At 31 December R®12H31H 6,553 3,749
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RERBRRIE
32 Long service payment liabilities (continued) 32 RER¥BeAER (@
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: KRz EZEBERERLOT
The Group (excl. Synergis) Synergis
*RE (FELEHEER) MEaERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T BETT BT T
Discount rate AhIR & 1.6% 2.0% 0.7% 0.9%
Long-term salary increase rate KRG RERE 3.2% 3.0% 4.0% 3.5%
Long term average expected return & IEAFE S ETE]
on mandatory provident fund BEZRTY
scheme assets T8 Hf [0 7R 1.6% 2.0% 4.0% 4.5%
The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the AERABEEHERETERREDNBRE S ITHE
significant principal assumptions is as follows: AT
Impact on defined benefit obligation
(HK$'000)
HATRAREHEE (B%TR)
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
The Group (excl. Synergis) FEE(FEARHEETHE) REBEE fRE&I2 A% iRl
Discount rate BEER & 0.50% (689) 807
Long-term salary increase rate REFF @B RE 0.50% 83 (118)
Impact on defined benefit obligation
(HK$'000)
HRERAREHTE (B%TET)
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Synergis HETE RN EE fRERIE RERiR D
Discount rate AhIR =X 0.25% 27) 27
Long-term salary increase rate RHF S RE 0.25% 96 (95)
Long term average expected return on BEEAERHEEELZ
mandatory provident fund scheme assets RHEIFH FEHA 3R 0.25% (77) 76
The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption LA ESURE AT E R AR REE) - MAE il
while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to RAE B - SL N KRATRER A AR — L RER 2
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When CHFREROAEEEN EHERATRNETHE
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant NEEBRZHNGRER - ER THRE (R WS
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined RNATEET B A E R ERNEERIRE) -
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 15.8 201512 A31 A R ERNE TR ETFIHHR R

years as at 31 December 2015. 15.8%F o
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33 Share capital and share options 33 BERDHKE
(a) Share capital (@ BR*F
2015 2014
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
3k 4= BETT avar-g= BT T
TB% T
Authorised, ordinary shares A7 SEREEER
of HK$0.1 each: 0.17CZ HimAk :
At 1 January M1A1H 30,000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 500,000
Addition # 0 - - 25,000,000 2,500,000
At 31 December M®12A31H 30,000,000 3,000,000 30,000,000 3,000,000
Authorised, preference EE BEREmEEE
shares of HK$0.1 each: 0.1TCZ Bk
At 1 January R1A1H 15,000,000 1,500,000 - =
Addition Ehn - - 15,000,000 1,500,000
At 31 December ®12831H 15,000,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000
Ordinary shares, issued and BR{ITR#EZ
fully paid: A
At 1 January M1A1H 2,858,167 285,817 2,858,167 285,817
Issue of rights shares BATHMRR S 857,450 85,745 = =
Issue of placing shares BITECER G 1,472,960 147,296 - -
At 31 December ®12831H 5,188,577 518,858 2,858,167 285,817
Preference shares, issued BRTRBEZ
and fully paid: BBk :
At 1 January M1A1H - - = =
Issue of shares for business BEBE G T
combination Eieh) 5,654,772 565,477 - -
At 31 December ®12831H 5,654,772 565,477 - -
10,843,349 1,084,335 2,858,167 285,817
Notes: B

1. On 8 January 2015, a total of 857,449,996 Rights Shares offered under
the Rights Issue and a total of 1,472,960,000 New Placing Shares at the
Placing Price of HK$1.00 per New Placing Share were issued pursuant to the
announcement and right issue prospectus of the Company dated 9 December

2014.

2. Upon completion of the Rights Issue and New Placing, all condition precedents
set out in the acquisition agreement of the entire issued share capital
of Goleman International Limited were satisfied and the acquisition was
completed. A total of 5,654,772,134 shares of convertible preference shares

were issued as consideration during the year ended 31 December 2015.

1.

201561 A8H  IRIEA AR B EI/A2014F12 A
Bz AMRHBRER HBRETREZEH
857,449,996% 14 i% i% 17 & & $£1,472,960,0000% Bt
EEBABRIEERMAE1.00T 2 HESRMHE
& T

MRER R LB S EIH%E BRI Goleman
International LimitedZ &6 2 2% 17 & 4 2 U B8 163
EATE AR REHEHAERER KEBEEE
BEEMA-REE2015F12A831ALEE - A4 &
5,654,772,134R PR R B R R IE AR BRERT -
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REoMBRRNE
33 Share capital and share options (continued) 33 BRFEREERE
(b) Share options (b) ERE

2008 Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 May 2008 (the
2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion, grant
options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during the
year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year

2008 F R M FERTE

R B FR200855 22 B IR — EH R E B
([2008F RAHETE] ) - 1RIFE20085F RAXMERT
B RAAREFIITHEBEMIEERNEERA
+ (F& R2008F R E 2 RA) - BEIE
(EHhB8E)ARARINENBARZAMEES -

WITES ERTEEREUFRITESEDY
SRR

200845 R EET &I T 2 RIEFANES |
REVNRERZRITERBRLBRERH 2

and their related average exercise prices are as follows: FHTEEFIBRT

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FEYTER REEERE

(HK$ per share) ‘000

(BRRAETT) T

At 1 January 2014 12014617311 1.79 36,206
Lapsed B &R 1.60 (10,702)
At 31 December 2014 72014512 H318 1.87 25,504
Lapsed B R 1.02 (1,500)
At 31 December 2015 MR20155F 12 A31H 1.92 24,004

Out of 24,004,000 outstanding options (2014: 25,504,000 options),
24,004,000 options (2014: 25,504,000 options) were exercisable with
the average exercise price of HK$1.92 (2014: HK$1.87).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise
price:

724,004,00010 R 1T{E 2 R ARHE (20145 -
25,504,00017 FR AL HE) F * 524,004,00017 7R Bk
#E (20144 : 25,504,00010 R HE) AR F 17
# - FHITHEEABE1.927T (20145 - B
1.877T) °

RARTTERIE 2 BB E RITEENT

Average

Expiry date E|®AA exercise price Number of share options ("000)
FEHTERE RRRENE (F3)

(HK$ per share)
(BRERTT) 2015 2014
22 May 2018 2018458221 2.13 19,000 19,000
3 December 2019 2019412 A3H 1.02 2,754 4,254
31 August 2021 202148 A31H 1.29 2,250 2,250
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33 RFRBAEE ()
(b) BB ()

33 Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)

Synergis Option Scheme

Synergis adopted a share option scheme on 19 September 2003 (the
"Synergis Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions
of Synergis passed on 19 September 2003. Pursuant to the Synergis
Option Scheme, the directors of Synergis, at their absolute discretion,
may grant share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules
of the Synergis Option Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any
employee, executive director, non-executive director and independent
non-executive director of Synergis or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the share options under the Synergis Option Scheme
during the year and share options outstanding as at the beginning and
end of the year and their related average exercise prices are as follows:

HEEEBREE

R E B IEF2003F9H 190 @B 7 IR R
HEHEEIEMN2003F9 A 198 N —TEEER
ETE ([FEEERBEAE]) - REFET
BERESE FEEREEABEBIBER
MEERALT (EERFETEERENSZ
RAD  ERE(EPEBE)MEEEREWE
RNRZ MRS HITES FERTEE BT
IEMITEE W BB -

FRRIBHESEEBIET S TREEZE
8 RNFHRERZARITERREREAR
FHITEEWT

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FEHTER MikESE

(HK$ per §ha_re) ('000)

(BRAE%TT) (F13)

As at 1 January 2014 201451418 0.90 31,400

Exercised BATfE 0.86 (3,890)

Lapsed B 0.91 (4,950)
As at 31 December 2014 and M2014F12A318 &

1 January 2015 20151818 0.90 22,560

Exercised e 0.88 (11,786)

Lapsed Bk 0.92 (2,280)

As at 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 0.95 8,494

During the year, the weighted average closing price of the share of
Synergis immediately before the dates on which the share options
were exercised was HK$2.80 (2014: HK$1.25).

Out of 8,494,000 outstanding options (2014: 22,560,000), 1,494,000
options (2014 5,470,000) were exercisable with an average exercise
price of HK$0.94 (2014: HK$0.88).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise
price:

MAEE FEETR 2NN EZEREET
F AT A2 W (B 2 g A B E2.807T
(20144 : B¥1.2570) ©

128,494,00017 14 & 17 {5 A9 B A% 4 (20144 :
22,560,00017 ) #f » 1,494,00017 & B% ¥ (2014
£ :5,470,0001% ) R AI{T{ER) - FIIITEEBAS
#0.947T (20144F : /B#£0.887T) °

HARTTEBRE Z IS A RITEEMT

Average Number of
Expiry date BHA exercise price share options ("000)
FEIYTER BIRESHE (T17)
(HK$ per share)
(BRI TT) 2015 2014
31 August 2015 201548 AH31H 0.76 - 1,500
24 September 2015 201549 A24H 0.82 = 3,500
24 September 2015 201559 H24H 0.996 - 150
27 May 2017 201745 H27H 0.952 800 1,200
6 June 2017 20176 6H 0.86 360 910
15 October 2018 2018104 15H 0.85 100 2,400
27 May 2019 201945 H27H 0.952 7,234 12,900
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34 Business combinations
(@ On 8 January 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Goleman International Limited, which, through its wholly
owned subsidiaries, is the legal and beneficial owner of 7 parcels
of land in Foshan City, Guangdong Province, at a consideration of
HK$5,854,894,000.

34 EHSH

(a

R2015F1H8R " AEEUREEK
5,854,894,0007T U2 B Goleman International
Limited®) 2 HEBEITRA - ZAREBHEEE
B /88 R R BB A 9B 1L T 9708 i 2 A E I
BB A

Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FRUtREZ AT BIEERFARIEZ AR [RE
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment M HEs KRR 5,830
Investment properties & &Y 2,681,731
Tax indemnification assets (note 1) RIEBEEE (M) 1,975,804
Properties under development BRPYHE 12,487,798
Receivables and prepayments FEWERR R AN & 24,231
Cash and bank deposits RE RRITFR 280
Other borrowings HEiEE (2,918,593)
Payables and accruals R R ERTE A (318,785)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEA F (6,100,884)
7,837,412
Gain on bargain purchase EEWEE WIS (1,982,518)
Total consideration RIBLEEE 5,854,894
Satisfied by: AR AT
Issuance of convertible preference shares on: R T5I B HA 31T A S E e R
(note 2) (Mt7E2)
— 8 January 2015 —2015%1 A8H 4,514,132
—8July 2015 —2015%7A8H 1,084,092
— 15 January 2016 —20165F1 7 15H 256,670
5,854,894
Net cash inflow in respect of business combination: BRZEIEAHFZIRERAFEE
Cash and bank deposits acquired EHYSIR® RIRITER 280
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34 Business combinations (continued)
(continued)

(a)

Notes:

1.

The tax indemnification assets of RMB1,564 million (approximate HK$1,976
million) at the acquisition date represent the tax indemnity granted by
the vendor in respect of estimated taxation charge arising from the sales
of properties (“Property Sales Taxation”) when the aggregate amount of
Property Sales Taxation paid or accrued exceeds the first RMB2,500 million. A
total of 2,604 million issued convertible preference shares are withheld and
redeemable by the Group within a period of 10 years starting from the share
issuance date to safeguard the Group's potential tax liabilities.

Convertible preference shares were issued at a fair value of HK$0.99 per share.

In accordance with the acquisition agreement, a total of 259,263,039
convertible preference shares was issued on 15 January 2016 in respect of any
fines, fees or penalties for delays in commencement of construction works
on the property and the certified work value. A certain number of convertible
preference shares were remained held back pending to the issuance of a state-
owned land use rights certificate for a land by 30 June 2016 as stated in the
announcement dated 15 January 2016.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$17,253,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The acquired business contributed no revenue and net profit of
HK$133,320,000 to the Group for the period from 8 January 2015 to 31
December 2015. If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015,
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would have no material difference since revenue and profit or loss of the
Goleman Group for the period from 1 January 2015 to 7 January 2015 were
immaterial.

The fair value of receivables and prepayments is HK$24,231,000 and there
is no objective evidence that the receivables and prepayments are not fully
collectible.

The gain on bargain purchase was mainly attributable to the difference
between the Company's share price set on the date of acquisition agreement
of 14 May 2014 and the share price on completion date of 8 January 2015.

-_—
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34 S (2

(%)

B E

(a

1.

RUEE & B EE A AR1,564,000,0007T (49
7 #51,976,000,00070) 2 HIEREEE EE D
N B MYEHETERERBEEARE
2,500,000,0007CR + B 75 Fh 45 E VI FrE A B b ET
BEIH ((MEHSHE]D MR EOHERE-
4 #£2,604,000,0000% B2 2% 17 AJ #2 A% (& %5 i B A% 19
BTABBOFRNHASEEREATHEAEHE
fEE - BT IE AR EEAREBERIBAG

AHREEERETHAAEASEIER099TT

RIEWE R - 71201641 B15H © SLEIERGZY
¥7ERIRANET BRREIARIZET
TR E(EE1TA ££259,263,0390% Al A B S0 A% - S0
HEIA20165F1 A158 2 A& ATl - Zpin AT &
SR BT AFR201656 A30H A3 i —itb
B2 A (e RS-

REZE2015612 A31 B ILFE - BB A B
17,253,0007C 4R A Wa R 2 FTB R 515X »

201541 A8H £2015% 12 A31H Bifd - AT g
¥R AR E B RNURES IE AR R F RS
133,320,0007T ° UL BE =B 201561 A 1A TSR -
HZE2015F12 A3V H L FE 256 W kiR E &
Mg terEARER  RAA2015F1A18E2015
F1A7H B Golemant [Bl 2 Wz R iE = I &
j§o

FEUGRIE M IER & 2 At B A 1524,231,0007T
ERBEEFARKERREN S TR EKE -

AEWRBRETETANAR T NKE RS A
(201455 714R) 2 B0 e B E 52 UEER B (2015
FIA8H) ZREZHMAE
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34 Business combinations (continued)
On 31 March 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Pure Benefits Limited which indirectly owns 2 parcels of
land situated at Taian City, Shandong Province, at a consideration of

(b)

HK$1,042,363,000.

34 ¥¥BSH

(b)

R2015F3A31H » KEBE U BEPure Benefits
Limited ( EEAEHEVRILRE T LT
MBI 2 2 HEBITHRA REAEEE
1,042,363,0007T °

Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FrUiEZ AT BIEERFARIEZ A B [RE
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment Y5 - MRS KR 6
Investment properties BEME 1,843,221
Receivables and prepayments FEWERR R IFBN & 674
Cash and bank deposits B4 MIRITER 4,181
Other borrowings HEiEE (252,496)
Payables and accruals FERBRR R FEST & A (37,882)
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIBAE (332,609)
1,225,095
Gain on bargain purchase =EWE KR (182,732)
Total consideration RIBERE 1,042,363
Satisfied by: AT A AT
Cash Be 808,879
Repayment of former shareholder’s loan BEAKREER 233,484
1,042,363
Net cash outflow in respect of business EAXBAZHESR LT
combination:
Cash and bank deposits acquired EHUSIR & RRITEK 4,181
Cash consideration paid EfRENRE (808,879)
Repayment of former shareholder’s loan EERBERER (233,484)
(1,038,182)

Notes:

Acquisition-related costs of HK$1,645,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The acquired business contributed no revenue and net loss of HK$42,976,000
to the Group for the period from 31 March 2015 to 31 December 2015.
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015, consolidated
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 would have
been HK$2,472,909,000 and there would have been no difference in the
consolidated revenue for the year.

The fair value of receivables and prepayments is HK$674,000 and there is
no objective evidence that the receivables and prepayments are not fully
collectible.

The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the consideration and
the net asset value acquired after commercial negotiation with the vendor.
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1. REZE2015F12 8318 LF/E - WEEMRRR S
1,645,0007C AR 6 S K 2 1T 51

2. M2015%3A318 E2015412A318 Hf8 - prikié
¥R EAREE RN G EEBIBFEEE
42,976,0007T © fiti 4 % FIEHA2015F1 A1H T -
HZE2015F 12 A3 B I FE 2 AEBERE & F &
775 %2,472,909,0007T + 1 G P 4R & WL 6 £ 8
@Jo

3. ERERRENSZARERBEE740007T £
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REMBRRME
34 Business combinations (continued) 34 ¥BEH (#

(¢ On 29 April 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital (© M2015F4A290 AEBEWERERERER A
of Wisdom Top International Limited which owns a commercial A (ERERERMNMEE —EEENE) 22
property in Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, at a consideration B BITRRAS - (B R 15477,600,0007T ©
of HK$477,600,000.

Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FFUfBZ AT RN B ERFARIEZ&E K[RE
HK$'000
BT
Investment properties BB 1,014,184
Cash and bank deposits R & RRITFR 165
Bank loan IRITER (370,386)
Payables and accruals ENERR R EER (54,301)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEBE (100,117)
489,545
Gain on bargain purchase =EWERE (11,945)
Total consideration RELBEE 477,600
Satisfied by: ATEHFRAZAT
Cash Re 477,600
Net cash outflow in respect of business BHAFEBE 2R EF8E:
combination:
Cash and bank deposits acquired EESHE RRITER 165
Cash consideration paid EfNBeRE (477,600)
(477,435)

Notes: B E

1. Acquisition-related costs of HK$4,474,000 have been charged to 1. REZE2015F12A318I-FE  WEARR B
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year 4,474,000TT AR A W R 2 TR S 1 5
ended 31 December 2015.

2. The acquired business contributed no revenue and net loss of HK$8,236,000 2. 201554 FA29H Z2015412 A31H HAfE - i
to the Group for the period from 29 April 2015 to 31 December 2015. If the ¥R EAREEER MR EEBIBFEEE
acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015, consolidated revenue and 8,236,0007T © fisi Y % S IH M 201551 A1H 5T
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 would HZE2015F 128318 L FE 2 AEEGE Bm &
have been HK$15,040,115,000 and HK$2,487,811,000 respectively. 4RA 0 B 18 9 BIl B 7% #515,040,115,0007T & 78 #

2,487,811,0007C ©

3. The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the consideration and 3. EERBEREAREESEITEEEREZ KEHR
the net asset value acquired after commercial negotiation with the vendor. R EE R A E/ -
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fREMBRERM

34 Business combinations (continued) 34 X¥EH (=)
(d) On 14 September 2015, the Group acquired 65% of the issued share (d) 72015F9F148  AEBIUKEEL&X Investment
capital of L&X Investment Industrial Limited (“L&X"). L&X indirectly Industrial Limited ([L&X ) 65% 2 B 1TRR AN
holds 98.95% equity interest in a subsidiary, which owns a parcel of L_XFHI A — [E I8 A 5198.95% 2 & 7 - M
land in Tianjin City, at a consideration of HK$900,000,000. ZMBARES —BAURRKETMAME - RE

778 %900,000,0007T ©
Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FrUiEZ AT BIEERFARIEZ AR [RE
HK$'000
PRI
Investment properties "EME 2,150,317
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R IFBN & 1,282
Cash and bank deposits B4 MIRITER 3,410
Payables and accruals R K EEHE A (120,663)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIAAE (396,682)
Non-controlling interests FEIE A (594,280)
1,043,384
Gain on bargain purchase =EWE R (143,384)
Total consideration RIEBEE 900,000
Satisfied by: ATEI AR AT
Cash B 900,000
Net cash outflow in respect of business EREBAM 2B R LT
combination:
Cash and bank deposits acquired EEHYSIR & RRITER 3,410
Cash consideration paid BEESRE (900,000)
(896,590)

i 5 -

Notes:

Acquisition-related costs of HK$1,474,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The acquired business contributed no revenue and net profit of
HK$24,970,000 to the Group for the period from 14 September 2015 to 31
December 2015. If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015,
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
have been HK$2,474,062,000 and there would have been no difference in the
consolidated revenue in the year.

The fair value of receivables and prepayments is HK$1,282,000 and there
is no objective evidence that the receivables and prepayments are not fully
collectible.

The fair value of the non-controlling interest was estimated by using the
purchase price paid for acquisition of 65% issued share capital in L&X
Investment Industrial Limited. This purchase price was adjusted for the lack of
control and lack of marketability that market participants would consider when
estimating the fair value of the non-controlling interest in L&X Investment
Industrial Limited.

The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the consideration and
the net asset value acquired after commercial negotiation with the vendor.

1 QyHSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

75 #51,474,0007T 2 Y BE AR RA K AN B FF A B E2015
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2015497148 E2015F12 A3 1B B/ - Fr
UelE - 351 B BRI E £ 8 R FEAN
24,970,0007T © fit 3% Y #E EIER20159F1 A 1H 5T
R B ZE20156F 12 A31 B I FE 2 AREEGEHF
15 A7 %52,474,062,0007T * T & AER S U s s
§Jjo

FEMER R R TEN € 2 A B R7E%51,282,0007T  IF
R B IR R A R B & TR E Uk E -

PR 2 2 A Fe (B T ER B WS L&X Investment
Industrial LimitedZ 65% B B 1TA& AN 2 fE B (BF&#E1T
fhEr - BB BRI HIE R A ™
52 B 2E A EETL&X Investment Industrial Limited3E
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34 Business combinations (continued)

35

36

These business combinations were accounted for by acquisition method.
The gains on bargain purchase are calculated based on the fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date
and the fair value of the consideration of the respective acquisition.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group is subject to various claims
on liquidated damages of certain construction contracts during the normal
course of business. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has
applied extension of time to mitigate the liquidated damages and any
resulting liability would not materially affect the financial position of the
Group.

Related party transactions
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary
of significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary
course of business between the Group and its related parties during

 —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fREMBRzRMEE

34 R¥BSH
B RTEA GHT IR E AR 35 B U WS TR
WU B TS 2 AT R A E R AR B B 2 B
BRARBEARSKEEEREZ DAEEITHE-

35 KRAR
7201582014512 8318 REE R —fREKBE
FHRSESRETERESHNZ THEEERE -ES
RAE AREBEEHEBUREEEEESE
SLFTEE 7 B ETE AL E 2 MK E KR
EpN-Z-3

36 MELRH
BEESZRHMT

(a) BEAVBRRABREBESERIN RFR
AEBEARESERREBERPETZE
REETRZHEWT °

the year.
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT
Expenses 53
Purchase of a motor vehicle, membership X F—Z a1 EERAR 2
fee and golfing expenses paid to a HBEAEER 2ERERRIRE
former substantial shareholder (Note) A (M) = 473

Note:

Purchase of a motor vehicle, membership fee and golfing expenses paid to a former
substantial shareholder was concluded on terms and prices agreed by both parties.

R

XNF-EHTIERRBEAEER SERSBX
HREEMAZRPTIRET HE 2GR REEAETT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEHMBERME
36 Related party transactions (continued) 36 MEARS (5)
(b) Key management compensation (b)) EEFEARBZMHE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits N E A 1@ 38,829 71,230
Bonus TEAT 10,047 19,842
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET B 1,470 1,556
Share-based compensation LARRAD = 2 fi 2 # (& - 336
50,346 92,964
None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted AR LA EPTIRER 2 BE A R S iR BIAT
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as REZBER G K IFBERER S -
defined in the Listing Rules.
37 Capital Commitments 37 BF&iE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments as follow: REEEH  REBEE THIEARRE:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTT BT
Contracted but not provided for ERENEESL
— Properties under development —BERPYE 1,805,461 2,362,278

1 QVHSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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fREMBRzRMEE

38 BEMEKIRIE
REER AEERETTHE 2 LEROTRE
RN 2 R E IR -

38 Commitments under operating leases
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Land and buildings T REF
— not later than one year —F—FR 15,037 20,095
— later than one year but not later than —FB_FEFRFA
five years 9,618 15,459
24,655 35,554
Office equipment WRERME
— not later than one year —E—FNR 525 392
— later than one year but not later than —F_FEFRFA
five years 734 960
1,259 1,352
25,914 36,906
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease REFE R - REBEBBS A HEE 2 2EMHL (—/&HE
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases, which typically run for a ENA—ERF) MR RIEAEEIGHRIBLTELN
period of one to five years, as follows: T~
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Land and buildings T RIEF
— not later than one year —FE—FRN 52,186 47,555
— later than one year but not later than —E_FEFRFA
five years 95,783 106,250
— more than five years —AFHNE 50,277 69,079
198,246 222,884
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fREMBRERM

39 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 39 FEBaNERME
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash outflow from operations B Al F B AL 2 IR e M FREE RO T
is shown as below:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit before taxation B 58 AT A 2,585,610 553,492
Gains on bargain purchase HEWERS (2,320,579) =
Gain on debt extinguishment BRI S P A 2 s (117,557) =
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE 12,195 12,269
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥)3 « # 23 K R 2 T E 72,552 64,625
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMER R EWS (191,465) (403,691)
Fair value loss on convertible bond derivative  RI#RREHFITER H 2 A EEE 6,987 =
Net finance costs B R A HEE 119,464 41,666
Gain on disposal of investment properties SR EME R = - (453)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE MR KR EEIEFE
equipment 817 674
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZEE 2,257 =
Provision for long service payment liabilites — K£HIR®G & & EEHE 258 253
Share-based compensation VARGAD 7 Bl 2 4 (8 957 1,804
Operating profit before working capital EBE B IR 2 LERT
changes 171,496 270,639
Increase in properties under development BERAPYZEIL M (661,536) (1,223,505)
(Increase)/decrease in stocks and contracting 155 & SR T2 (#40) /i
work-in-progress (493,525) 377,329
Increase in receivables and prepayments JE WS BR R R FE A 4 3 AN (286,657) (678,232)
Decrease in amounts due from non-controlling Ji& U 32 5 A 25 71 78 s >
interests 2,867 430
Increase in payables and accruals FETBRFR R FE 5T & AL 0 1,133,853 432,045
Increase in restricted deposits 52 BRI 17 K38 hn (96,104) (26,116)
Exchange differences PE = %8 - (3,676)
Net cash outflow from operations g 23R F R (229,606) (851,086)
40 Subsequent events 40 HEEIR
In January 2016, the Company issued senior notes with principal amounts 201651 H - ANA R EE TR 4858 /5150,000,0003
of USD150 million due 2019 (the “2019 Senior Notes”). The 2019 Senior TLRR20195F BIHA 2 =4z ([20195F B 55 RH8 1) - 2019
Notes bear interest of 8.5% per annum, which is payable semi-annually. FRAZBREFEISEZMEGTE  BHFLN—

Ko

1 QVHSN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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fREMBRzRMEE

41 Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the 41 ZAFZEEABEREHRED

Company
(a) Balance Sheet (a) EERBEF
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current assets FERBHEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERY SIS L] 12,122 10,859
Intangible assets mEEE 2,377 6,409
Investment in subsidiaries MR AR E 2,177,149 2,177,149
Loans to subsidiaries BERTFHBA A 828,000 592,000
Deferred tax assets B IEEE 3,586 3,586
3,023,234 2,790,003
Current assets RENEE
Loan to a subsidiaries BRTHERA A 321,940 46,940
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT /BB 1 ) 3R I8 14,246,171 3,490,440
Receivables and prepayments FEUBR R R FB & 40,706 146,709
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEIEE 257,212 1,137
14,866,029 3,685,226
Current liabilities mERE
Bank loans IRITER (915,000) (781,814)
Notes Zig - (154,741)
Convertible bonds Al AR E S (544,199) =
Payables and accruals JERERFR R BT E A (74,585) (27,830)
Loan from a subsidiary KE—EHBRARZER (180,000) (74,000)
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN B R (2,193,207) (1,317,639)
Financial derivative liability SROTETEARE (206,412) =
(4,113,403) (2,356,024)
Net current assets mEEERE 10,752,626 1,329,202
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREAMGR 13,775,860 4,119,205
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fREMBRERM

41 Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the 41 FATFIZEEAERRERED »
Company (continued)

(a) Balance Sheet (continued) (a) ZEREF (&)
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Loan from a subsidiary RE—FENBARZER (196,000) (376,000)
Senior notes BRERE (2,275,504) =
Long service payment liabilities RERG S AE (307) (216)
Deferred tax liabilities REBIHBE = -
Total non-current liabilities =R f g (2,471,811) (376,216)
Net assets HERE 11,304,049 3,742,989
Equity B2
Capital and reserves attributable to HEAFTEFEAREZTER
the Company’s equity holders =41 ]
Share capital N 1,084,335 285,817
Other reserves HAb 10,048,945 2,749,042
Retained profits REB 170,769 493,667
Proposed dividends R A% B - 214,463
Total equity BaEw 11,304,049 3,742,989
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors NAT 2 BERBERN2016E3A240 D EE= S
on 24 March 2016 and was signed on its behalf. M WHEATREEE-
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung E @38 LUI Chun Pong & iR38
Chief Executive Officer 1TIECAE#t Chief Financial Officer & J& 81 748 B

1 98/HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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fREMBRzRMEE

41 Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the 41 ZAFZEEEABEREMRED o

Company (continued)

(b) Reserve Movement (b) FiFEE)
Convertible
Capital Share bonds and
Share redemption options Spedial warrants Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  equity reserve profits Total
ARRESR
HREE
BiER BRIREOGEE  DRERE FRIGE RaRHE REBH 1]
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO0O
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2014 201481 A1A 2,383,224 4420 23823 332,046 - 741,654 3,485,167
Profit for the year REEET] - - - - - 45,779 45779
Other comprehensive income it 2E i
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit BUBHNELBERR
obligations - - - - - 165 165
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - - - 45,944 45,944
Recognition upon issuance of warrants R/ BRAREE - - - = 11,683 - 11,683
Equity settled share-based transactions ~ LRI AR RIERERS - = 123 = = = 123
Transfer upon share options lapsing ARBE R mER - - (6,277) - - 6,277 =
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - (85,745) (85,745)
- - (6,154) - 11,683 (79,468) (73,939)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 2,383,224 4420 17,669 332,046 11,683 708,130 3457172
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (226,674) (226,674)
Other comprehensive oss Eh2EER
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit BINBRERZRERR
obligations - - - - = (80) (80)
Total comprehensive loss 2EEBEE - - - - - (226,754) (226,754)
Issue of new placing shares BMIRERR 1,266,746 - - - - - 1,266,746
Issue of rights shares BHRRG 756,029 - - - - - 756,029
Issue of convertible preference shares ~ EAT AR E LR 5,032,747 - - - - - 5,032,747
Unissued consideration shares RETRERD - - - 256,670 - - 256,670
Transfer upon warrants lapsing RABRER R B - - - - (11,683) 11,683 S
Transfer upon share options lapsing RERERMEEER - - (606) - - 606 -
Dividends paid BfIRE - - - - - (322,89%6) (322,896)
7,055,522 - (606) 256,670 (11,683) (310,607) 6,989,296
At 31 December 2015 120158124318 9,438,746 4,420 17,063 588,716 - 170,769 10,219,714
Representing: R&:
Reserves [ 2,383,224 4,420 17,669 332,046 11,683 493,667 3,242,709
Final divicend proposed in respect of RIEE 220145128318
the year ended 31 December 2014 IHFEZRERE - - - - - 214,463 214,463
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 238324 4420 17,669 332,046 11,683 08130 34517
Representing: R&
Reserves i 9,438,746 4,420 17,063 588,716 - 170769 10,219,714
Final dividend proposed in respect of BREZ20158127318
the year ended 31 Decernber 2015 IHFEZRERE - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 120156128318 9,438,746 4,420 17,063 588,716 - 170,769 10,219,714
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fREMBRERM

42 Principal subsidiaries 42 EEMEAT

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
48 B/ SR FEEFRGERREREAL BERORMERF FERK
N HELR
Beijing Zhong Ji Xin He Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The People’s Republic of - 100% UUS$40,000,000  Property investment
(Note 2) China 40,000000%7T  MERE
FRPEENEEERAF (fi52) hEARLME
Cogent Spring Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$85,000,002  Property investment
BB 85000002 MERE
Datawin Trading Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$100,000  Investment holding
EBESBRATR* ERRUES 10000057 REEK
Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Company Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Registered contractor services
Limited (Note 1) i RPI25000m  AERERE
XERE (AP ARAR (M)
HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Building construction and civil
Limited R JRP9#25,0007 engineering
HERERLIATR (M) BRAR BEFRERIATIR
Hsin Chong - Hsin Chong Aster Hong Kong - 100% - Building construction and
Joint Venture (Note 4) B mechanical, electrical and
HE-METTER S (M) building services
BEFREREEIRR
EFRE
Hsin Chong - China Comservice JV (Note 4) Hong Kong = 100% - Building construction
ME-—PEBERBEE () BA BFRE
Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$5,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
HETHEEFXERRAR BE 7 #5,000,0007C building services
KEIRREFRE
Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited Hong Kong = 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and civil
HEBER (BN BRAR B HK$70,002,000 engineering
Non-voting deferred: ~ EBFEERLATRE
HK$10,000,000
Ll
770,002,000
ERZE
BB -
75110,000,0007T

For identification purpose only
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REMBB/RME
42 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 42 EEMEBLATF (&)
Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
247 B3/ R sEARGERERESL BRTRAERE FEREK
/NG| HELR
Hsin Chong Construction (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands 100% = HK$150,000  Investment holding
EBREIES A#150000  REAR
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and civil
HELERERAR Bk HK$85,002,000 engineering
Non-oting deferred: ~ BFEERTATE
HK$20,000,000
EEAR:
75 1485,002,0007T
ERTE
BB -
720,000,000
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% RMB172,653,600  Building construction and civil
(Notes 1 &2) China AR 172,653,6007C engineering
MEEEREERAR (Mi1k2) REARARNE BEFRERIATIR
Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Construction management
HEEE R ERAR 0 BT services
BEERRS
Hsin Chong Construction Management Hong Kong = 100% HK$1,000,000  Construction management
Services Limited B #%1,000,0007C services
MEEEERRBERAR BEEERG
Hsin Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited (Note 1) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Construction management
METER(ORM)ERAF (A1) AP JRPI#25,0007T services
BEERRS
Hsin Chong Property Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$227,355,000  Investment holding
MERERRERAHF RBRIES 273550005 REER
Hsin Chong Property Development Limited Hong Kong - 100% US$2,502,191  Provision of investment
MEMEERBRAR 0 2,502,191% T and asset management
consultancy services
REREREEERER
R

* For identification purpose only * O EBHEE
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REMBRRME

42 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

42 FERELAF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
4 B/ EE e FREMGEREREIL BRTRBERE TERK
FRF HELR
Liaoning Huisheng Property Investment Limited*  The People’s Republic of - 100% US$150,695,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) China 150,695000%7T  FHEERE
BFEEREFERAA (1 k2) HEARLNE
Liaoning Tongji Property Investment Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$211,149,960  Real estate development
(Notes 1&2) China A1,149960%T  FHERER
RERESZERAR (1K) HEARAAE
Rosy China Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1  Investment holding
(Note 1) (FizE1) HERREAHES 1= RAER
Rife Yard Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000  Real estate development
BB #1000 BHEERR
Smart Lane Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1  Investment holding
ERELHES 1= REER
Sorano Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1  Investment holding
(Note 1) (FifzE1) ERRUES 1xr REER
Wisdom Top International Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000  Property Investment
REERARAT &b AH1,000000  MERE
RERNELERBRAT The People’s Republic of = 100% 1S$40,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) (Fif1%2) China 400000007 BHEER
HEARER
ERBAEFERAA The People’s Republic of - 100% US$40,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) (1 %2) China 4000000057 RBHEER
HEAREA
ERREEFERAA The People's Republic of = 100% 1S$30,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1&2) (Fif&E15%2) China 30000000%T REHEER
EEIN=S:
EREHEXERAHA The People's Republic of = 100% US$10,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) (i1 %2) China 10,000000X7T  FHEER
HEARLR
BERREROMEEEER A The People's Republic of - 100% US$55,320,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) (FifE1%2) China 55320000 FHEZR

*  For identification purpose only

PEARLNE

*OEHES
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42 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 FEREBLAF (&)

fREMBRzRMEE

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
247 B3/ R FREMGEREREAL BRTRAERE FEREK
/NG| HELR
SEHE (FR)EXERARF (Notes1&2)  The People’s Republic of = 100% US$42,000,000  Real estate development
(FtEE1R2) China 4200000050 FHEER
HEARLA
KEERBZERDA (Notes 1,2 &3) The People’s Republic of - 64.3% RMB390,317,009  Real estate development
(HzE - 23) China ARH#390317000T EHEER
HEARARE
Everich Construction (Macau) Limited (Note 1) Macau - 58.29% MOP25,000  Provision of renovation and
s CEPT) BRAR (K1) RF JRPS%25,0007T fitting-out works
RUEBHRENRETR
Hsin Chong Construction (Engineering) Limited ~ Hong Kong - 58.29% HK$22,000,000  Demolition work and addition
MEEER (IR)ARAR BB 7%22,000000C  and alteration
FRIRENZREETR
Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong - 58.29% HK$5,000,000  Fitting-out, renovation and
MEENEHN (F8)ERAR ) 75,000,000 addition and alteration
ZEREE BEMER
HEIR
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong - 58.29% HK$2  Provision of laundry services
ARERBERA BE BT REUEEKRH
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong - 58.29% HK$200,000  Provision of cleaning services
BARBERA] BB AR200000T  RAEBRRE
S-Club Limited Hong Kong - 58.29% HK$1  Sales of products, provision of
BE BT copying services and
property holding
HEER REVEENRK R
HENE
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong = 58.29% HK$2  Provision of security and
HERZREER A BE BT consultancy services

For identification purpose only

*OEHEE
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fREMBRERM

42 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

42 FERELAF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
247 BRI/ SR FREMGEREREIL BRTRBERE TERK
FRF HELR
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong 58.29% HK$2  Provision of property services
HARBERAR ) BT REWERH
Synergis Holdings Limited Bermuda / Hong Kong - 58.29% Ordinary shares:  Investment holding
MEERKEARAR* BRE/ B HK$33,589,000  BE#R
Convertible preference
shares: HK$8,000,000
TR
751%33,589,0007
AERELR:
718,000,007
Synergis Management Services Limited Hong Kong - 58.29% HK$206,837  Provision of property
HEEERBEERAT BE 7 5206,8377C management services and
investment holding
RENEFEBRRBERRE
R
Synergis Facility Management Limited Hong Kong 58.29% HK$2  Provision of facility
HERKERERAT BE BT management services
RftR B E R R

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

1 Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

2 A wholly foreign owned enterprise

3 A company controlled by the Group through a non-wholly owned subsidiary

4 Unincorporated joint operations

5 Optimum Engineering Limited was ceased to be the subsidiary of the Company

effective from 31 December 2015

*  For identification purpose only

ZOA/HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hEVERE

Year ended 31 December

HE12A3BILEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EB¥TT BT BT BT BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(#&E3) (#&=E7))

Operating Results BEXRE
Revenue g 25 15,018,873 14,010,505 11,505,979 8,810,112 6,381,128
Profit before taxation B 56 AT A 2,585,610 553,492 225,542 210,633 217,211
Taxation Fi1E (111,520) (150,617) (32,127) (30,543) (27,583)
Profit after taxation R 5 18 08m A) 2,474,090 402,875 193,415 180,090 189,628
Non-controlling interests FEIE NG (28,253) (15,317) (8,013) (82) (17,209)
Profit attributable to equity RAElE=RFAA

holders of the Company JEAE 55 F) 2,445,837 387,558 185,402 180,008 172,419
Assets and Liabilities BEERAR
Total assets BEE 37,203,085 13,193,323 11,143,153 7,210,745 6,365,099
Total liabilities FEN=Ei (22,655,714)  (8,534,873)  (6,901,401)  (5,057,147)  (4,412,904)

14,547,371 4,658,450 4,241,752 2,153,598 1,952,195
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Major Projects

TETRERE

-

oy
MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS BRETPZEETE
Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM
ITEAT FriisEsa FMIBH RHART A ER B#REE
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
BFEs
Construction of Public Rental Housing 100%  December 2012 May 2016 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Development at Anderson Road Site D 2012124 20164F5 A ERAEEZESY
ZEEEMBDRAEFRABIEETR
URA Project SYP/1/001 at Third Street/Yu Lok Lane/Centre Street 100%  October 2012 April 2016 Maxjet Company Limited
at Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong * 20124F10A 201644 A ERARDQA
ERALERE = /MR R/ F4-T R EZ BB SYP/1/001*
Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital Extension * 100%  August 2013 August 2016 Seventh-day Adventist
AT R ER T2 201348 A 2016478 A Corporation (HK) Limited
BEERLEAE (FH)
BRAT
Construction of Public Rental Housing Development 100% December 2013 February 2017 Hong Kong Housing Authority
at Tung Chung Area 56 2013124 201742 A EEFEEZRS®
ROBESem A EH R EEETR
Construction of Public Rental Housing at Ex-Au Tau Departmental 100%  December 2013 May 2016 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Quarters at Yuen Long 20134124 20164E5 A EEERLZE S
AIMBEBNBEEE AR BEEEE RS
Proposed Residential Development at Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11227 100% January 2015 November 2016 Classic Gold Holdings Limited
J/O Sheung Lok Street and Sheung Shing Street, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon 20151 8 20164F11A4
TLBEAER 81122755 - A X H B AT B B AT R 5
REEE%REE
M+ Main Works Contract Including RDE Building (P39B), 100%  September 2015 January 2019 West Kowloon Cultural District
Interfacing Car Parking and Sewage Pumping Station 2015494 2019414 Authority
at West Kowloon Cultural District * BAAEXERERER
ARAAXRZM+EEZTRREH  BETE .
B R H B R (P39B) * (5 B35 B 57K R b *
Management Contracting Agreement for the Residential Developmnet 100% July 2015 June 2017 New World Construction
at 307-329 Des Voeux Road West 2015574 201746 7 Company Limited
BB EEFE307-329 T EREIBE 2 EEAND M RREERDF
Proposed Office Complex at Lam Lee Street, 100%  November 2015 July 2017 Star Wing International Limited
Kowloon Bay, N.K.I.L. No 6312, Hong Kong 201511 4 2017474 (Subsidiary of Swire Properties

BRI NEAMREE3125E NEERANEREMN A GREE
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

Major Projects

TBIRERB

BARETPZEETE (8

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
KM
TEAT FriikfEz FIBH RRABT A ER B#REE
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
[ B2 £
CDSJ and USJ Green Campus in llha Verde 100%  April 2013 May 2016 Fundacao Catolica de Ensino
BEBASNPE FEEETE 201344 A 201645 A Superior Universitario
REHEABERSHEES
Upgarde of Macao Peninsula Waste Water Treatment Plant 45%  February 2014 June 2017 CESL Asia — Investments &
JRPIH S5 KB IE e E T2 201442 A 201746 A Services, Limited
ARt &R B AR AR (D B BR A A
Link Bridge of Galaxy Macau Lot 1 Phase 2 to 100%  August 2014 March 2015 Perfect Assets Real Estate Limited
Grand Waldo LB0O08 Main Contract for Link Bridge + 201448 A 201543 A FRBEARAF]
EEITE R (528 Be M BRITARB 2 HETR +
Lisboa Palace, Macau COT/DSC1012-4 Reinforced Concrete Works 100%  November 2015 July 2017 Cotai Magnific View-Property
(Excluding Reinforced Concrete Works Below Tower) and General 20156114 2017978 Development Company Limited
Builder's Works for Podium (G/F to Podium Roof) (West Portion) BEBEBRERMERAR
FER ORPIBERRIABREBTR
Sportland, Henggin 100% June 2015 September 2019 SRR IR IR E AR A A
EEREE 201546 A 2019494
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS
TXRIE
Express Rail Link Contract No. 802 100%  February 2010 April 2016 MTR Corporation Limited
— Nam Cheong Property Foundation Removal/Reprovisioning 201042 A 201654 A BEAEBRAERAT
BERERREEREANRRS02 - maMEEBR/EEEE
Express Rail Link Contract No. 826 — Huanggang to Mai Po Tunnels 30% March 2010 May 2016 MTR Corporation Limited
BEREDRIEES HR826 - 2MEKIBRBIAR 2010%F3 8 20164F58 BEREHKARAR
Construction of MTR Express Rail Link Contract 810B, West Kowloon 22.5% January 2011 July 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
Terminus Station South 20114F1 A 201847 A BEAERBRAERAA
EE RS R R A Y8107 L EEA Y (F) E TR
Sewerage in Kau Lung Hang San Wai, 60% June 2012 December 2016 Drainage Services Department
Kau Lung Hang Lo Wai and Tai Hang 201246 A 2016%F 124 RIEE
NETUHE  WERZERFEF TKEE RS
Shatin to Central Link, Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations and 40%  August 2012 September 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
Tunnels, Contract 1109 2012478 A 2018494 EREEAR AR
DHEPRRE  NREMERENRBETR (SA4H%1109)
Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — Village Sewerage, Stage 2, Phase 1 57%  October 2012 July 2016 Drainage Services Department
MATAE KU R 24T - £ — R E — IS KIS R e 2012410 2016574 RBE
Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — Village Sewerage, Stage 2, Phase 2 57%  October 2012 August 2016 Drainage Services Department
MK R R AT - 5 = RS — IS KIS R4 2012481043 201658 A RIEE
Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1 and 83%  November 2013 May 2016 Water Supplies Department
Stage 4 Phase 2 — Mains in Northern and Eastern New Territories 2013% 114 2016454 KiEE

B REEKE TI2 AR RS 1 B K B4R BR 5821
—H R R R FOKE T2
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Major Projects

TB2TIRERE

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETPZEETE &)

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM
ITEAE FrisEsa FMIBH RHART A EFR B#EE
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS (continued)
XTI (B
Foundation and ELS Contract for Harmony Redevelopment at Hysan 100% July 2014 February 2016 Hysan Development Co., Ltd.
Avenue, Hoi Ping Road and Sunning Road, Causeway Bay 2014478 201652 A FEBEEARAF
MEEHEAEERBEAMETE
Foundation Works, Drainage Diversion and Road Works for Temporary 100%  February 2015 May 2016 Lai Sun Development Company
Carparking for The Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel 201542 3 2016454 Limited
BEEFAEBREEMETIZ BIERARDA
ELS and Foundation Works for Office Development 100% July 2015 March 2017 New World Construction
at 704 — 730 King's Road 2015478 201743 A4 Management Company Limited
HE23E 704 - 7305 A EAE EEEE A T2 T REEEEBR AR
Site Formation and Infrastructural Works near Tong Hang Road and 57%  November 2015 May 2019 Civil Engineering and
Tsz Tin Road in Area 54 Tuen Mun 201511 A 2019554 Development Department
EPIEARAIE T R R EARN T FRERERTE TARTIRARE
Site Formation, ELS, Foundation, Pile Cap and Basement Slab 100% December 2015 November 2016 Kerry Project Management (HK)
Construction Works Contracts for Residential Development at 2015412 A 20165114 Limited
NKIL6532, Lung Cheung Road, Beacon Hill, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon =EEAEE (BB)ARAR
NN R 65325 NEEEMNBERLETEAEEAMETIZ
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICE
BEHEER
Venetian Macau Capital Works (A&A) Projects — Sands 100% May 2011 December 2016 Venetian Macau Limited
BURHT ARPIE Y i R ek T12 20114F54 201657128 BURHT NRPIRRD AR A R)
Venetian Macau Capital Works (A&A) Projects — Parcel 1&2 100%  April 2011 December 2016 Venetian Cotai Limited
BEET AR R — K — - i R A T12 20114F4 8 201647128 BEET ABR 2B B IR A A
Venetian Cotai Parcel 3 100%  August 2012 December 2016 Venetian Cotai Limited
BURHT AR 23R = 20124788 2016%F12 8 BURHT AR BB IH B IR A A)
Sands Cotai Central Capital Works (A&A) Projects — Parcel 5&6 100%  August 2012 December 2016 Venetian Orient Limited
JBREHT A B ki 3R B RS &AL I R BN T2 201248 20165124 R BB ABRAA]
Venetian Cotai Parcel 5, Sands Cotai Central — Tower 5B (Resumption) 100%  October 2013 June 2016 Venetian Orient Limited
BREHT AR kiR F - SBIE S 20134104 201646 A RO BEHABRAR
INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS
EARERREHERE
URA Project SYP/1/001 at Third Street/Yu Lok Lane/ 100%  October 2012 February 2016 Maxjet Company Limited
Centre Street at Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong* 20124104 2016472 A E3vR=1 YN
BB LR E =4/ B/ IE4-T & EZ BIE B SYP/1/001*
Proposed Commercial Development at Nos. 34 Wong Chuk Hang Road, 100%  April 2014 February 2016 Best City Enterprise Limited
Aberdeen, Hong Kong Main Contract Works 2014F4 A 2016472 A WIZRERR AR
BAFEME3 R X ERIER
Proposed Commercial Development at 100%  April 2014 March 2016 Choice Glory Limited
Nos. 2 — 22 Tang Lung Street, Hong Kong Main Contract 201447 2016%F3 A FRARAF

BRIMEE R TR ERIAR
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

Major Projects

TBIRERB

BERETPZEETE 8

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
KM
TEAT FriikfEz FIBH RRABT A ER B#REE
INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS (continued)
EARERNHERE (B)
Main Contract for Major Renovation Works at Butterfly Plaza 100%  November 2014 July 2016 Link Asset Management Limited
4k B35 AT BT T2 20144F11 A 2016974 BREEEEARAA
Main Contract for Podium Renovation at Lee Gardens One, 100%  September 2013 May 2016 Perfect Win Properties Limited
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong 201349 A 201645 A ERBXEARAT
BB R B — B R = iR R BT T2
Main Contract for Proposed Residential Development 100%  November 2015 April 2017 Joint Rise International (HK)
at No.28-32 Aberdeen Street, Central, Hong Kong 20155114 2017444 Limited
BBRIREEEE28-32 M EEHRIEE FEBER (FB)BERRQA
Main Contract for Residential Development 100% January 2016 May 2017 Hong Kong Resort Company
at Discovery Bay North Phase 16 2016514 2017454 Limited
HRELFE1cHEEEFHRIER BEEEFRAF]
Main Contract for Fortune Pharmacal New Factory Development, 50-68 100%  December 2015 November 2017 Fortune Pharmacal Co. Ltd.
Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Yuen Long 20154124 2017114 FREEARAA
TURA T RA T 2 U R 4L AT50Z 685 = 18 B8 25 2 FT R = 2 B 1H A
Fitting-out works for M+ Museum Project at West Kowloon 100%  September 2015 January 2019 West Kowloon Cultural District
Cultural District, Hong Kong* 201549 A 201941 4 Authority
BRBNEE 2 MHB YIRS T2 AR ERD
Main Contract Works and MVAC Installation Works for Renovation of 100% March 2015 December 2016 CDW Building Limited
CDW Building at Castle Peak Road & Mei Wan Street, Tsuen Wan 2015438 20165128
ZEF LA REREGHBELEBHAEBHRBGETE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL
WEIR
Sub-Contract for the Supply and Installation of the Electrical 100%  September 2015 January 2019 West Kowloon Cultural District
(inclusive of ELV) Air-Conditioning, Fire Services, Plumbing and 2015498 201941 8 Authority
Water Supply Systems, (inclusive of Town Gas Installation) for BAXEEEER
M+ Museum (Building Contract Number CC/2015/3A/022)*
M+ B8R (FREEE AMR5ECC/20153A022) 2 BR (BHEKEE R
) = HEPIKERB RFKESR (BRERERZE) ©E!
Infrastructure Main Contract Works for Commercial Development 100% May 2015 February 2017 Hang Seng Bank Limited
at 113-115 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong 2015454 201742 A EAERITERAF]
HAEEZEN3-NRAXERIAR ZERERBTRE
Extension of Tseun Wan Adventist Hospital - ACMV, Electrical, 100%  August 2013 August 2016 Seventh-day Adventist
Fire Services and P&D Installation # 2013488 201658 8 Corporation (HK) Limited
ZEETREREETR - ERABRA BR BN REBKRRLE ¢ BEERzEEE (BE)
BHRAF]
Design & Construction of Tin Shui Wai Hospital — Plumbing Services, 100%  February 2013 June 2016 The Government of
Air — Conditioning and Steam Plant Installation 2013424 201656 A the Hong Kong Special

Rt RIERKE B - 47K ZRARERRGLRE

Administrative Region

ERERITRERA
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Major Projects

TB2TIRERE

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETPCEETE &)

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM
ITEAT FrisEsa FMIBH RHART A EFR B#EE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL (continued)
BEIRE (B
New World Centre Remodeling and Palace Mall Remodeling Project 100% June 2014 February 2018 NWS Holdings Limited
(Package Code No. 100408B-1) Design, Supply and Installation of H2 201446 A 201842 A MEIREBAR AT
and H2 Podium MVAC — Podium Portion Nominated Sub-Contract
RO REDTOBEEE (445 10040B-1) - H2 K H2
FRBREZER RS HERTEEESHEH
The Proposed Logistics Centre Development at Tsing Yi Lot No.181, 100%  December 2015 June 2017 Kongwell Logistics Limited
New Territories — MVAC, Electrical and Fire Services Installation 2015412 A 201746 A BERYIR AR A A
AT XRIHER 181 EERF L2 BRAZER  BERAREN ZHiRE
Central Police Station Conversion and Revitalisation Project Works 100% December 2012 September 2016 The Jockey Club CPS Limited
Contract for Plumbing and Drainage (Package 601), 20124124 201649 A BESEXMREARAR
MVAC (603) and FS (604) Installation
RIREERERE MELETEl- 58K (£49601) -
BEZER (& #603)5EPI 74t (8 K1604)% 5
New Campus Development of Chu Hai College of 100% July 2014 May 2016 Chu Hai College of
Higher Education at Tuen Mun Town Lot 489, 2014471 2016%F5 4 Higher Education Ltd.
HK — MVAC and Electrical Installation Domestic Sub-Contract HEER
REERNEFIMIER4SIZ FTREEE - BAERARERLE
DHER
Air-Conditioning and Ventilation Systems Term Maintenance Contract 100% July 2014 June 2017 Hong Kong Housing Authority
(Contract No. 20139012) (Kowloon West, Hong Kong, Tai Po, North, 201447 A 201746 A BEAFEE
Shatin, and Sai Kung Regions) 2014/2017 for Hong Kong Housing
Authority Estates, Areas and Buildings
2014E2017FEBEEEEZE R NEPHM RETHZERBEME
R R G HBRES L (A 20139012) (ChiEm  # S -
AR J@ PHERAER)
Proposed Office Development at No.14-30, King Wah Road, 100%  September 2014 December 2016 Henderson Land Development
North Point, HK — ACMV Installation Nominated Sub-Contract 2014494 20165124 Company Limited
b AREE14-30 RERFEERBEE- EABRIBED HELH BEIKEMERR AR
Urban Renewal Project at Sham Shui Po (K21) — Electrical, ELV and 100%  August 2013 April 2016 Hong Kong Housing Society
MVAC Installation 2013484 2016%F4 8 EEEEME
KPR ERZTEIK2) - ER  EEERBRAEALTE
Proposed A&A Works of Food Factory at No.3 Dai Shun Street, 100%  September 2014 April 2016 Lei Garden Restaurant Group
Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories 2014997 201647 MR EE

— Building Services Installation Nominated Sub-Contract
AR TP RIRAT3SE R MR s g T2
—HEBELZREESHEH
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Major Projects

FETRESB
MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued) BERETPZEETE 8
Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
xEME
TEAT FiisfEs FAIBH RHART A R B#REE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL (continued)
BEITE (B
Provision of Maintenance Services for AHU & PAU at Wai Ming Block 100%  November 2014 June 2017 Hong Kong Hospital Authority
for Caritas Medical Centre, Kowloon West Cluster, Hospital Authority 20144F11A4 201746 A BEBERERRB
(Contract No: 5110208495)
RBEE R LR A PR B R 2 BRI AR R (R E R TS
(A #I4R5%: 5110208495)
Supply and Installation of Remote Monitoring System and 100%  December 2015 November 2017 The Government of
Associated Engineering Works for Sewage Treatment Plants 20154124 20174E11A8 the Hong Kong Special
at Lamma Island and Ping Chau Island (Contract No. 1973EM15M) Administrative Region
RE Y SR 25 KRR R e R R & IR BT R 4T BERRITBIRBUT

(A H8%R5E: 1973EM15M)

* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies
BHELHELHATEEART]
# Sub-contract value being awarded by group companies or joint venture

SEARALGERERTZOHANE
+ Awaiting PC certificate
e TA
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Major Properties

E-2ES

Approximate
Description Uses gross area

e Ri& BnRER

Status

kiR

Lease term

1

Percentage of
Group's interest
EREFRE
EREst

Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2015

$20156128318 2% AR HEhE

Hsin Chong Center Office 107,000
107-109 Wai Yip Street, [l
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

MEFR L
EENEBREEERE072109%

Carparks in Lung Mun Oasis Carpark 50 carparks
43 Lung Mun Road, By S0fEE iz
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong

BEPIE 2 EfL
BB R FIREFIRR435:

Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252, Carpark 8 carparks
P253, P254, P255, P256 and P257, By ] v
Sun Hing Garden, No. 2 On Po Lane,

Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong
24/64,299th shares of and
in Tai Po Town Lot No. 26

BRMARNBERHR2R A ETEE
P250 *P251 ~ P252 + P253 » P254
P255 + P256 % P25 75 B fir
RIET H0ER265% 564,29917 2 2417

Basement Level 1 & Level 1t0 6 Commercial 38,214 @
New Times Plaza e
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
R BIE T T I [ B A B 25%R
EEBYPL
ME—E it F—EZNE

Level 7 to 15 Office/ 12,382 @
New Times Plaza Residential
No. 25 Maliandao Road, AR/ EE
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
L R T A [ S A K255
HTEEERE YL
+EE+RE
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B

For Sale

el

Rental
HE

Rental
HE

For Sale

HE

Medium
i HA

Medium

o 8

Medium
i HA

Medium
i HA

Medium

R

100%

100%

60.4%

100%

100%
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Major Properties

TEWE
Approximate Percentage of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest
FEMEAAL
3= 30 i:F- BHRmR iR 1 ERast
Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2015 (continued)
#2015%12A31AZ8/R BA,HEME (§)
Basement Level 2 and 3 Carpark 328 carparks Rental Medium 100%
New Times Plaza By 3281AE S e H
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
EE R I R S i B BR 255
MEZBEBDT O
WE—ERIE=E
No. 33 Lubao Avenue Commercial 97,800 @ Renovation Medium 100%
Lubao County, GES planning work H
Shanshui District, in progress
Foshan, Guangdong Province, EBREETT
People’s Republic of China
FEEREHLT = KRESE
BB RE335%
Commercial Podium Level 1 to 3 Commercial 11,526 @ Renovation Medium 100%
Tian Cheng Ming Yuan EES planning work H
Nos. 111-119 Shipai Xi Road, in progress
Tianhe District, FEREETH
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China
PEERE BN TR RAMER111-1195%
AERAR—EZE=E
Basement Level 1 and 2 Carpark 325 carparks Renovation Medium 100%
Tian Cheng Ming Yuan By 325{EE Az planning work ]
Nos. 111-119 Shipai Xi Road, in progress

Tianhe District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China
Bl BN TR B A R E B 11111958
REATME—ERME—E

KERBETH
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Major Properties

TEME
Estimated
Approximate Percentage of Year of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest Completion
REFG

F 320 i:F B RmR kiR F4 EERESL R ERFH

Properties Under Development as at 31 December 2015

R2015F12A31RZ B RHME

South of Ganjiang Road, Residential 380,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2016 to 2017
west of National Highway 102, = and Design long 20165 220174
Dafanhe Village and Xintun Village, in Progress H A ] =
Fanhe Town, BER
Tieling County, R
Liaoning Province,

People’s Republic of China Ground Floor 6,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2016 to 2017

REREAEERAAE Retails and Design long 20165 £20174F
AR R 102818 HEE in Progress HE R R
JA7E 88T B LA RA 3 £ 5 TEHH BiER

REHETH
Commercial 215,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2016 to 2017
[HES and Design long 2016F 20175
in Progress F A ] =
BER
REHETH
Residential/ 1,417,000 © Master Medium and 100% N/A
Commercial Plan in Progress long NEA
TE/ % BERal RER
EITH &

Ninty-nine Gang Residential 204,400 @ Construction Long 100% 2016 to 2017
Dushu Gang Villager Committee, FE and Design RH 2016F 220175
Lubao County, in Progress
Sanshui District, BER
Foshan City, T
Guangdong Province,

People’s Republic of China Residential/ 1,603,200 @ Master Medium and 100% N/A

FEEREHLT=KE Commercial Plan in Progress long TEA
EHEBHENZEA TS /% R RER

EITH =H
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Major Properties

TENE
Estimated
Approximate Percentage of Year of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest Completion
EREFAG

F 3200 Ri& BhRmR 3] F4 ERESL R ERER

Properties Under Development as at 31 December 2015 (continued)

R2015F12A31AZREFME (8)

Jiali Commercial Plaza Commercial 2749770 Construction Long 100% 2016 t0 2017
South of the middle section of Yitianmen [5ES and Design 3] 20165 220174
Street, in Progress
Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, BER
Tai'an City, (T
Shandong Province,

People’s Republic of China

HEILRERRT—APIAGHERIAR

Southern side of Har River, Commercial 328,100 @ Master Medium 64.3% N/A
Northern side of Binhe Road, [EES Plan in Progress i TEA
Central Business District, FebebiE
Binhai New District, TR
Tianjin,

People’s Republic of China
HEIRENE SR L EBE
BN BE AL+ LA
o Gross floor area of square feet #21EE @& (FHR)

@ Gross floor area of square metres 2/ EEE & (F 5 K)

Cl Gross site area of square metres #8118 FEI & (SF 5 K)
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Corporate Information

NYEN
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Wilfred WU Shek Chun
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LERE TAAM

Auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Financial Calendar

Announcement of interim results 19 August 2015
Payment date for interim dividend 2 October 2015
Announcement of annual results 24 March 2016
Annual General Meeting for 2016 19 May 2016

Principal Bankers*

FRERTT*

Reference Banks*

HERBIT*

Registered Office
HEMNEE

Principal Place of Business
in Hong Kong
FETEERBE
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Registrar and
Transfer Agent

FEREFRBER

Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar and
Transfer Office
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Board Lot
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Share Price
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Website
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The Bank of East Asia, Limited
RRRITAR AT
Hang Seng Bank Limited
BARITAERAA
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
BERLBELRITAERAA
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
FEIRTT (BB)BRARA
Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited
FBIR1T (BB)BRAF]
China CITIC Bank International Limited
51T (BB BR AR
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
RENARTRGERAREES T
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.
& %ECEFiﬁ%ﬁEﬁHQHﬁFEQ Gl
East West Bank
R1T
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) L|m|ted
ERRIT (BE)ERR
Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited
PRI TERTT (M) BRAF]
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited
PR TrgRTT ORF) R AR AR
Land Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd
SETHIRITIRNDBRAA
Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd
R KIRITARAA
NOVO BANCO Asia, S.A.
FRTTIRM
* In ighabez‘/ca/ order
* FEINEfF
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM 11
Bermuda

Hsin Chong Center
107-109 Wai Yip Street
Kwun Tong Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEBNES
EEH4107-1095%
EFL
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building
69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HMO08
Bermuda
Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
SR RE “uaﬁlﬁ
%%5@@5?%_%18%}7
AFIFRLT7i81712-171657 48
00404

2,000 shares

2,000 A%

Year High HK$1.12
2F&m  B¥L2T
Year Low HK$0.64
2EKE BT

www.hsinchong.com

info@hcg.com.hk
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HSINZiE
CHONG

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2579 8238

Fax: (852) 2516 6596

Website : www.hsinchong.com
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